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Corporate Profile
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China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the “Company”) is a
subsidiary of COFCO Corporation (“COFCQ”) and listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 506). The primary business of the Company includes
beverage, wine, kitchen food and confectionery. The Company
is committed to providing consumers with nutritious, healthy,
delicious and quality food. Currently, the Company’s product
portfolio includes a number of well-known brands, such as
“Greatwall” wine, “f&F&F9” consumer-pack edible oil, “Le conté”
chocolate and “& " £” Shaoxing rice wine. As a strategic
partner of The Coca-Cola Company in China, the Company also
bottles and distributes Coca-Cola beverages.
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Financial Highlights
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o Chateau Sungod Greatwall wines
were posed on “China House”
of Sochi Winter Olympics, once
again showing China’s self-
confidence and competence in
brewing to the world;
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FEBRUARY
A

On 8 April, The Boao Forum for Asia Annual
Conference 2014 was grandly opened. As the sole
APR”_ official designated wine brand, Greatwall wine served
guests and participants of Boao Forum from all over
H the world for the sixth time, and once again being
underpinned as the “National Wine” of China.
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In April, New products such as
“Schweppes+C” and “Shui Dong Le”, were
launched by COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited in its franchised territories, and
received wide market recognition with
tremendous feedback.
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In May, At the 20th

“Concours Mondial de

Bruxelles”, Greatwall

MAY Terrior Special Selection

ﬁ Chardonnay Dry White
Wine was awarded Gold
Medal; Mr. Baudoun
Havaux, Chairman of the
Selection Committee, and his
delegation visited China and
presented the Gold Medal and certificate to China Foods on 14 July.
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Major Events of China Foods in 2014
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AUGUST
A

DECEMBER
A

[ PR

On 4 August, signing the sponsor

zu‘.‘,";‘ FHARAGBER agreemeht with the Beijing
. Preparation Leading Team of

SEh AR APEC at Beijing International
; ] Hotel, COFCO became the special

sponsor of the 2014 APEC
Economic Leaders’ Meeting. China
Foods provided Greatwall wine,
Chateau Lavagnac Bordeaux and
other beverages for the event.
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In August, On behalf of COFCO, China
Foods donated RMB5 million worth of
foods and goods for helping relief to
LuDian earthquake victims in Yunnan
Province.
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On 27 September, Greatwall wine won “No. 1
Brand Value in the Grape Wine Category” in the Top
200 Chinese Liquor Brand Value of the 6th “Hua

Zun Cup” for six consecutive years.
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On 22 December,
Fortune’s Golden
Origin Maize Qil
was awarded Gold
Medal in The 5th
IEOE China (Beijing) International
Edible Qil Industry Expo 2014.
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Major Events of China Foods in 2014
] M20145F KERT

In 2014, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited ranked No. 1 in
terms of sales growth, sales contribution and quality rating in
China, and also delivered approximately 24.4% segment profit
growth. Once again, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited became
the key growth driver for The Coca-Cola Company’s results in

China.
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In 2014, Fortune initiated “Zero-Distance with Happiness”
activities, which comprised 10,190 community activities
and 141 joint promotion activities of Business Partners
(Retailers, Dealer, Producer), for direct
communication with consumers. The
_ marketing campaign of Fortune’s “Golden
' Origin Maize Oil Pyramid Storm” has been
awarded “Marketing Communications
Award” and “Advertisers Brand
Achievement Award” in China
Advertising Great-wall Awards e 2014
Advertisers Brand Award.
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2014, China Foods overcame a number of external
disadvantageous factors by promoting entrepreneurial
dynamism, improving internal management, rationalising
business processes, and enhancing operational efficiency. As a
result, the Company recorded a significant improvement in its
operating results. On behalf of the board of directors, | wish to
extend my whole-hearted thanks to our shareholders for their
unshakable faith and support.

In 2015, in order to cope with the new business environment,
our board of directors and management team will further
optimise the Company’'s strategic positioning and continue to
initiate a focused strategy. Meanwhile, we will strengthen our
internal management, improve operational efficiency, reinforce
product development and innovation, enhance product
competiveness, optimise marketing and sales strategies,
enhance the reputation of our brands, strengthen strategic
partnerships with our distributors, increase channel penetration
and improve sales execution at the point-of-sale, in order to strive
for a continuous improvement in our operating results.

As the largest shareholder of China Foods, COFCO will continue
to support China Foods in enhancing their core competiveness,
expanding business growth and development of a large-scale
sales and distribution platform under the Whole Value Chain
strategy. In addition, under the deepening mixed-ownership
reform of state-owned enterprises, COFCO will actively support
China Foods in exploring strategic reform initiatives. We hope
that through this innovative mechanism, new vitality will be
injected into the Company for its development.

| believe that by leveraging the combined efforts of the Board
and our management, China Foods will build upon the
improvements in 2014 results and deliver even better results in
2015 as we strive to achieve a turnaround in our businesses and
create greater values for our shareholders.

Yu Xubo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Statement from Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

2014 REVIEW

In 2014, China Foods faced strong internal and external
operational headwinds such as a slowing domestic
macroeconomic environment, continuing anti-corruption
campaigns, fierce industry competition, and excessive inventory
levels of the Company and at certain distributors, as well as a low
operational efficiency.

Faced with these challenges, the Company promoted
“Secondary Entrepreneurial Culture” and implemented a
series of initiatives to enhance internal management and
operational efficiency. To achieve this, we (1) further optimised
the business process of the matrix organisational structure by
sales region and product categories, improved the decision-
making efficiency, enhanced management response time,
and improved customer service. (2) Promoted entrepreneurial
culture, optimised workforce, kept stringent control of general
and administrative expenses as well as sales expenses, and
reduced transportation and warehousing costs. (3) Increased
channel penetration and point-of-sale coverage, strengthened
market audit coverage, improved sales execution at the point-
of-sale, and accelerated e-commerce development to cope
with the distribution channel reform. (4) Strengthened product
innovation and launched new products, and enhanced brand
image through innovative marketing methods; and (5) Optimised
performance assessments, and set an indicative framework.
After a year of strenuous efforts, the operating results of our
businesses improved significantly, based on increased efficiency
and substantial cost reductions, has laid a solid foundation for a
sustainable business development of the Group.
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Statement from Managing Director

ERREERY

2015 PROSPECT

In 2015, we expect to face new challenges and intense
competition under the new economic conditions. Building on the
recovery in the Company’s businesses achieved in 2014, we will
strive for a further breakthrough and development in 2015.

The Group will continue to adhere to a spirit of entrepreneurial
dynamism, optimise workforce, further enhance operational
efficiency, actively launch market-oriented reforms, refine
performance evaluation system, rationalise incentive schemes,
enhance team execution, and improve business competitiveness.
The Group will also continue to strengthen its market audit
coverage and audit supervision, optimise its internal control
system and monitor risks more effectively.

The Group is committed to analysing the new economic
conditions and market trends accurately. Based on this
information, we will further rationalise the Company’s overall
strategies and the strategic positioning of each business while
executing focused strategies and business operations to help
accelerate the development of market competitive advantages
for each business. In terms of specific measures, we will
continue to develop comprehensive distribution channels and
increase channel penetration, improve distribution coverage in
third and fourth-tier cities, and enhance the competitiveness
and sales performance at the point-of-sale. In addition, we will
pursue a better understanding of consumers’ needs, strengthen
product development and innovation, develop star products;
improve marketing creativity, enhance brand communication
effectiveness, while we continue to improve brand value
and boost sales. The Company will also implement better
benchmarking management, and improve the efficiency of
supply chains in order to achieve cost savings.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014
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We believe that following the implementation of these initiatives,
China Foods will step to a new stage of sustainable and positive
developments and there will be an improvement in overall
operational quality and efficiency in 2015. On behalf of China
Foods, | wish to thank each of our shareholders for their trust
in and encouragement to the management. | would also like to
thank each of our business partners for their understanding and
support, and express my heartfelt gratitude to each of our staff
members for their unrelenting efforts. Let us join hands to create
a better future for China Foods!

Jiang Guojin
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015

Statement from Managing Director
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although 2014 was a challenging year for the Group, each
of the Group’s Beverage, Wine and Confectionery businesses
recorded increases in revenue. However, due to a marked fall
in wholesale prices of edible oil products, there was a decline in
the revenue of the Kitchen Food business. As a result, the Group
reported a modest increase in overall revenue. In respect of
operating results in 2014 as compared with 2013, the Beverage
business achieved steady growth in operating profit, whereas
the non-Beverage businesses reduced their operating losses
substantially.

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Year”) when compared with 2013 were:

° Our Revenue increased by 2% to HK$26,742 million.

° Our EBITDA" increased by HK$613 million to HK$883
million.

° Our Operating Profit* was HK$161 million, while our
Operating Loss* amounted to HK$467 million for the
previous year 2013.

° Our Loss attributable to Owners of the Parent decreased
substantially by 75% to HK$225 million. (o)

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year.

" EBITDA represents earnings before finance costs, income tax
expense, depreciation, amortisation of other intangible assets,
recognition of prepaid land premiums, impairment related to
goodwill, available-for-sale investments, items of property, plant
and equipment and receivables, provision against inventories
and share of profits in associates.

Operating Profit/(Loss) of the Group represents the aggregation
of segment results less corporate and other unallocated
expenses.

(Note): During 2013, our Loss attributable to Owners of the Parent
includes a one-off impairment of deferred tax asset of
approximately HK$94 million.

2014 was characterized by the domestic macroeconomic
slowdown, ongoing anti-extravagance measures, the need to
pass on to customers and consumers most of the benefit of
declining raw material prices, and an intensely competitive
environment. Nevertheless, the Group took positive steps actively
to address these negative factors.

EIEEMmT

BEVAFUAEER T MIEN —F AEE
B &R BmBNARERREBKHERF WAL
R EFFERAEGRBEMEMIEEERET
BRAB T EBESRBUWA TR  LHASEREEW
MNEEAS/MEIE R - 20145 & K45 H2013F 48
b B RSN BEERSIE R ERBER

ERKEBHRAERD -

REBBEE2014F12A31IB IEFE ([RFE])
2 HEEE2013F E B

. NEE AL 2% E267 42{88 7T ©

. NEEB EBITDAE 116.131878 ;T £8.83 188
7_E °

gl

. REBEZLEN B RL6EHETT  2013F ]
BISKREBIE RAGIEET

o —
ot

Cl

° AEERNFES ARGEEEBRERD
75% %2 258 7T o ()

ARRESFE ([EFE]) TERRBTAARFE
Z AR

5 EBITDAEHIBBI ERAS PRS- H
B EERN BRRMN LS mE AfH
HERE M- BFEKREEE K ERFIEE
ZRE - FERE KRG X R AT A
e

* AEBZEEMNE/ (BE)EDBEE LM
R E R B A AR D RS o

(31) : 20BFAEEFGRARAEEAREBRES —R
IR 15 1R A EE R (B 499,400 78 7T

20145 BRI ARBKERR RBARSE M
BEP B EE R mAERAHER T2 KE 4
BEBEFEBHNERRET AEEREGRRRE
BRETMAE-

=



14

Management Discussion and Analysis
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In terms of management, a series of initiatives were implemented
including rationalising the organisation structure to enhance
organisation efficiency, fostering an entrepreneurial culture
to control and monitor costs and expenses more effectively,
optimising business decision making processes, improving
performance incentive mechanisms, and strengthening audit
supervision to improve internal control and reduce operational
risk.

In terms of business operations, the Beverage business delivered
double-digit volume growth, driven in part by a successful
marketing strategy. There was also an improvement in margins
as a result of a more favourable packaging mix, and a reduction
in raw material costs. The Kitchen Food business continued
to focus resources on promoting the corn oil star products,
expanding retail coverage and promoting channel penetration.
The Wine business actively sought to reduce excess inventories
in the distribution pipeline, continued to promote new strategic
cooperative relationships with distributors, and explored new
distribution channels in order to capture opportunities as the
wine industry undergoes a gradual recovery. Meanwhile, the
imported wine subdivision started to operate independently and
grew at a rapid pace. The Confectionery business launched
new chocolate products from Belgium to capture opportunities
in high-end market, whereas Le conté branded products were
targeted at second, third and fourth-tier cities. Distribution
coverage and efficiency were improved in order to address
these markets effectively. Benefitting from these initiatives, the
operating results of our businesses were significantly enhanced.

The improved performance of the individual businesses, based
primarily on increased efficiency and substantial cost reductions,
has laid a solid foundation for future positive and sustainable
business development for the Group.

In 2015, we will maintain our main focus on improving point-
of-sale coverage and sales execution, and on the development
of new, and increased penetration in existing sales channels.
At the same time we will not neglect the need to strengthen
product innovation, and the effective marketing of our brands.
We will continue to foster our entrepreneurial culture, optimise
our supply chain management, improve our operational
efficiency, reduce costs and expenses, optimise our performance
evaluation system, deploy market-oriented incentive schemes,
and strengthen the competiveness of our respective businesses
in order to improve our operational quality. By implementing the
above initiatives, we strive to improve our results for 2015.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BEVERAGE BUSINESS
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

R E
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e The beverage business of the Company is primarily carried

out by COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“CCBL”"), an
entity jointly established by the Company and The Coca-Cola
Company, in which the Company holds a 65% interest.

CCBL has the exclusive right to manufacture, market and
distribute Coca-Cola products in 15 provinces, municipalities
and regions including Tianjin, Hebei, Beijing, Shandong,
Hunan, Jiangxi, Guizhou, Hainan, Gansu, Ningxia, Qinghai,
Tibet, Inner Mongolia, Xinjiang and Guangdong (Zhanjiang
and Maoming). CCBL has minority equity stakes in Coca-
Cola bottling companies located in Guangdong, Zhejiang
and Jiangsu.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2% R R B
The strategic goal of CCBL is to build a world-class bottling group FAMEEREURABNEREE THEBEE
with the most admired professional team, to build the most B ERE EERABENEXEN 8%

AEENEHRM KARERENERERE -5
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valuable sales and distribution network, and to become the most
efficient beverage industry player in every region in which we

operate. To this end, CCBL has been implementing the following
strategies:

Insistence on a commitment to food safety and quality;

Continuing to improve our product offering to the trade by
ensuring that our core products have enduring appeal to
consumers, and by introducing new higher margin products.

BRELENE 87 HEARE

SEECERBER BEUKNBERR 2
BETREMNT® DHEFPEARNENZ
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At the same time, we will seek to achieve a mutually rewarding IR EMBNEE
relationship with our distributors through margin improvement
and the fostering of strategic cooperative relationships;
e Strengthen our relationship with participants in our outlet MR AESEERHNERREEE BASENS

delivery partners program, and provide support for the

B ([RTM ) RESAR B E P MBEERE

growth of customers through product category management, F &R T
and the application of route-to-market strategies in the sales EEOEFE St
and distribution network; F—K:
e Focus on further improving retail execution as this is our —riﬂﬂiﬁlﬁ-}%/ﬁ
contact point with customers and consumers; BT S AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERT

e Constantly and effectively control costs and improve
efficiency; and

e Foster creative concepts and innovative ideas in business
processes, marketing and management systems.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The beverage industry is one of the main growth drivers in
China’s overall consumer staples industry. During China’s
“Twelfth-Five-Year Plan” from 2011 to 2015, the expected
annual average volume growth rate will be approximately 10%,
signifying the beverage market has growth potential.

According to industry data, the principal beverage categories
and their relative share of the overall soft drinks market in
China are Packaged Water (32.0% share), Fruit Milk Beverages
(15.7% share), Sparkling (12.7% share), Juice (11.2% share),
Tea (10.4% share) and Sports and Functional Beverages (4.4%
share). Among these main product categories, we are already
a major player in the Sparkling, Juice and Packaged Water
categories with a steady and continuous expansion in scale. We
are also gradually tapping into faster growing product categories,
such as Ready-to-drink Coffee (32.5% growth) and Sports and
Functional Beverages (30.3% growth).

As the beverage industry in China develops, new consumer
trends and concerns are coming to the fore. Consumers are
increasingly drawn to products that are nutritious or provide
a perceived functional benefit, and there is a continuous
steady stream of new product introductions that seeks to meet
consumers’ constantly diversifying preferences. Health and the
safety of product ingredients continue to be a major concern
for consumers. The authorities have sought to address these
concerns through the application of more stringent standards
in relation to ingredients and manufacturing processes, and
through more rigorous enforcement. These developments will
help foster a healthy future for the beverage industry.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014
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2014 ANNUAL RESULTS

Revenue for the year was up 9.6% on 2013. This was partly
due to the fact that, despite intensifying competition, our
average per unit selling price remained stable during the year
as a result of improved package mix, and new marketing
campaigns, such as the “Lyrics Bottles” programme, and a
cross-industry collaboration with Samsung and a e-commerce
provider in relation to a lucky draw promotion, that did not
require customary levels of promotional support. The gross
profit margin increased by 3.4 percentage points as a result of
falling raw material prices. Meanwhile, the overall expenses to
revenue ratio rose 2.8 percentage points. This was attributable to
increased marketing expenses as a result of intensifying market
competition, and increased delivery costs which were largely due
to geographically wider channel penetration. For the reasons
stated above, our segment profit increased from HK$496 million
to HK$617 million.

OUTLOOK

In 2015, it is expected that the beverage market will continue to
be highly competitive. Under such market conditions, it is likely
to be difficult to raise selling prices. At the same time, marketing
expenses are expected to increase. This will put pressure on
margins, and ongoing product category management and
cost controls will be a major focus in order to deal with such
pressures.
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KITCHEN FOOD BUSINESS
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Kitchen Food business covers the sale, distribution
and marketing of edible oil, sugar, soy sauce, vinegar, MSG,
seasoning sauce and cereals. “Fortune” brand is a leading
consumer-pack edible oil brand for kitchen foods in China and is
ranked number two nationwide in terms of market share.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Group’s strategic objective in the Kitchen Food business is to
maintain its position as a strong player in the market. To this end,
we will pursue the following strategies:

e Focus on top-tier, high-margin oil types, promote the
“Fortune” brand name, monitor in-outlet availability and
merchandising, enhance channel penetration, improve
market share, and increase overall gross profit margin
by benchmarking with key competitors so as to improve
business performance;

e Increase efficiency of the supply chain and reduce operating
costs, control marketing and promotion costs, and enhance
promotional efficiency, improve the efficiency of the
workforce, and reduce administrative expenses.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2014, increased edible oil production volume led to over-
supply, and to a fall in prices. The edible oil industry experienced
low growth during the year. Under new conditions of fierce
competition within the industry, the major participants in this
market lowered the retail price of their products twice in the
course of the year in order to stimulate consumption and
accelerate inventory turnover.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014
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2014 ANNUAL RESULTS

In 2014, the overall sales volume of our edible oil business
remained stable in spite of the slowdown in the industry.
However, the sales volume of Fortune branded consumer-
pack edible oil increased by 6%. Due to declining prices in
the domestic edible oil market, revenue was down by 8.5%.
However, we were successful in adjusting the product mix such
that the overall gross margin increased by 3.4 percentage points.
Although we adopted effective expense control and measures
to enhance the efficiency of our marketing and promotional
expenses, and reduced our administrative expenses, our
expenses to revenue ratio was up by 2.1 percentage points,
attributable to increased marketing and promotional expenses as
a result of the competitive environment. For the reasons stated
above, we were successful in achieving a turnaround from a
segment loss of HK$152 million to a segment profit of HK$29
million.

OUTLOOK

In 2015, it is expected that supply and demand in the
international edible oil market will be stable. However, due to the
excessive production capacity in the domestic edible oil market,
price competition in the consumer-pack edible oil market is likely
to continue, and this will exert pressure on our business. The
Kitchen Foods business’s strategy for a sustainable improvement
will be based on enhanced performance in relation to consumer
communication and brand building activities, product innovation,
and channel development and penetration into the second-and
third-tier cities and counties.
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WINE BUSINESS
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group’s wine business is based on its famous Greatwall
brand, which has a fine tradition and has long been a
leader in the middle- to high-end wine markets. Various
types of wines are produced from a number of high quality
grapes, which include Cabernet Sauvignon, Merlot, Pinot
Noir, Cabernet, Cabernet Franc, Shiraz for red wines; and
Chardonnay, Riesling, Sauvignon Blanc for white wines. We
also produce brandies and sparkling wines.

The Group offers single varietal wines as well as blended
wines with different grape varieties. The majority of the
grapes that we use come from vineyards that are either
managed by us, or from sources with whom we have
cooperative agreements. Production, storage and aging
are carried out at our five wineries and plants in China,
namely Huaxia Wine Manor in Huaxia, Chateau Sungod in
Shacheng, Chateau Junding in Yantai, Chateau YunMo in
Ningxia and Xinjiang Tianlu winery in Xinjiang. There are
also two overseas wineries: Sas du Chateau de Viaud in
France and Vifia Santa Andrea Ltda in Chile.

The Group also imports wines in collaboration with a number
of well-known international wine companies, and distributes
these wines in China.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The Group will systematically raise the competitiveness of its
products as described below:

20 &

Brand — to promote consumer understanding of the role
moderate wine consumption can play in a healthy lifestyle,
highlight the fact that Greatwall is the designated wine for
state banquets, and enhance the communication of the
Greatwall brand.
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e Promotion - to integrate online and offline marketing
resources, and promote experiential marketing activities
such as winery tours, wine tasting events at community,
office building and showroom visits in order to stimulate
interest among potential consumers of wine and the
pleasure to be obtained from drinking wine.

e Products — to emphasise the special features of the different
wine-growing regions and varieties of our wine products; and
establish project teams to focus on the development of key
products.

e Distributors — to establish closer relationships and
cooperation with distributors “under jointly developed
distribution plans”.

e Channels — to promote comprehensive channel development
and actively explore new channels.

e Regions — to increase distribution and coverage in regions in
which we currently have a limited presence.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2014, as a result of the ongoing government controls over
spending, continuing restrictions on consumption at official
functions, high-end business spending and banqueting
expenditures remained weak, particularly in relation to the
middle- to high-end wine category. Consumers tended to favour
better value-for-money products. As a result, middle- to low-end
wine became relatively more popular. However, following two
years of industry decline, there was a slight rebound in overall
revenue and profit in the wine industry beginning in the second
half of 2014, and there are signs that a slow industry recovery is
underway.
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2014 ANNUAL RESULTS

Given signs of a gradual recovery in the wine industry, our
revenue and volume were up by 16.5% and 28.0% respectively
as a result of various adjustments in the execution of our
development strategies, particularly in relation to experiential
marketing promotion, and improvement in sales execution at
point-of-sale. Gross profit margin fell by 9 percentage points,
which was mainly due to the fact that consumers traded down
and this adversely impacted the product mix, together with the
impact of higher per unit fixed costs as a result of the lower
production volume occasioned by the inventory reduction
programme in the distribution pipeline. As a result of enhanced
efficiency in spending on marketing, optimisation of sales policy
with distributors, and tightened control over back office expenses
the segment loss decreased significantly from HK$455 million to
HK$116 million.

OUTLOOK

In 2015, our target is to boost retail sales in the market, to
promote the Greatwall brand by emphasising its credibility as
the designated wine for serving at state banquets, and to show
consumers through experiential marketing how drinking wine
can be a part of their lifestyle. With the implementation of this
strategy, and tightened controls in costs and expenses, we are
optimistic that there will be an improvement.

China Foods Limited "
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CONFECTIONERY BUSINESS
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The confectionery business covers the development, production,
distribution and marketing of a range of snack foods including
chocolates, candies and nuts. The Company operates two major
brands, namely Le conté and Merveille.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

The strategic objective of the confectionery business is to
become a major player in the confectionery industry in
China and provide consumers with high quality and delicious
confectionery and snack products. To this end, we will pursue
the following strategies:

e Commit to obtain more in-depth understanding of
consumers, offer innovative products and, through effective
brand communication, create optimal value for consumers;

e [Expand into other confectionery product types gradually,
lower fixed cost per unit, grow revenue and enhance
profitability;

e Continue to enhance the productivity and efficiency of the
supply chain, sales management and distribution systems
to reduce effectively operating and marketing costs, and
improve competitiveness.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The chocolate industry (including chocolate by-products)
maintained its growth momentum with a growth rate of
approximately 12% in 2014 when compared with the previous
year. The competition in the industry was intense and the major
brands increased their marketing and advertising expenditures
significantly, and adopted aggressive pricing tactics. Meanwhile,
imported chocolates made inroads into the Mainland China
market during the year.

The candy category maintained steady growth during the year.
Chocolates and candies continued to penetrate into the second-
and third-tier cities and counties, which posed new requirements
and challenges in relation to sales and distribution, warehousing
and logistics systems.
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2014 ANNUAL RESULTS

In the first half of 2014, in order to assist distributors clear slow
moving inventory, we offered additional promotional discounts,
hence the gross profit margin dropped substantially by 11.4
percentage points. Following our efforts in the rationalisation
of pricing, inventory management, and the re-establishment
of distributors’ confidence in restocking, our revenue in the
second half rebounded, with a year-on-year growth rate of 56.4%
whereas our revenue in the first half of 2014 fell 13.7%.

With promotional discounts under control, and with increased
sales volume of high margin products and enhanced product
mix, the gross profit margin on a half-on-half year basis improved
by 1.5 percentage points. During the second half of 2014,
we successfully launched a new range of imported chocolate
products under the “Hageland” brand name, and this received
an enthusiastic reception in the market.

With a combination of the above factors, 2014 sales revenue
and volume increased by 15.8% and 10.6% respectively. Overall
gross profit margin for the year declined by 1.5 percentage
points. But with cost savings, the segment loss decreased from
HK$223 million to HK$163 million.

OUTLOOK

It is expected that the confectionery industry growth rate will
remain at around 10% in 2015. Our confectionery business
will continue to improve product competitiveness through
development of new differentiated products, some of which
will be developed with foreign partners. We will develop star
products, launch innovative brand marketing activities to
increase brand acceptance. We will continue the development
of core regions and increase channel penetration in order to
achieve improved sales and profitability.

China Foods Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Supplemental information of segment results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 with comparative figures, are set
out below:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the year ended
31 December
HE12ANALEE

2014 2013
20145 20134
% %

Growth of revenue by segment: EHHE D 2 WAL K :
— Beverage — &Rt 9.6 2.5
— Kitchen Food —-BERM -8.5 -18.0
— Wine —Bmia 16.5 525
— Confectionery — KB R M 15.8 -40.1
— Others —HA 36.6 48.7

Segment results to revenue ratio: DEFEEE WAL E

— Beverage — &Rt 4.9 4.4
— Kitchen Food -BERM 0.3 -1.2
— Wine — B -5.4 —24.6
— Confectionery —KEIR M -32.4 -51.2
— Others —Hfth 2.5 11.3

REVENUE

Each of the Group’s Beverage, Wine, Confectionery and Others
segment recorded increases in revenue. However, due to a
marked fall in wholesale prices of edible oil products, there was
a decline in the revenue of the Kitchen Food segment. Revenue
of Kitchen Food segment accounted for 42.0% of the Group's
overall revenue for the year (2013: 46.8%). As a result, the
Group reported a moderate increase in overall revenue of 2%.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Overall gross profit margin improved from 20.15% to 23.58%,
mainly attributable to the improvement in margin of each of the
Group's Beverage and Kitchen Food segment.

A

AEBZMS GERE - KERBEEMASBEEZ
W ABESIE N - 8T > AR B I ME M Z LB (8
HETE BERmMIIWARALT THE-FE
RMDERAGAEBAFEEEIRAZ42.0%
(2013%F 1 46.8% ) At AL B 2 BB UL A RS 1L
#112% o

£ Fil%

EREENZXH20.15%KE£23.58%  TBHNA
SEFB DA EEERMD BEBEMNRNEAH
ﬁl}

TEREERAL | DG

T U R



260

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB

For the Beverage segment, gross profit margin delivered a
year-on-year improvement of 3.4 percentage points, mainly
attributable to falling raw material prices and improved package
mix.

For the Kitchen Food segment, gross profit margin increased by
3.4 percentage points year-on-year, given the fact that we were
successful in adjusting the product mix.

For the Wine segment, its gross profit margin fell by 9
percentage points year-on-year mainly due to the fact that
consumers traded down and this adversely impacted the product
mix, together with the impact of higher per unit fixed costs
as a result of the lower production volume occasioned by the
inventory reduction programme in the distribution pipeline.

For the Confectionery segment, its gross profit margin fell by
1.5 percentage points year-on-year mainly due to additional
promotional discounts in order to assist distributors clear slow
moving inventories during the first half of 2014. With promotional
discounts under control, and with increased sales volume of high
margin products and enhanced product mix, gross profit margin
on a half-on-half basis improved.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
EXPENSES/ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the Beverage segment, it reported a 25% year-on-year
increase in selling and distribution expenses, mainly attributable
to increased marketing expenses and increased delivery costs.
Administrative expenses remained stable for the year.

For the non-Beverage segments, mainly due to effective expense
controls and cost cut, together with enhanced efficiency over
marketing and promotional expenses, the aggregate amount of
selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses
decreased by 5.1% year-on-year.

FINANCE COSTS

Overall finance costs decreased by 32.3% which was mainly due
to a general decrease in outstanding loan balances, as a result
of repayments of certain onshore loans in Mainland China which
carried higher interest rate than offshore loans. As a result, the
weighted average borrowing interest rate was lowered.
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SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates decreased by 17.6%, mainly
attributable to a decrease in profitability of associates of the
Beverage segment during the second half of 2014.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense was down 28.3%, mainly attributable to
a one-off impairment of deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$94 million during 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Company’s treasury function formulated financial risk
management procedures, which are also subject to periodic
review by the senior management of the Company. The
treasury function operates as a centralized service for managing
financial risks, including interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risks, reallocating surplus financial resources within the
Group, procuring cost-efficient funding and targeting yield
enhancement opportunities. The treasury function regularly and
closely monitors its overall cash and debt positions, proactively
reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles to facilitate timely
refinancing, if appropriate.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s unpledged cash and
cash equivalents totalled approximately HK$1,356 million (31
December 2013: approximately HK$2,458 million), and the
Group’s net current assets were approximately HK$2,111 million
(31 December 2013: approximately HK$1,601 million).

During the year, EBITDA has increased by HK$613 million to
HK$883 million (2013: HK$270 million), mainly attributable to
improvement in overall operating profitability of the Group.

Having considered the expected cash flow from operating
activities according to budget, existing financial resources,
gearing and banking facilities available to the Group and
loan repayment schedules, the management is of the view
that the Group’s financial resources are sufficient to fund its
debt payments, day-to-day operations and committed capital
expenditures.
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The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars. The management is of the view that
the overall downside risk exposure of the Group in relation to
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk is limited.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, the total
number of issued shares of the Company remained unchanged
at 2,797,223,396.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had certain interest-
bearing bank borrowings of approximately HK$3,424.6 million
(31 December 2013: approximately HK$4,092.4 million) and
other borrowing of approximately HK$36.4 million (31 December
2013: approximately HK$45.2 million).

Bank borrowings carried annual interest rates ranging between
0.68% and 6.72% (31 December 2013: between 0.62% and
6%). Other borrowing carried an annual interest rate of 5.60%
(31 December 2013: 5.60%).

As at 31 December 2014, net assets attributable to owners
of the parent were approximately HK$5,888 million (31
December 2013: approximately HK$6,146 million) and the
net borrowing position of the Group (interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings less unpledged cash and cash equivalents)
was approximately HK$2,105 million (31 December 2013:
approximately HK$1,680 million) and the net gearing ratio
(the ratio of net borrowing to net assets attributable to owners
of the parent) was approximately 35.7% (31 December 2013:
approximately 27.3%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS
PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank borrowings of the
Group were secured by charges over certain buildings, land use
rights and time deposits of the Group with aggregate net book
value of approximately HK$316 million (31 December 2013:
approximately HK$324 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 17,285 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2013: 17,933).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided
with management and professional training.

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO
scheme or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well
as life insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland
China are provided with basic social insurance and housing fund
in compliance with the requirements of the laws of China. Details
of these benefit schemes are set out in the “Other employee
benefits” under note 2.4 “Summary of significant accounting
policies” to the financial statements in this annual report.

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”) was
adopted on 21 November 2006 for a term of ten years for the
purpose of rewarding eligible employees of the Group (including
executive directors and non-executive directors of the Company)
based on individual merit.

As at 1 January 2014, a total of 35,929,400 share options of
the Company remained outstanding. During the year, a total
of 10,229,400 share options lapsed. Accordingly, as at 31
December 2014, a total of 25,700,000 share options of the
Company remained outstanding.

CHANGE IN THE STRUCTURE OF THE
GROUP

In August 2014, COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100%
interest in Changli Huaxia Travel Chateau Co., Ltd. from
independent third parties at nil consideration.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In view of the board, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year. Details of the
Company’s work in corporate governance during the year are
disclosed in the corporate governance report on pages 57 to 76
of this annual report.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENRSHREBEASHT

CHAIRMAN AND NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
IR TES

MR. YU XUBO

Mr. Yu, 49, was appointed as the chairman of the

board of directors of the Company and a non-

executive director of the Company in March 2013.

Mr. Yu is also a director of COFCO Coca-Cola

Beverages Limited, a non wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company. Mr. Yu joined COFCO Corporation

and/or its subsidiaries (together but excluding the

Company and its subsidiaries, collectively referred

to as “COFCO Group”) in 1988 and is currently

the president of COFCO Corporation and a director

of certain subsidiaries in COFCO Group, including

COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited. Currently, Mr. Yu is also the chairman
of the board of directors and a non-executive director of China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, a vice-chairman of the board of directors
and a non-executive director of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited
and the chairman of the board of directors and a non-executive
director of China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., all of which are listed
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu was a director of Glory River Holdings Limited,
convertible bonds of which are listed and quoted in Singapore, until
May 2013.

/

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor's degree in economics from University of
International Business and Economics in Beijing and an Executive
Master of Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES
MR. JIANG GUOJIN

Mr. Jiang, 47, was appointed as the managing
director and an executive director of the Company in
September 2013. Mr. Jiang joined COFCO Group in
1989 and was the general manager of COFCO Malt
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. from December 1995 to August
2000, the general manager of the Malt Division of
China Foods (Beijing) Company from August 2000
to December 2007 and a deputy general manager of
China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong, as well as the general manager of the Brewing
Materials Division of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited from
December 2007 to July 2008. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Jiang was the general manager of COFCO Meat Investment Company
Limited. Mr. Jiang has extensive experience in food business and
general management with strong performance record.

Mr. Jiang graduated from Beijing Institute of Light Industry (now
Beijing Technology and Business University) with a Bachelor's degree
in engineering and holds a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School.

MS. WU WENTING

Ms. Wu, 51, joined the Company as a non-executive

director in March 2007 and was re-designated as

an executive director of the Company in March

2014 and is currently the executive deputy general

manager and the chief financial officer of the

Company. Ms. Wu joined COFCO Group in 1992

and was the director of the Audit and Discipline

Department of COFCO Corporation from 2006

to March 2014. Ms. Wu has also held various

positions in COFCO Group, including the deputy

general manager of the Finance Department of China Liang Feng
Grains Import & Export Company from 1994 to 2000 and the general
manager of the Finance Department of COFCO OQils & Grains Co.,
Ltd. from 2000 to 2006. Ms. Wu has extensive experience in financial
management and auditing.

Ms. Wu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from Beijing
Technology and Business University and a Master of Arts degree
in professional accounting from Central University of Finance and
Economics.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EEREREEAEEN

MR. LU XIAOHUI

Mr. Lu, 37, was appointed as an executive director

and the assistant general manager of the Company

in September 2013 and is currently also the general

manager of the audit and supervision department of

the Company. Mr. Lu served as the chief financial

officer of the Company from September 2013 to

March 2014. Mr. Lu joined COFCO Corporation

in July 2008 and prior to joining the Company,

Mr. Lu was the deputy general manager of the

Performance Audit Division of the Audit and Supervision Department
of COFCO Corporation and the deputy general manager of the Finance
Department of China Grain and Logistics Corporation. Prior to joining
COFCO Corporation, Mr. Lu worked at Vocation International CPAs
(now known as Baker Tilly International) for more than six years. Mr. Lu
has extensive experience in the area of accounting and auditing.

Mr. Lu is a senior accountant, a PRC registered accountant and a
PRC registered tax adviser as well as a member of China Institute
of Internal Auditors (authorised by the Institute of Internal Auditors).
He graduated from Tianjin Open University with a college diploma in
Finance and Securities Management, and subsequently graduated
from Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

EEEE L
B 3788 IN2013F9HEZL
FARRRNITE S RRLIED
BRI EEERARRETER
HB 4B 4% 38 o JA20134F9 A £2014
FIAME  EEESHERRT
BRVEE 5 ER200847 A
MmAFRBEEEGRLAA  RMA
RAGR EEERTREREESR
fRQ R BT B R A EMERT &
4Baen R I EERE YR S B A R B TS ER Rl 42
KIBoTE AR EBEBEABRABR &AL
BERBEE ST SHBA AR A B AR
NEBEERETREFTTAEEEEL
Eﬁo

EEE RS R SETAED - P EEMEFED - P
B M A A5 B Ne R Bl A R AT AP i (EER
N EBERT A & X)) KB -t RENKZE
EREGABNEREZFSERERAEE
B E®R FERUERAR BEESSL S
fiL o



NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FRTES
MR. NING GAONING

Mr. Ning, 56, was appointed as a director of the

Company in January 2005 and has been re-

designated as a non-executive director of the

Company since November 2013. Mr. Ning joined

COFCO Corporation in December 2004 and holds

several directorships in certain subsidiaries in COFCO

Group, including the chairman of each of COFCO

Corporation and COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited.

Currently, Mr. Ning is a non-executive director of

each of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited and CPMC Holdings
Limited, both of which are listed in Hong Kong; and the chairman of
the board of directors and a non-executive director of China Mengniu
Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Ning
was also an independent non-executive director of BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong, until October
2014; an independent director of Huayuan Property Co. Ltd, a
company listed in Shanghai, until November 2014; an independent
non-executive director of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited and a
director of BOC International Holdings Limited, until October 2014.
Mr. Ning has over 20 years of experience in corporate management,
investment and corporate finance, business restructurings and
governmental relations.

Mr. Ning graduated from Shandong University in China with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in economics and from the University of Pittsburgh in
the United States with a Master of Business Administration degree in
finance.
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EEREREEAEEN

MS. LIU DING

Ms. Liu, 60, was appointed as a non-executive

director of the Company in March 2011. Ms. Liu

joined COFCO Corporation in April 2005 and is

currently a director and the head of the Communist

Party Discipline and Inspection Team of COFCO

Corporation. Ms. Liu is also a vice-chairwoman

and a non-executive director of China Mengniu

Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong

Kong. Prior to joining COFCO Corporation, Ms. Liu

was a deputy director of the Propaganda and Education Bureau of
the Propaganda Department of the Communist Party of China. Ms.
Liu has more than 20 years of experience in legal affairs, general
management, government relations, public relations, corporate
culture development, organization development and propaganda and
education.

Ms. Liu graduated from Beijing Normal University with a Bachelor’s
degree in history and holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business.

MR. MA JIANPING

Mr. Ma, 51, was appointed as a director of the

Company in March 2007 and has been re-designated

as a non-executive director of the Company since

March 2008. Mr. Ma served as a deputy general

manager of the Company from June 2003 to

February 2008. Mr. Ma joined COFCO Group in 1986

and is currently a vice president and the director

of the strategy department of COFCO Corporation.

Mr. Ma also holds several directorships in certain

subsidiaries in COFCO Group, including the deputy

managing director of COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited. Currently, Mr. Ma
is also a non-executive director of Joy City Property Limited (formerly
known as COFCO Land Holdings Limited), a company listed in Hong
Kong; and a director of COFCO Property (Group) Co., Ltd., a company
listed in Shenzhen. Mr. Ma was a non-executive director of China
Mengniu Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong until
March 2014. Mr. Ma has extensive experience in corporate finance,
investment, strategic planning and management and worked in Japan
for over five years.

Mr. Ma graduated from University of International Business and
Economics in Beijing with a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration.
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MR. WANG ZHIYING

Mr. Wang, 44, was appointed as a non-executive

director of the Company in November 2014. Mr. Wang

is currently the head of human resources of COFCO

Corporation. Mr. Wang joined COFCO Group in 2009

and was a deputy general manager of the Company,

with responsibility for strategy management, food

safety, production safety, and innovation, research

and development, from September 2009 to February

2011. Mr. Wang also acted as an executive director

and then a non-executive director of the Company during the period
from April 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Wang was a non-executive director
of China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong, until November, 2014. Prior to joining COFCO Group, Mr. Wang
worked in China Agricultural University and a government department
in the areas of training and education, human resources development,
project management and general management and involved in various
human resources development and talent development projects and in
charge of the planning, design and management of various education
institutions. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in organization
development, talent development, strategy planning, benchmaking
management and general management.

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Sociology from Peking
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration from
China Europe International Business School.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BYIFNTES

MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK

Mr. Clark, 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in January
2005. Mr. Clark is a joint managing director of The
Anglo Chinese Investment Company, Limited, the
chairman of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and a
member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission, a former director
of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
and has served as an alternate member of the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Clark has
extensive experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Clark holds a joint honors degree of Bachelor in history and
history of art from the University of Nottingham in England and a
degree of Master in Business Administration from the University of
Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, South Africa.
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EEREREEAEEN

MR. PAUL KENNETH ETCHELLS

Mr. Etchells, 64, was appointed as an independent

non-executive director of the Company in August

2012. Mr. Etchells is currently also an independent

non-executive director of each of Samsonite

International S.A. and Swire Properties Limited,

both of which are listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Etchells

was employed by The Coca-Cola Company from

July 1998 to June 2010, and worked in the U.S.A.,

Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr. Etchells has

held various positions at The Coca-Cola Company, including the deputy
group president of Pacific Group of The Coca-Cola Company from
2007 to 2010 and the president of China Division of The Coca-Cola
Company from 2002 to 2007. Prior to joining The Coca-Cola Company,
Mr. Etchells was employed by the Swire Group in Hong Kong from
1976 to 1998.

Mr. Etchells graduated from the University of Leeds in the United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts degree in political studies, and holds
a degree of Master of Arts in Asia Pacific Studies from the University of
Leeds. Mr. Etchells is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 62, was appointed as an independent non-

executive director of the Company in November

2008. Mr. Li is the chairman of HM Corporate

Advisory Limited. Mr. Li was a director of My Top

Home (China) Holdings Limited, until January 2012

and he was a member of each of the Takeovers

and Mergers Panel of the Securities and Futures

Commission and the Listing Committee of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and an expert

member of the Finance Committee of the Kowloon Canton Railway
Corporation and an executive director and the chief finance officer of
Hang Lung Group Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
more than 30 years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and
sociology from The University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.
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MR. YUEN TIN FAN, FRANCIS

Mr. Yuen, 62, has been an independent non-

executive director of the Company since 1993. Mr.

Yuen is currently also the non-executive deputy

chairman of Pacific Century Regional Developments

Limited, a company listed in Singapore; an

independent non-executive director of Agricultural

Bank of China Limited, a company listed in Shanghai

and Hong Kong; and an independent non-executive

director of China Chengxin International Credit Rating

Co., Ltd.. Mr. Yuen was a chief executive of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited from 1988 to 1991 and an independent non-
executive director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., a
company listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong until June 2013.

Mr. Yuen holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics from the
University of Chicago and is currently a member of board of trustees
of the university. Mr. Yuen is also the chairman of the board of trustees
of Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research, a member of Shanghai
People’s Political Consultative Conference and a member of the board
of trustees of Fudan University in Shanghai.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
SAEEABBE{N

MR. WU FEI

Mr. Wu, 44, is a deputy general manager of the

Company and the general manager of wine category

management department. Mr. Wu joined COFCO

Group in 1992 and has held various management

positions in the Company since 1999, including the

general manager of the wine business unit and sales

management south center, and also an assistant

general manager of the Company. Mr. Wu has over

20 years of experience in corporate management

and wines business. Mr. Wu graduated from University of International
Business and Economics in Beijing with a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration.
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EEREREEAEEN

MR. CHEN GANG

Mr. Chen, 43, is a deputy general manager of the

Company and the general manager of the kitchen

food category management department. Mr. Chen

joined COFCO Group in 1994 and has held various

management positions in the Company since 2008,

including the general manager of each of the

confectionery business unit, kitchen food business

unit, chief legal counsel, procurement department,

sales management east center and an assistant

general manager of the Company. Mr. Chen has also served as a
deputy general manager of the oilseeds processing unit of China Agri-
Industries Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chen has over 20 years of experience in oils and oilseeds processing,
edible oil trading, brand marketing, business model innovation and
corporate management. Mr. Chen graduated from Peking University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in law, and from Tsinghua University
with a Master of Business Administration degree. Mr. Chen also held a
doctorate degree from Institute of Population and Labour Economics,
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.

MR. ZHANG JIXIANG

Mr. Zhang, 52, has been the general manager of the

beverage business unit since February 2011 and an

assistant general manager of the Company since May

2013. Mr. Zhang joined COFCO Group in 1987, and

has served as the deputy general manager of Hainan

COFCO Coca-Cola since 1996 and the general

manager of that company since 1999. In 2002, he

was appointed as the general manager of Hunan

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Company Limited and was appointed as
the general manager of Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. in 2010.
Mr. Zhang has extensive operations and management experience
and has more than 20 years of experience in the beverage industry.
Mr. Zhang graduated from China Agricultural University and holds a
Master of Science degree in Agriculture.
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MS. XU FEI

Ms. Xu, 40, is a deputy general manager of the

Company and the general manager of human

resources department. Ms. Xu joined COFCO

Corporation in 1997 and has been the deputy

director of human resources department of COFCO

Corporation. Ms. Xu joined the Company in October

2013 and has served as an assistant general

manager of the Company. Ms. Xu has extensive

experience in human resources management. Ms. Xu

graduated from Beijing International Studies University with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in economics, and from Hochschule Pforzheim
University with a Master degree in economics.

MR. ZHENG YI

Mr. Zheng, 36, has been the chief legal counsel
of the Company and the general manager of the
legal department since July 2014. Mr. Zheng joined
COFCO Corporation in 2001 and has served as
the general manager of contract and corporate
law division of the legal department of COFCO
Corporation. Mr. Zheng has extensive experience
in legal practice and management. Mr. Zheng
graduated from Sun Yat-sen University and China
University of Political Science and Law with a Bachelor of Arts degree
in laws.
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Corporate Social Responsibilig

INTRODUCTION

China Foods Limited (the “Company” or “China Foods”) regards
corporate social responsibilities as inherent in the sustainable
development of our business and the society to which we
belong. We fulfill our corporate mission and responsibilities by
“offering nutritious, healthy, delicious and quality foods and seek
to realise maximum value for our customers, shareholders and
employees”.

This report summarises the various social responsibility programs
across five important domains in food safety, environmental
protection, staff care and development, anti-corruption and
integrity, and social welfare of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) in 2014. This report will help readers
understand our practices, efforts, and improvements we have
undertaken during the year.

FOOD SAFETY

QUALITY AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

In 2014, by focusing on “China Foods Quality And Safety Work
Five-year Plan 2011-2015" ( (# B R F22011-2015E 2% 2 T
TER S EI) ), under the comprehensive quality control system
framework, the Company continued to lay a solid foundation for
quality control, strengthen the application of Plan-Do-Check-Act
(PDCA) Cycle, develop food quality and safety control system
and improve our food quality and safety management standards.

e Applying SAP Quality Management module to all the
factories of the Group. By promoting the standardisation
and unification of the basic quality management data,
systematisation and compulsion of quality process control,
standardisation and sophistication of business process
operation, we conducted audits of data analysis and quality
tracking through this information system. We also achieved
systematic management through various business data

inspections, such as origins pre-inspection, supplier source

inspection, procurement and delivery inspection, production
process inspection, finished goods ex-factory inspection,
inventory inspection and obsolete products inspection.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

QUALITY AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM (continued)

Enhancing channel quality management. We formulated
and promulgated the “Quality and Safety Requirements and
Supervision and Administrative Measures of China Foods's
Third Party Transportation and Warehousing Units (Trial)”
(FERERF=-FEH EREVEEXE2ERNE
BEEIE (5197) ) ) and “Channel Quality and Safety
Management Supervisor Standard Working Manual ” ( &
KEEX2EETERETEFM ) ). Through planning
and organising investigations on channels’ key quality
process, we completed audits of 43 warehouses, handled
204 customer complaints, completed point-of-sale quality
research in 18 cities, collected 500,000 data, and issued 54
reports during the year.

Information system for Supplier Relationship Management
(SRM) was fully operational. Information of new supplier
and new materials of different categories and for each
factory were fully incorporated in the SRM system, thereby
enhancing the management on source risks, reducing
the occurrence of quality and safety accident risks in the
system.

Supervision and audit. For the purpose of monitoring the
quality and safety of the Group’s 15 owned factories, 5
projects under construction and 23 OEM factories, the
quality and safety management department formulated the
“2014 China Foods’ Internal Quality and Safety Monitoring
And Inspection Measures” ( {2014FF B R mAIBE
EL2EB®WEHZE) ) which combined performance
assessment, unannounced audit, construction project
examination, and OEM factory audit. In 2014, 43 factory
audits with 233 man-days were carried out and a total of
443 hidden quality and safety problems were discovered.
Through comparing the audit standards, third party and on-
site trainings, site evaluation guidance, and track and verify
non-compliance items, the quality and safety management
standard was enhanced.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

SUPPLY CHAIN ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIAL
RISKS RELATED POLICIES AND CONTENTS

In 2014, the Company enhanced the safety supervision on
suppliers and such supervision covered all levels of suppliers.
The Company implemented stringent control over qualifications,
training and grading evaluation, formulated management
regulations and conducted key audits, thereby reducing food
quality and safety risks effectively.

We established comprehensive suppliers’ food quality and
safety qualifications recognition, dynamic management
on qualified suppliers list and suppliers audit system in
accordance with “ A Guide to Food Quality and Safety
Administration of China Foods's Suppliers” ( {ff B & f&
HEMEMEELE2EIRIEM) ). Through the supplier
admission system, daily management and periodic audit,
we enhanced the administration on suppliers, prevented
and reduced food quality and safety risks. In 2014, we
have a total of 489 qualified suppliers with 27 under
Category A admission, all of which had passed the suppliers
administration system audit.

Established comprehensive product recall and traceability
procedures, implemented product recall and traceability
drilling annually, verified the response sensitivity and
product traceability standard of the recall system, guarantee
the product recall drilling will be completed in 2 hours.
The response to product recall procedures was rapid and
operation was effective. In 2014, no recall of ex-factory
rejected product was recorded.

RESPONSIBILITY TO CUSTOMERS AND
CONSUMERS

In 2014, China Foods Customer Service Center escalated its
service quality, and the complaint handling mechanism was
further improved. In addition to the 24-hour countrywide
hotline — 4008506506 which is open to the public, a
common processing platform was established internally for
customer services. Through the synergistic collaboration
of customer services, public relations and frontline staff,
the first firewall for China Foods’s food quality crisis
management was set up. The settled complaints handling
rate in 2014 was 95%, with a 98% satisfaction rate.
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FOOD SAFETY (continued)

RESPONSIBILITY TO CUSTOMERS AND
CONSUMERS (continued)

e Consumer and customer database were established in the
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system. The
information of consumer names, telephone numbers and
addresses in the complaint data is shielded by restricting the
display of words and paragraphs, thereby safeguarding the
privacy of consumers’ information. Since the establishment
of the customer service center in 2012, there was no leaking
of consumer information so far. In 2014, there was no major
incident of product safety or customer complaints.

EXTERNAL RECOGNITION

e COFCO “Fortune” brand was awarded the titles of “The
12th China Food Safety Annual Conference — Outstanding
Contribution Enterprise” and “The 12th China Food
Safety Annual Conference — 100 Most Trustworthy Model
Enterprises” at The 12th China Food Safety Annual
Conference.

e The Hainan plant of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
(“COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages”), a subsidiary of the
Company, was awarded the title of “Quality Prospering
Hainan Province — Consumers’ Most Satisfactory Premier
Brand”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

China Foods is committed to the development of low carbon and
environmental protection concept, vigorously promoting low-
carbon economy, exploring a sustainable development model
with low energy consumption, low pollution and low emission,
and striving to build a resource conservation and environmental-
friendly enterprise, and facilitating the sustainable development
in ecological environment. In 2014, there was no illegal sewage
incident, and the energy-saving and emission reduction
indicators were in compliance with the requirements of the state
and local governments and also of COFCO Corporation, the
parent company.

FURTHER INTENSIFYING THE
CONSTRUCTION OF ENERGY CONSERVATION
AND EMISSION REDUCTION SYSTEM,
IMPROVING MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
STANDARD

e Greatwall Yantai winery established a domestically advanced
sewage treatment system, applying low temperature
anaerobic fermentation technology to control the COD
value under 40mg/L. The water after treatment is used for
grape irrigation and plant greening to achieve zero sewage
discharge. The biogas generated is used for anaerobic
bacterium tank insulation, achieving annual coal saving of
300 tons. Greatwall Wine Shacheng plant introduced the
Israel vineyard drip irrigation and reclaimed water recycling
technologies, achieving annual water saving of 520 tons per
Chinese mu (=0.667 hectares). Chateau Sungod has newly
constructed a 150 tons/day capacity sewage station. Each
plant has stringently implemented the Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Coal-burning Oil-burning Gas-fired Boiler
( CHRIERR)ZE2MEEHIRAE) ) (GB132711-2001) and
the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard ( ($57K#R
AHEIZZE) ) (GB8978-1996) , and achieved the annual
emission standard.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY REEME @

(continued)

FURTHER INTENSIFYING THE iR
CONSTRUCTION OF ENERGY CONSERVATION E
AND EMISSION REDUCTION SYSTEM,

IMPROVING MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
STANDARD (continued)

e All bottling plants of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages e HRAOFEHGMERMIMEFELNERD

:|n+
I
HE
‘%_

fLEisE R BFE RERIRR
(%

iﬁ

achieved annual unit integrated energy consumption 4R G BEFE B0.00SSHA 1= B WA & B b &
of 0.0088 tons standard coal/ton product, a 9.73% FTFE9.73% © _ﬁfbﬁﬁi#\?ﬁﬁﬁlM 466,523
reduction year-on-year. Carbon dioxide of 64,466,523 W8 - [B L 25 F T B824.86% - [E] BE & 2= W) HE WX
tons and solid waste of 71,766.7238 tones were 71,766.7238]HE - Httj&iTﬂctll%% Fig
discharged, with a 24.86% and 11.94% reduction TDT LHEMBOILRBETREEKERER
year-on-year respectively. Shandong plant of COFCO F(ROVZSJBCER B AREEVKIER &
Coca-Cola Beverages optimised its reverse osmosis Eﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁl WE : SUEE M R RO SR A b I R 1R )R
(RO) system for a water saving project to shorten HFEREREREIAE - BFAEI3IEE  Fig
self-washing time, achieved annual water saving of Al O A R R 4t R A = RIS ol i
30,000 tons. Its energy saving project for ammonia ENRETE B - FANRE235.26FIZ/E  FRIE R O A
compressor controlling coolant opening by using LYERNEREHEMBIBBRREERER
proportional valve achieved annual power saving of ISO1400133 7% * & F R FEEIRIB T L E WA
33,000 kilowatt. For COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages’ EgL

Beijing plant, its energy saving project for heat
exchanger transformation for winter heating achieved
annual standard coal saving of 235.26 tons. All ’
bottling plants of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages are !i:#ﬁ‘-ﬂfﬂ'-ﬂiék###ﬁ‘ﬂl
certified by 1SO14001 and there was no incident of
environmental pollution. 2“”‘"5%*7'&

e The discharge of waste water by Shenzhen Le conté plant o RIYIE T LM20144 )5 /K100%EZHEM - T

in 2014 was 100%. The hazardous solid wastes arising TR AR EE AR FTEE AR O fEBR B BEBE YD - AR
from production in the plant were handed over to Shenzhen Y ElEmERnBRARETESNEE
Hazardous Waste Treatment Station Co., Ltd. regularly for FRIE - 2014F E AR fEREEMEIR100%5
paid treatments. In 2014, 100% of hazardous wastes were BRI -

transferred and treated.
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TEHESERE
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY RIEBHE @
(continued)
ACTIVELY DEVELOPING THE RECYCLING BEERERKE RS RAMNAY
ECONOMY AND IMPROVING RESOURCE b

UTILISATION RATE

Every factory of Greatwall Wine is actively pursuing the
recycling economy. Stem and peel residues are purchased
by buyers all together for aquaculture feed additives,
production of fertilizer raw materials, extraction of grape skin
pigment, anthocyanin extraction, and grape seed oil, with a
100% recyclable rate. Waste water of each factory is treated,
the discharge of COD, BOD and suspended substances has
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fulfilled the National Emission Class | Standard, and the
treated sewage passing the required standard is used for
irrigating vineyards and shelterbelts.

ENHANCING ENERGY CONSERVATION 38 B BE IR HE B B R IE A SRR IR
AND EMISSION REDUCTION PROPAGANDA B

AND TRAINING, STRENGTHENING

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AWARENESS

e COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages and
the bottling plants conducted
environmental protection social welfare
activities such as “Earth Hour” and
“Afforestation”. Internally, it created

o FR T O &K
KR & 5 B
R [ 5R— /1 ]
[ ] SRR
N EEH L%

an amicable energy conservation and N EB 1 R AT R B
environmental protection promoting BEIRIREELE
sentiment, and externally, established EEENTEIER
a good social image. HHHEHR-

R AJ O R 4 8RR 5 SRR S B0 BE R R A
REEREZ T B THETRRBDEH
B BB THRERBOMEOEEHE -

e All bottling plants of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages have .
included energy conservation and emission reduction as
one of their performance evaluation indicators. It conducted
regular education in environmental protection and energy
conservation for its staff to enhance their environmental
protection and energy conservation awareness.

AAFREFERRPAE S  RIBEELH
D EREEITH HHRARES -

e The Company advocated the environment-friendly office °
concept, promoted paperless office with duplex printing and
lighting energy saving.

MR NEBERER SRR AER B
DEEER R

e Enhanced the management of vehicle usage through °
rational vehicle deployment and utilisation to reduce vehicle
usage frequency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(continued)

EXTERNAL RECOGNITION

In 2014, China Foods received full affirmation and recognition
from the communities due to its outstanding performance in
social responsibility and obtained the followings honors:

48 |

In February 2014, after passing the inspection by the
Standardisation Administration of the People’s Republic of
China, Greatwall Wine Huaxia Winery obtained the project
approval to become the 8th batch of “National Integrated
Agricultural Standardisation Model Regions”, which is also
the first national standardisation model project in wine
category.

In 2014, at the China Beverage Industry Association Annual
Conference, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages was awarded the
title of “Excellent Enterprise in
Beverage Industry in Performing
Social Responsibility” in
recognising its outstanding
contributions in sustainable
development. The plants of
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverage
in Tianjin, Shandong, Jinan,
Beijing, Gansu, Jiangxi and
Zhanjiang won the honorary title
of “Excellent Enterprise in China
Beverage Industry in Water
Saving”.

In 2014, the Hebei plant of COFCO Cocla Beverages
was awarded the honorary title of “2014 Enterprise in
Meeting Sewage Standard”.

For the fourth consecutive year, the Shenzhen Le conté
plant was honored as “Enterprise of Clean Production in
Guangdong”, and for six consecutive years, was honored as
“Enterprise of Clean Production in Shenzhen”.

China Foods Limited
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STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2014, the Company adhered to the “people-oriented” human
concept, responded positively to staff demand, fully protected
the interest of staff, provided staff with good development
platform and comprehensive training system, and achieved the
mutual development between the enterprise and staff.

PROTECT THE INTEREST OF STAFF

e The Company stringently complied with the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Labor Contract Law and other
relevant laws and regulations. In 2014, the labor contract
signing rate of full-time employees was 100%.

e We are committed to equality for all employees, ensured that
no race, age and gender discrimination, forbid child labor
employment and no labor compulsion of any kinds.

e Provided market competitive remuneration, emphasised
the recognition and reward of staff's contributions to
the Company, guided and promoted staff capability
development.

e The Group provided employees with five social insurances,
one housing provident fund, commercial insurance and
annual health check-up, thereby increasing staffs’ life quality
and sense of belongings.

PROMOTE STAFF DEVELOPMENT

e |n 2014, the Company implemented the internship program
of “Summer Excellent Students”. A total of 7 students from
key universities and colleges were recruited under the
“211 and 985" Programmes. We established experimental
training sessions for project management to improve
business skills.

e Formulated a program of “2015 China Foods Recruitment
and Development Plan for Entrepreneurship Star Campus”,
and endeavored to carry out the program for a term of 3
years. Leveraging college channel, we aim to select and train
a batch of backbone talents for grass-roots works, improve
and supplement existing talent pool, so as to achieve a win-
win situation for the enterprise and society.
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STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

PROMOTE STAFF DEVELOPMENT (continued)

In 2014, various trainings conducted by China Foods were
equivalent to about 100,000 person-time, representing
about 550,000 class hours or about 32 class hours
per employee. We organised an effective leadership
development training course for middle management on
one occasion, with 498 person-time in total. We organised
different kinds of professional training series for different
functional staff, with 889 person-time in total. Courses
such as “Sales Skills FAB”, “Grape Wine Knowledge” and
“Pipeline Successful Image” were provided for sales staff,
with 6,665 person-time in total.

Established internal platform of talent exchanges, promoted
rational talent exchanges, conducted internal recruitment,
and provided staff with ample occupation development
opportunities.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

(M0

\

T#

AR (@)

REETERE @

2014%F - FERmFARSEIFIIHETHI0B A
R K558 R - AR IIKI32RE :
BEEABAMT —HeRRENERFI
ARAE - HA9BA R BEBEEFII B TAMS
BMEXZRIEI - HBIOAR  HHEEE A
BENTHERFAB ] [B&BEMH#] TR
BRINE B ZRIZ - 6,665 A K

BEATRBARFE REATAER:
FRAAFER RETRHEEEMBER
REE-




STAFF CARE AND DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

HONOURS AND RECOGNITION
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e The human resources department of COFCO Coca-
Cola Beverages was awarded the titles of “Best Human
Resources Model Award” and “Best Employee Development
Program Award”.

e The Shandong plant of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
won the honorary title of “College Graduates Employment
Internship Base” by Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Laoshan District, Qingdao City.

e The Hunan plant of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages won the
“Best Employer Award” in Hunan Province, China for two
consecutive years.
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ENHANCE AUDIT AND SUPERVISION,
PROMOTE ANTI-CORRUPTION AND
INTEGRITY

In 2014, the Company focused on promoting incorruptible
employment and anti-corruption works, continued to facilitate
and protect the healthy development of working in China
Foods. China Foods intensified the implementation of the
Eight Requirements promulgated by the government and all
supervisory works. We consistently implemented policies to
tackle significant issues, and appointment and removal of
key officials, investment policy for material projects, decision-
making system for utilisation of material amount of funding, in
order to regulate decision-making behavior, and avoid risks in
decision-makings. The penalty and prevention system which
combined education, policy, supervision and punishment was
well established and the works on promoting incorruptible
employment and anti-corruption were effectively implemented.
While perfecting the mechanism for accepting whistleblowing
letters and calls and follow-up investigations, we gradually
intensified our supervision to conduct supervision on key
managerial staff, key position staff and important issues.

The Company introduced various rules and regulations such
as “China Foods Management System of Integrity and Self-
discipline”, “China Foods Risks Prevention and Corruption
Control Measures”, “China Foods Ten Integrity and Self-
discipline Regulations”, “China Foods’ “Eight Restrictions on
Integrity and Self-discipline with Distributors and Co-operative
partners”, “China Foods Managerial Personnel Accountability
Requirements”, “China Foods Employee Punishment System for
Breach of Conducts and Regulations” and “China Foods Petition
and Reporting Management System”, aiming at protecting and
supporting incorruptible employment and anti-corruption works
under the system.

e |n 2014, a total of 53 managers signed the Responsibility
Statement of Incorruptible Employment and Anti-corruption.

e A cumulative total of 1,300 person-time of integrity
messages were sent to managerial staff via SMS in 2014,
conducting education through integrity short messages.

e Prepare teaching materials in respect of incorruptible
employment and anti-corruption, and develop alert
education for key business positions and those business
segments when anti-corruption violations had occurred.

China Foods Limited
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ENHANCE AUDIT AND SUPERVISION,
PROMOTE ANTI-CORRUPTION AND
INTEGRITY (continued)

e Advocate collective decision-making in respect of significant
issues decision, key officer appointments and removals,
material project investment decision, and substantial
amount funding utilisation. For important issues such
as corporate operation management and business
development, China Foods management will conduct
collective decision-making to avoid decision risks, facilitating
incorruptible employment and anti-corruption works.

e The audit and supervision department requires every
unit to perform internal self-inspection according to
the incorruptible employment and anti-corruption work
requirements. The scope of self-inspection covers internal
sourcing, meetings and reception, vehicles for business
use, management and control in sales expenses, selection
of different service suppliers, appointments and deployment
and others.

e Perform pre-employment investigation on newly appointed
management personnel in order to understand whether
such personnel had integrity and self-discipline issues
and prepare supervision opinion. A total of 44 supervision
opinion letters were prepared in 2014.

e A procurement and tender steering group and a tender
management committee had been established. A tender
supervision office had also been set up in order to enhance
the compliance management in procurement and tender
activities, and facilitate incorruptible employment and
anti-corruption works. Focusing on the operation of
procurements and tenders of China Foods, the “China
Foods Procurement and Tender Administrative Measures”
had been prepared and all staffs in China Foods are
required to abide and comply.

e |n 2014, the audit and supervision department positively
took up different types of complain and whistleblowing
letters and conducted investigations. Through investigations,
loopholes in business segments were promptly discovered,
and which had helped to improve the standard of business
process effectively and reduce corruption risks of personnel
during business operations.
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT

In 2014, through “Fortune” brand products, we continued to
help the communities of Chaowai Street, Chaoyang District,
Beijing City and commenced a series of social welfare
activities, bringing good fortune and showing care to low
income families during the traditional Dragon Boat Festival,
National Day and Chinese New Year, which included 15
nutrient specialist seminars and 10,190 community activities.
The “321 Edible Oil Exchange” activities were organised in
Nanjing, Tianjin and Zhengzhou, exchanging 4,823 barrels
of nutrient oil for the community residents in the three cities,
showing the sense of social responsibilities of “Fortune” brand
and the Company, earning wide acclaims from consumers.
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COFCO Fortune, being the sole cooperative partner of the
China aerospace industry in the country’s grain and oil industry,
has helped to promote social welfare spiritual education and
talks. Liu Yang, China's first female astronaut, and Tamara
Elizabeth Jernigan, the renowned U.S. astronaut, were invited
to join the thematic exchange activity of “Learning The
Aerospace Spirit, Casting A Faithful And Upright Character”
held at the headquarter of COFCO Corporation Limited.
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT (continued)

In April 2014, the Boao Forum 2014 annual conference was
grandly opened. As the sole official designated wine brand,
Greatwall wines were used to serve guests and visitors of
Boao Forum from different countries for the sixth time. In
November, the APEC Conference was held in Beijing. As
the national wine of China, Greatwall wines were proudly
underpinned as APEC’s official designated product.

The Company is adhered to the belief of “When disaster
struck, help came from all directions”, so that when
the earthquake occurred in Ludian, Yunnan Province in
August 2014, relief goods were sent immediately to the
disastrous regions
for helping relief
to the disaster-
stricken people
and rebuild their
homes, showing
our commitment
to be a responsible
corporate citizen.
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Staff from the bottling plants of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
has paid regular visits to the hope primary schools in their
franchised regions. We continued expressing our care
through upgrading software and hardware educational
conditions, commending excellent students, and sports gala
events. In 2014, we immediately sent relief goods to support
people in disaster regions in Hainan and Zhanjiang that
were hit by storm and also in Hunan and Jiangxi that were
affected by flood.

COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
continues to promote 520
courses for helping women to
get employment through starting
their own business. Online and
offline business training, support
of dynamic display and micro-
financing were provided, so as to
help the unemployed women in
achieving their career development
and improvement.
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT (continued)

e COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages organised different charitable
activities to promote the harmonious development of
community. These activities includes “Minute Maid”
Sunshine Cycling, “Red Ribbon” social welfare series,
“Starlight” Workers Summer Camp, and Chi Heng
Foundation AIDS Orphans Summer Camp, blood donation,
and love charitable sale, contributing charitable donations in
value over RMB2.92 million.
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CONCLUSION AND OUTLOOK

In 2014, China Foods regarded food safety as its key
responsibility while developing its own business in creating
value for society. We operated with integrity and in accordance
to law, helped promoting the development and progress of the
community and actively participated in social welfare activities
and fulfilled our social responsibility. In 2014, the Company
did not encounter any significant incident of non-compliance.
We endeavored to take initiative to participate in various social
welfare activities as a corporate citizen. Looking forward, China
Foods will further promote and manage its corporate and social
responsibility and continue to improve its ability in fulfilling
responsibilities and its performance, thereby achieving a win-win
development for the enterprise and stakeholders.

China Foods Limited
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Corporate Governance Re

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is committed to achieve
high standards of corporate governance. The board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) recognises the importance of
maintaining a good corporate governance standard and practices
for the growth of the Company and for safeguarding the interests
of our shareholders, investors, customers and staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the Code Provisions throughout the year ended
31 December 2014.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Following
specific enquiries by the Company, all directors of the Company
(“Director(s)”) confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
year.

The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based
on the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees
in the securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
required to comply with the Employees Trading Code in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. The terms
of the Employees Trading Code are no less exacting than the
required standards set out in the Model Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experience necessary for independent decision making and
fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and
nine non-executive Directors of whom four are independent as
defined under the Listing Rules. Independent non-executive
Directors constitute one-third of the Board. The Company
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On 4 November 2014, the nomination committee of the
Board has conducted an annual review of the independence of
all independent non-executive Directors. Taking into account the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
in assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, the nomination committee concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors satisfied the Listing Rules
requirement of independence.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in Directors
and Senior Management Profile on pages 30 to 39 of this annual
report. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors
are involved in any relationship as defined in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has also maintained on its website
(www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the HKExnews website of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of its Directors identifying
their roles and functions. Composition of the Board, by category
of Directors, is explicitly identified in all the Company’s corporate
communications.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in August 2013.
When determining the composition of the Board, the Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, work and professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
appointment of the members of the Board will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merits of the
candidates and the contribution they will bring to the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The
nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying
and nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying
out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the
board diversity policy.

At as the date of this report, the Board comprises 12 directors,
two of them are women. The educational background of the
directors cover accounting, business management, economics,
finance, sociology, history, engineering and political studies. The
Company considers that the current composition of the Board
has the characteristics of diversity, whether from perspectives of
gender, professional background and skills.

BOARD MEETING AND GENERAL MEETING

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year at approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board
meetings as and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings
are sent to Directors or Board committee members at least
fourteen (14) days prior to such meetings and Directors or
Board committee members can include matters for discussion
in the agenda for such meetings if the need arises. For ad hoc
meetings, shorter notice may be given.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
BOARD MEETING AND GENERAL MEETING

(continued)

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or
other committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for
meetings and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for
meeting proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to
the Directors at least three (3) days before the intended dates of
Board meetings or Board committee meetings.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings have
recorded in sufficient detail matters considered by the Board and
Board committees, decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes of Board meetings and/or Board committee
meetings are sent to Directors or committee members (as the
case may be) for their comment and records respectively, in both
cases within a reasonable time after the meetings. The decision
of the Board can be made by written resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are kept by the company secretary and are available to all
Directors for inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the company secretary to
enable them to discharge their duties effectively, and has the
liberty to seek external professional advice if so required. The
cost of procuring these professional services will be borne by the
Company.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a Director, such matter will be
discussed through an actual meeting and will not be dealt with
by written resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with
no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing with
such conflict issues.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
BOARD MEETING AND GENERAL MEETING

(continued)

During the year, other than resolutions passed by means of
resolutions in writing of all Directors, a total of four Board
meetings, an annual general meeting at which the external
auditors attended, and a special general meeting were held and
the attendance of such meetings by each Director is set out
below. In the following table, the figures in brackets means the
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total number of meetings held during each Directors’ tenure
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014:

Annual Special
Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
(Note 4) (Note 5)
BREEE B% 51 45 5l
Name of Directors EERA EEZgER g g
(MF3E4) (I 5ED)
Executive Directors HiITES
Mr. Jiang Guojin TEE A 4/(4) /(1) 0/(1)
Ms. Wu Wenting (Note 1) RxEz+ (KT 3/(4) 0/(1) /(1)
Mr. Lu Xiaohui BRI S A 4/(4) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) TERESE (F/E) 4/(4) (1) 0/(1)
Mr. Ning Gaoning BERELA 0/(4) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Chi Jingtao (Note 2) BRUSSEE (H5E2) 2/(4) 0/(1) N/A 7 A
Ms. Liu Ding WT 2zt 2/(4) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Ma Jianping SEEEE 3/(4) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Wang Zhiying (Note 3) T2 B5%A (B1FE3) N/A 71 i@ FA N/A 7 i@ 0/(1)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark IRV b 4/(4) 1/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A 4/(4) /(1) 1/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred LA 4/(4) 1/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RARAALLE 3/(4) 0/(1) 0/(1)
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
BOARD MEETING AND GENERAL MEETING

(continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Wu Wenting was re-designated from non-executive Director to
executive Director with effect from 10 March 2014.

2. Mr. Chi Jingtao had resigned as non-executive Director with effect
from 10 November 2014.

3.  Mr. Wang Zhiying was appointed as non-executive Director with
effect from 10 November 2014.

4. The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 3 June
2014, and more details are set out in the circular dated 23 April
2014 and the poll results announcement dated 3 June 2014.

5. The special general meeting was held on 30 December 2014, and
more details are set out in the circular dated 10 December 2014
and the poll results announcement dated 30 December 2014.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible
for formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies,
reviewing and monitoring financial and operating performance,
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system,
supervising and managing management’s performance of the
Group, and approval of matters or transactions of a material
nature or those requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation of the strategies
and policies set by the Board to the management under the
leadership of the managing director.

During the year, the Company arranged a site visit for Directors
including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to the Group’s Sungod Chateau located at
Hebei province and market visits in Wuhan in order to better
understand its business operations.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

EET (g)
EETRBREXE @)
MEEE -

. RXEZ+EFEA/PITES H2014F3H10H
R

2. ERBEABRERHITES H2014411510AE
e

3. IZARFEEBZERIFNITES H2014F11710
B AR -

4. K’AﬁZH&ﬁE@K@EE@ZOl4¢6HSE BT
EE R HHR2014F4 A23H 8938 K - A KR 201446
HA3RMRRERARBERAS -

5. ARBZBREFAREDN2014512A30R 81T
FHEHA B HIR2014612 A 10 R 6938 1 - ] J22014
FI2A30EMRERRERAE

EEENEE

%%Amif%% 8RS REEARE - HI3]
AN BWEAR LB HERERM S REE
%ﬁn*ﬁ@%?&% 2R B RE AR
IEEFZ%E,M&ﬁﬁikjm%tﬁﬁ%
ATFURBNETRR

ExeXthERAKE El’x]” i%'féﬁ
SEZBEER- TTLBZ&M "
& T RS K

FRARRLZHESBRIFNTESTREULIF
HTEEEHSB T AKEURNTILENRTE
o ARBRRETHIBERD  BAIRE RHH
HEE A



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
function such as developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report contained in the annual
report of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION/ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) were appointed for specific terms of three
years. Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the Company's bye-laws
(the “Bye-laws”), each Director (including those appointed
for specific terms) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and the retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election. Director who is appointed either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional director to the Board shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be subject to election at such meeting
pursuant to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws.

All current Directors have signed formal appointment letters
with the Company with respect to their directorship with the
Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman or executive Directors’ briefings on the operations and
business of the Group and an induction package to ensure that
he has a proper understanding on his responsibilities under the
relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

Corporate Governance Report

TEREBRRE

EET )

ERERMEE
MRy ER Y EEREEE AUHEEFEA
EHTOEE AN NHERRTFARCE

ERAZBREER BALEREERGREE
ENBINIEFEERRR ARBAZHEETER
NEZEMEERTE ARARREST (BEEAR
SR 2 BREER AR FRAN (BERER
WE) < WE-

ZREREE BEES

FMBEFATER (BRBYIFQTES)NERE
BREBEIFONREFH -REAQA QAR
(TREIMA ) BM@ANLUE SUES (BIER
BEZEFHNER) AL B =FHBFERI—
u\ B A EREREE - RIBAFADR VAL RIGAE

RENERESSRBETRAD/TNEEETNE
%EHH E%EI*T£1§$QTE@§1%$7K§H%

EE I/EE/\\EAEJ:FE

AEREESFHC AL ERARANESTRFE
ARBRFTERNRE K-

FEEXER

%ﬁi%(a%#ﬂﬁ%%&ﬁi#ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%
AR THRESEREBZEERERAEEZ
¥BNHmR - BUHTESRES %Eéﬁ$@
BEFERNTESESAEAEELEREBN
N RERERUE X REREE GO %
Bl BA AR THETAEERENT R

FERRERAF
—T—FH

63



64

Corporate Governance Report

J/J:\¥ B Iﬂ*ﬁi

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. From time to time, the company secretary
disseminates information on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
the Directors to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. The Company will
organise seminars on specific topics of significance or interest for
Directors and management staff and sponsors Directors to attend
professional development seminars or other programmes where
necessary.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors during the year is set out
below:

EET(g)
HFEHERRE

ARBBEABEFSEFBERER  UBRNK
EREMBERE - AR METRAESREME L
MARAAREMEREERENRIERER
NHERESETRIENEEERNER WIIRAHE
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MERE ARRANEENESTHRFEXRERE

F%Bzﬁﬁﬂu%it’

REFRHUOCE EERAFEMEIFIIZ
BMEEIMT

Attending briefings,
seminars, conference
and/or reading
materials relevant to
the director’s duties and
responsibilities
SHEERE Elg-

ABEEHRHEEE
EERERRH

Name of Directors EENE AFREMER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Guojin TR LA v/
Ms. Wu Wenting (Note 1) KL+ (ML) v
Mr. Lu Xiaohui RSB v
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) TR (EE) v
Mr. Ning Gaoning THT%E v
Mr. Chi Jingtao (Note 2) ERURSTE (EE2) v
Ms. Liu Ding MT 2zt v
Mr. Ma Jianping BEFEE v
Mr. Wang Zhiying (Note 3) FzR&EAE (MEF3) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEMITES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark MALfELRAE v
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BRI A v/
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FRBTE v
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANGAE v
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Wu Wenting was re-designated from non-executive Director to
executive Director with effect from 10 March 2014.

2. Mr. Chi Jingtao had resigned as non-executive Director with effect
from 10 November 2014.

3.  Mr. Wang Zhiying was appointed as non-executive Director with
effect from 10 November 2014.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance
for Directors and officers of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of chairman and managing director are segregate and
discharged by different individuals. Currently, the chairman of
the Board is Mr. Yu Xubo, while the managing director of the
Company is Mr. Jiang Guojin.

The chairman of Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensuring all significant and
key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the
Board in a timely manner.

The managing director of the Company is delegated with the
authority and responsibility to manage the businesses of the
Group in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies,
make day-to-day decision and coordinate overall business
operation and regularly report to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the
executive committee, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, to oversee
corresponding aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company have defined terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee currently consists of three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Guojin who is the chairman of this
committee, Ms. Wu Wenting and Mr. Lu Xiaohui. Ms. Wu was
re-designated as an executive Director on 10 March 2014.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com). The
primary responsibility of the executive committee is to deal with
and supervise the day-to-day business operations, management
and administration of the Group. There is no minimum meeting
requirements and this committee shall meet as and when
necessary for proper discharge of its duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee currently consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark who is
the chairman of this committee, Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, Mr.
Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
The duties of the audit committee are mainly to review the
financial information and reporting process, internal control
procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors and arrangements to enable

RAIA3EATER IEE L (B
CRXEBLEREBEERE R L
ﬂ IO ERERAITES-

WTZESNBESBEZC SR AR R HuL
(www.chinafoodsltd.com) e 1 {TZE @M E ZE (T
EEEREBAEEATESNEE BERT
H-ZEGUBATHRL BN BRFEE2RE
TEHEAEERITHRE -

ENRZEg
ENEZECHNBANEBYIERNTES U
S 4 (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark) ( &% ZE &3
&) ~ B FK % 4 (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells) » 253§
ok MR R AEARK -

ERLZECNBESBRZC TSR ARQ A F
(www.chinafoodsltd.com) & B 32 T 2 [ 4 55 5 | 48
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employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns EZTETRIBHEE
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters of the Company.
During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and the AEEARTTMALH BUEZEGKE 2T
attendance by each committee member is set out below: fEIEREINAT
Attendance/

Number of Meetings
Name of Committee Member ZEEMENRA HEEHERE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark (Chairman) W ERAE (FE) 2/(2)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BB EE 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FRPTE 2/(2)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANEE 2/(2)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit
committee during the year:

e reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013;

e reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2014;

e reviewed matters relating to the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices;

e reviewed continuing connected transactions;

e reviewed external auditors’ management letter;

e reviewed the internal audit results and the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems;

e approved the internal audit plan for the year 2014;

e reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their

training programs;

e made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditors of the Company;

e reviewed updates on the improvement of the Company’s
finance function;

e reviewed the audit fee proposal for the Group for the year
2014;

e reviewed and approved the engagement of the external audit
to provide non-audit service; and

e met with the external auditors to discuss the general scope
of their audit work for the financial year ended 31 December
2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee currently consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis who is the chairman of this committee,
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark and Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells and
two non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Xubo and Mr. Wang
Zhiying. Mr. Wang was appointed to replace Mr. Chi Jingtao who
had resigned as a non-executive Director and a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 10 November 2014.

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on
the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
The duties of the remuneration committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual non-executive Directors.

—+ \l:ljb
EE2L 82w

NEEE
HNEZESEBEAGNEENK BIE=ZRE
FPTES TARANEE(BZZEENER)
7377245 A (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark) & &i%5k 55
A (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells) : A K @ & 3E# 1T &
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During the year, the remuneration committee held two meetings KEEARTTMALH BUZEEKE 2T
and the attendance by each committee member is set out below: fEIEREINAT
Attendance/
Note Number of Meetings
Name of Committee Member EEENEHSE {hg=2 HEEHRE
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Chairman) RANLGE (FE) 2/(2)
Mr. Chi Jingtao ERREE 0/(2)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark ML fEE A 2/(2)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BiRE A 2/(2)
Mr. Yu Xubo TR %4 2/(2)
Mr. Wang Zhiying TR%AE 1 N/A 73

Note:

1. Both meetings of the Nomination Committee were held prior to the
appointment of Mr. Wang Zhiying as a member on 10 November
2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
remuneration committee during the year:

e made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
package of a re-designated executive Director;

e reviewed the Company's remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management;

e made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
package of a newly appointed non-executive Director (whose
director’s remuneration is nil); and

e made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
package of a re-appointed independent non-executive
Director.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee currently consists of three members,
including a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yu Xubo who
is the chairman of this committee and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr.
Yuen Tin Fan, Francis.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the website of the Company (www.chinafoodsltd.com) and the
HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
The duties of nomination committee are mainly to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identify suitable
candidates for appointment as directors; make recommendations
to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors; and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and review whether
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are spending enough time to fulfill their duties
annually.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the nomination committee held two meetings
and the attendance by each committee member is set out below:

—+ \l:ljb
EE2L 82w

RBEZTET @)
AEERNBEFTMAES SNEBEREZE
RIS R BT -

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

Name of Committee Member EEEREHA HE g
Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) FIBREE (£/E) 2/(2)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred FRBLEE 2/(2)
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RRALEE 2/(2)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
nomination committee during the year:

e made recommendations to the Board on the re-designation
of a non-executive Director to an executive Director;

e made recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of a non-executive Director and the re-appointment of an
independent non-executive Director;

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
and

e assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and reviewed whether non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) were
spending enough time to fulfill their duties.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is committed to presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s affairs to its
shareholders and the public in accordance with all applicable
statutory requirements.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s
external auditors are set out below:

Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE
EELET W
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NEBREIINT

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered FriR LB AR 75 2t/ EBANER
HK$'000

T T

Audit services EaT RS 3,223
Non-audit services* IEE T ARS 920
Total AEF 4,143

*  Such services included, among others, interim review and
compliance review relating to continuing connected transactions.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsible for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system and for reviewing
its effectiveness, in particularly in respect of controls on
financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
The management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls system,
while the audit committee, on behalf of the Board, assesses the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems of
the Group by reviewing the work of the audit and supervision
department and its findings.

A sound system of internal controls is designed to provide
reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Company’s internal control system was developed based
on the principles of the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) for internal controls,
and has five components, namely Control Environment; Risk
Assessment; Control Activities; Information and Communication;
and Monitoring. In developing our internal control system based
on the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration of our
organisational structure and the nature of our business activities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

The audit and supervision department (“ASD”) conducts regular
and independent reviews of the effectiveness of the internal
controls of the Group and risk-based audits on the business
operations of the Group in accordance with the annual audit plan
approved by the audit committee at the beginning of each year.
The ASD communicates with the management the audit findings
and recommendations for remedial actions, and performs follow
up to confirm that the implementation of remedial actions by the
management occurred. The audit committee reviews the findings
and opinion of the ASD on the review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control systems and risk management
semiannually and reports any material issues to the Board.

The audit committee, as delegated by the Board, reviews the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
in the Group's accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programs and budget on an annual basis.

In respect 2014, the Board has reviewed, through the Audit
Committee, the work of the ASD and audit findings in relation
to internal controls and considered that efforts had been made
to improve the effectiveness of internal controls of the Group
during the year. The Audit Committee also considers that
the qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions, their training
programmes, and the budget and resources available to these
functions are adequate.

In addition, an email link was set up for employees to express
their opinion or concern about the Group’s operations directly to
the managing director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not
less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update
her skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING OF SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETINGS ON REQUISITION BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Bye-law 68 and section 74 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, shareholders shall have a right to request
the Board to convene a special general meeting of the Company
(“SGM"). Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-
tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company may send a
written requisition to the Board of the Company to request for
convene a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company. The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from the
said date.

A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors.

PROCEDURES FOR MAKING PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(a) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the members of the

Company; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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SHAR EHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

PROCEDURES FOR MAKING PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than
six weeks before the general meeting (in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution) or not less than one week before
the general meeting (in case of any other requisition). The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangement once a valid requisition is received.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTOR’S NOMINATION
AND ELECTION BY SHAREHOLDERS

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the head office of the Company at
33/F., Top Glory Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, (a) a written notice signed by such shareholder
(other than the proposed person) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and (b) a written notice by the proposed person
indicating his/her willingness to be elected together with the
personal information of the proposed person as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and consent of publication of
his/her personal information.

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given
shall be seven days (or such other period as determined and
announced by the Board). Such period will commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of general meeting and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, once valid notice is received.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

A% B A ()
BERBREXREREEZNER (&)

RIEBEARZYEHIEZNEFLE (AUEEZ
DHEAXHER - BXZREFARE)ERE
MO SBEASN AR AR BEEROREAES
M ARRRREH A DRANER (HREK
RBENBANBFSL) HRBERASHAD R —
EH (M AEAMER) AR AR B EMMER - A
NAREBEARBRER BRIEE T ME
s E 2k

BRREBREESENIERF

RPN RAGRARIEETUAINOALS
REE ARERRARXR (B ERAERHEZ
RRERIAE EREHRIR (H5RH AL A5
MAL)BRERRBRAFBRBZALSE R(Db)
ZWRAATRERRBEEZENETHRNER
RIEBELEWRAEISEIQEKERALTNEAER
ETEEFABHORBEEEARR AL it
REB RS S TITE26255 W5 F 5 033418 -

AL EBMNSEASER (LABEEER
ELREMNEMHRE) AEMEHIRRRASE
SFEBEMG RREXRBEBRRAS A M
T AR ARBREBEMFRER  BSHRIVE
ETBRELSERYE-



SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communicate
with shareholders, both individual and institutional, and the
Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted by the
Company on 30 March 2012 to ensure the shareholders and
potential investors are provided with the Company’s information
in a timely and effective manner.

The means to communicate with the shareholders and the
investment community used by the Company including the
following:

i. corporate communications such as annual reports,
interim reports and circulars are issued in printed form
and are available on the HKExnews website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(www.chinafoodsltd.com);

ii. corporate announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the HKExnews website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website;

iii. corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

iv. annual and special general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and management executives; and

v. Tricor Progressive Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together
with his/her contact details, such as postal address, email
address or fax number, via the company secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., Top Glory Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380
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SHAR EHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’'s Memorandum of
Association and Bye-Laws during the financial year 2014. A
copy of the latest consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws is available on the website of the
Company and the HKExnews website of the Stock Exchange.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The mission and strategic objectives of investor relations function
have been clearly defined as follows:

Mission:

Through transparent and fair disclosure to facilitate mutual
understanding between investors and the Company with a view
to realise the full value of the Company.

Strategic objectives:

1) to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant
in the branded consumer foods industry in China in line with
our strategic direction and our strategic positioning within
the group of COFCO Corporation;

2) to build a long-term and trusting shareholder base that is
willing to grow with us; and

3) to understand the key concerns of the investment
community and provide timely feedback to management.

In 2014, we have effectively bridging the Company and the
investment community through regular communications such as
results announcements, post-results roadshows, conferences,
one-on-one meetings, group meetings, conference calls, and
e-mails, etc to enhance their knowledge and understanding of
the Company. Look forward to continuous improvement and
more efficient communication with the investment community to
ensure the Company’s sustainable development and to enhance
shareholder values.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) present
their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2014, which were approved by the
Board on 24 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries and associated
companies operates four principal businesses involving
beverage, wine, kitchen food and confectionery.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to
252.

The Board did not declare interim dividend for the six months
ended 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: Nil) and did not
recommend the payment of final dividend (31 December 2013:
Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 2 June
2015, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 1 June 2015 to Tuesday, 2 June 2015, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the above meeting, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Progressive Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29 May 2015.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 253. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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EEEHE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 November
2006 (the “Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the resolution passed
by the Board on 28 March 2011, the vesting and exercise
periods for the options granted under the Option Scheme have
been modified. The following are the principle terms of the
Option Scheme:

1. PURPOSE OF THE OPTION SCHEME

To attract, retain and motivate senior management
personnel and key employees of the Company, and to
provide eligible participants with an opportunity to acquire
interests in the Company so as to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

2. PARTICIPANTS OF THE OPTION SCHEME

Participants of the Option Scheme include (i) any executive
or non-executive directors (excluding independent non-
executive directors) of any members of the Group; (i) any
senior executives, key technical staff, professional staff,
managers and employees of any members of the Group; or
(iii) any other individuals as may be proposed by the Board.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

ME BB MREMEDE

KRB RAEBRANFERNZYE  BE MR
LIREYMEEH 2FH15 DAENEGRE P HRE
PfsF145215 °

RN
ARBMNAFERAZBAZEFEMAERES
PR 75 R MY RE30 ©

B8 I RT &

ARER20065F11 A21 BRI RAERT S (TR
fEETEl ) - RBEEEN201153 28R MBH —
TR BRERT 8 TR B R BT
ERIERT - AT REBEE & 2 =R IR:

1. BREFEZEB

el BB AR SREREBAERE
ZRE FEERSEBFZUEARRBARE

AR SEEERBEBERNNRART
REBRERN G RBAARRRERNZE
=

2. BRRESEZ2RE
MR B2 2 EE BIE()RE B A [ KA
DEZ EMPTRIFNTES (BT REBY
FFMITES) : (DAREEFKE D2
BHRITHAR EBERMAS FEAE &
8 T AR B 5 o (i) B B A AL 2 A H
AL



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
3. TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE

FOR ISSUE UNDER THE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Option
Scheme and the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) are
in aggregate equal to 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of adoption of the Option Scheme, i.e.
178,508,197 shares.

As at 31 December 2014, a total of 25,700,000 shares may
be issued by the Company if all share options which were
granted under the Option Scheme have been exercised,
representing approximately 0.92% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
PARTICIPANT UNDER THE OPTION
SCHEME

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any grantee (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue (the “Individual Limit") at the relevant time. Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit shall
be subject to shareholders’ approval with such grantee and
his associates abstaining from voting.

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH AN OPTION MUST
BE EXERCISED

The directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which an option may be exercised, save that
in any event such period of time shall not exceed a period
of seven years commencing on the date of acceptance of
the option and expiring on the last date of such seven-year
period, subject to early termination thereof as provided in
the Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

6.

MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE
EXERCISED

An option must be held for a minimum period of two years
from the date of grant before it can be exercised.

The options granted on 27 September 2007 are subject to
the following vesting schedule:

RS )
6. BRETENLEREZREHR

BRENMTEMNEABREBEHEREREM
FEEAE o

20079 A27 B R EMBREAX AT RS
By A R R ) -

Maximum percentage
of options which
may be exercised

Periods REATE
HAE BEREZABNL
— Upon and after the second anniversary of the grant -AERL AR E_RAERELE

until the third anniversary of the grant EZRAF 33%
— Upon and after the third anniversary of the grant - AL AR EZRAERELE

until the fourth anniversary of the grant EMAF 67%
— Upon and after the fourth anniversary of the grant - REBBRAENATRER 100%

The options granted after 28 March 2011 are subject to the MR20114E3 A28 B LATE % (H B0 BB AR A RIZE 2 A

following new vesting schedule: TR B R RS

Maximum percentage
of options which
may be exercised
Periods R EATE
i) EREZEN L

— Upon and after the second anniversary of the grant -BRLABRFTE_RAEREEE
until the third anniversary of the grant EZRAF 20%

— Upon and after the third anniversary of the grant -BEREEHRHE=ZAFRERE
until the fourth anniversary of the grant EMAF 40%

— Upon and after the fourth anniversary of the grant -BREEHRHENRERERS
until the fifth anniversary of the grant BERREF 60%

— Upon and after the fifth anniversary of the grant -BREEBRHERAFRAERE
until the sixth anniversary of the grant ERNAF 80%

~ Upon and after the sixth anniversary of the grant -BREHBRFEAAFRERE
until the seventh anniversary of the grant ELAF 100%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
7. TIME OF ACCEPTANCE AND THE AMOUNT

PAYABLE ON ACCEPTANCE OF THE
OPTION

The offer of an option made pursuant to the Option Scheme
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer
and the amount payable on acceptance of the option is
HK$1.

BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE EXERCISE
PRICE

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
shall be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the date of the offer; (b) the average closing prices of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; or (c) the nominal value of a
share.

DURATION OF THE OPTION SCHEME
The Option Scheme is valid until 20 November 2016.

10.MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share options during the
year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:
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Number of share options

BRANNE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise Exercise
Name or category Date of grantof ~ 01.01.2014 during during during  31.12.2014 period of price of
of participants share options 20145 the year the year the year 20145  share options  share options
SHERERER FHERERS 1A1H FREH FERiTHE FREH 12A318 BRECESR BRETEE
HK$
B
Current Directors
RiRES
Mr. Ning Gaoning 27.09.2007 880,000 - - (880,000) - 27.09.2009 - 4952
ERELE (Note 1) 26.09.2014
(PEFED)
29.03.2011 740,000 - - - 740,000  29.03.2013 - 4910
28.03.2018
Ms. Liu Ding 29.03.2011 600,000 - - - 600,000  29.03.2013 - 4910
MT &+ 28.03.2018
PEELRAERA A
—Z—MFER
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) IS )
10.MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 10.BBEEZ B ) (&)

Number of share options

MERNHE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise Exercise
Name or category Date of grantof ~ 01.01.2014 during during during  31.12.2014 period of price of
of participants share options 20145 the year the year the year 20145  share options  share options
SHEREZRER FHERERS 1A1H ENEH FRTE EREH 12A318 BREGESR BRETEE
HK$
B
Mr. Ma Jianping 27.09.2007 320,000 - - (320,000) - 27.09.2009 - 4952
FRYELE (Note 1) 26.09.2014
(ML)
29.03.2011 600,000 - - - 600,000  29.03.2013 - 4910
28.03.2018
Ms. Wu Wenting 27.09.2007 280,000 - - (280,000) - 27.09.2009 - 4952
RNELT (Note 1) 26.09.2014
(D)
29.03.2011 600,000 - - - 600,000  29.03.2013 - 4910
28.03.2018
Former Directors
HREEE
Mr. Chi Jingtao (Note 2) 29.03.2011 740,000 - - - 740,000  29.03.2013 - 4910
ERBLE (HE2) 28.03.2018
Other employees 27.09.2007 7,549,400 - - (7,549,400) - 27.09.2009 - 4952
HitfE g (Note 1) 26.09.2014
(B#ED)
29.03.2011 23,620,000 - - (1,200,000) 22,420,000  29.03.2013 - 4910
(Note 3) 28.03.2018
(Mi3)
Total
oy 35,929,400 - - (10,229,400) 25,700,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
10.MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

1. The share options which were granted on 27 September 2007
have lapsed on 27 September 2014 due to the expiry of the
exercise period.

2. Mr. Chi Jingtao resigned as a non-executive Directors with
effect from 10 November 2014.

3. The options lapsed during the year upon the resignations of
certain employees of the Company in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
HK$5,004,912,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 5% of the Group’s total sales were
attributable to the Group'’s five largest customers. Approximately
49% of the Group’s total purchases were attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers, with the largest supplier
accounting for approximately 39%.

Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder,
COFCO Corporation, which is one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”)
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the other four

largest suppliers or the five largest customers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

S

RAFEARBEARARERH EFMT:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: BITES:

Mr. Jiang Guojin Tl & 54

Ms. Wu Wenting RNBLZT

Mr. Lu Xiaohui IR ST
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: EHITESE:
Mr. Yu Xubo (Chairman) FHEEAE (EE)
Mr. Ning Gaoning ERELE

Ms. Liu Ding MT &t

Mr. Chi Jingtao (e D B BUE 4 4 (D
Mr. Ma Jianping BETEE

Mr. Wang Zhiying (Note2) T2 &g (WED
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: BIAEHITES:

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells

HT 3772 % A4 (Mr. Stephen Edward Clark )
B3R TN S 4 (Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells)

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred P Ep
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RANEAE
Notes: B 5 -

1. Mr. Chi Jingtao has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 10 November 2014.

2. Mr. Wang Zhiying has been appointed as a non-executive Director
with effect from 10 November 2014.

1. BRELELCEIHNTES N2014F11A10R

ER e

2. FZRFACDEZERIENITES N2014511H

10H AR -

FRTESRBLIFATEFTARERTFY-

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed with specific terms.

BEBEARRARARAAEILAIG SUEERRD
B=FHERE R B RRNLEESRAS
RUIZBREFASLRE ATAEBLESR
BEEL-

Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years as required by bye-law 111(A) of the
Company’s bye-laws. Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis
will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

According to bye-law 94 of the Company’s bye-laws, any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director to the Board shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
be subject to election at such meeting. In this regard, Mr. Wang
Zhiying who has been appointed as a non-executive Director to
fill the casual vacancy to the Board during the year retired and,
being eligible, offered himself for election at the first general
meeting of the Company which held on 30 December 2014 after
his appointment and being elected by the shareholders of the
Company at the general meeting as a non-executive Director.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and the Company considered all of them to be independent.
The nomination committee of the Board also reviewed their
independence at a meeting held in November 2014.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company's Directors and Senior
Management are set out on pages 30 to 39 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the Group’s business to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is authorised by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The directors’ emoluments
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation by
the remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their
job complexity, workload and responsibilities and the Company’s
remuneration policy.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR OPTIONS

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
issued any convertible securities, warrants or options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as recorded in the register of interests of
the Company required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO;
or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained
in the Listing Rules (collectively the “Discloseable Interests”)
were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND

Report of the Directors
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SERRD MBERGD 2 =&

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND KB ()
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
(A) DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS IN THE (A) R AR R 2 B RABRARL 10 < B
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF BHER
THE COMPANY
Total number
Number of of shares and Approximate
underlying underlying percentage of
Capacity/ Number of shares held shares held issued shares
Name of Director  Nature of Interest shares held FristEE FrElR R HEBTROB
EENA VA A Rl & B s A HE A B 1 4B 2 BMABE DL
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(PE&E1) (M&EE2) (PiE3)
Mr. Ning Gaoning  Beneficial Owner - 740,000 740,000 0.03%
ERELE EmERA
Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 326,000 - 326,000 0.01%
TE®EE EEEBA
Ms. Liu Ding Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
MT &+t E=EBA
Mr. Ma Jianping Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
BEEEE EmEA A
Ms. Wu Wenting Beneficial Owner - 600,000 600,000 0.02%
RN L Em#EA A
Mr. Paul Kenneth Beneficial Owner 200,000 - 290,000 0.01%
Etchells EoEE A
BRI A&
Interest of Spouse 90,000 -
Ao B =
Notes: M E -

1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible

bonds.

2. Long positions in the underlying shares of the Company under
share options granted to Directors pursuant to the Option

Scheme.

3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2014, i.e.

2,797,223,396 shares.

1. ARREG2HR (RADTET BEINERE -
AR A A B IRERIN) o

2. BREBEEABNEETRHNBRERTAR
FMEB R TR -

3. BOLTDREARRK22014512A31R 2 2%
ﬂHx1 7488 (BN2,797,223,396R% B 19 ) 3T 5 -

R
- =
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

(B)JDISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF AN
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION, CHINA AGRI-
INDUS]TRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED (“CHINA
AGRI”

s =MD MBI D 2

KB ()

(B) X — X tBE: LB (S B MR
BRAF ([HhEEH]) ) ZBRME
HERD ZBREESR

Total number Approximate

Number of of shares and percentage of
underlying underlying issued shares
Capacity/ Number of shares held shares held L2
Name of Director  Nature of Interest  shares held ErftE R & B% 1 B HE 43
EEHA B HEEE ERGEEA B8 E HE A BZ 10 AR 2 Btk
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Pi&EET) (Pi&EE2) (Pi=E3)
Mr. Ning Gaoning  Beneficial Owner - 636,000 636,000 0.01%
ERELE EEEAA
Mr. Yu Xubo Beneficial Owner - 636,000 871,364 0.02%
TR A& EmERA
Interest of Spouse 235,364
A Bk
Mr. Jiang Guojin Beneficial Owner 100 - 100 0.00%
TES LA EmEBA
Mr. Wang Zhiying ~ Beneficial Owner
FrRaEE BEoEE A 39,000 583,000 622,000 0.01%
Notes: B 5T

1. Long positions in the shares of China Agri, other than equity
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible
bonds.

2. Long positions in the underlying shares of China Agri under
share options granted to Directors pursuant to a share option
scheme of China Agri.

3. The percentages were calculated based on the total number
of shares of China Agri in issue as at 31 December 2014, i.e.,
5,249,880,788 shares.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors nor their associates had any other Discloseable
Interests.
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T EAR M E A A AR K48
BAR (0 < ez KB

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and PIZE336MEIEHEN AR RIFE 2 =LA -
3 of Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests FEBRRRARRBRMD RAEERG 2w AR
of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the O

SFO, were as follows:

MR2014F12A318 ' IRIFEFFH K E GBI EXVER
FOREIDEMAMEARA R : shAREE S M E &

AGGREGATE LONG POSITIONS IN THE RARNF KRG RBERG ZIFEEH

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY
Number of shares held (Note 1)
FrisB 8 B (Ki&EE)
Approximate
Through percentage of
Directly controlled issued shares
Name of beneficially corporations LE T
substantial shareholder owned EiB Total % 19 RO R 45
FTERRZR BEEEEHA ZHEEE R Bt
(Note 2)
(Ht&E2)
Wide Smart Holdings Limited 1,922,550,331 - 1,922,550,331 68.73%
COFCO (BVI) No. 108 Limited 140,000,000 - 140,000,000 5.00%
COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited 10,138,000 2,062,550,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
HIEEE (F8)BRAA (Note 3)
(MF5E3)
COFCO Corporation - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
FREEEBERAR (Note 4)
(P 3E4)
FERGARA R
—T—FH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

AGGREGATE LONG POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

1. Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds.

2. The percentages were calculated based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2014, i.e.
2,797,223,396 shares.

3. COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)") was deemed to be
interested in 2,062,550,331 shares in aggregate held by Wide
Smart Holdings Limited (“Wide Smart”) and COFCO (BVI) No. 108
Limited (“COFCO (BVI) 108") which were wholly-owned subsidiaries
of COFCO (HK).

4.  COFCO Corporation was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331
shares in aggregate held by Wide Smart, COFCO (BVI) 108 and
COFCO (HK) which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of COFCO
Corporation.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of substantial shareholders and
other persons who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

— BANKING FACILITY WITH COVENANT
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the Directors of the Company report the following
loan facilities which entered during the year and up to the
date of this report and included a condition relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholder of the Company.

1.

On 11 September 2013, the Company, as borrower, entered
into a facility agreement (the “A Facility Agreement”)
with two financial institutions as mandated lead arrangers
and lenders (the “Lenders”) and one of the financial
institutions as agent (the “Agent”). Pursuant to the A Facility
Agreement, a term loan facility in an aggregate sum of
HK$1,100,000,000 (the “A Facility”) is made available by
the Lenders to the Company on the terms and conditions
contained therein. The final maturity date of the A Facility
shall be thirty-six months after the date of the A Facility
Agreement.

Pursuant to the A Facility Agreement, it will be an event
of default, inter alia, if (a) the Company is not or ceases to
be a direct or indirect subsidiary of COFCO Corporation; or
COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to be the single largest
and controlling shareholder of the Company or does not or
ceases to hold the majority voting rights in the Company; or
(b) COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to be wholly-owned
(direct or indirect) by or controlled (directly or indirectly) by
the State Council of the People’s Republic of China.

On and at any time after an event of default has occurred
and is continuing the Agent may, and shall if so directed by
the Lenders whose aggregate participations in the A Facility
then outstanding are 66-2/3% or more of such A Facility, by
notice to the Company: (a) cancel the total commitments or
any part of any commitment under the A Facility Agreement;
(b) declare that the all or part of the loans made under the A
Facility together with accrued interest, and all other amounts
accrued or outstanding under the A Facility Agreement be
immediately due and payable; and/or (c) declare that all or
part of the loans made under the A Facility be payable on
demand.
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

— BANKING FACILITY WITH COVENANT
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

(continued)

2. 0On 17 March 2014, the Company entered into a facility
agreement (the “B Facility Agreement”) relating to a term
loan facility in an aggregate sum of HK$700,000,000 (or
its US$ equivalent) (the “B Facility”) to be made available
to the Company, as borrower. The maturity date of the B
Facility shall be thirty-six months after the date of the B
Facility Agreement.

Pursuant to the B Facility Agreement, it will be an event of
default, inter alia, if (a) COFCO Corporation is not or ceases
to be the single largest and ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company or does not or ceases to own directly or
indirectly at least 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company; or (b) COFCO Corporation is not or ceases to
be a company under the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China.

On and at any time after an event of default has occurred
and is continuing Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as the
agent may, and shall if so directed by a lender or lenders
whose aggregate participations in the loans made under the
B Facility (the “Loans”) then outstanding aggregate are more
than 66-2/3% of such Loans, by notice to the Company:
(a) cancel all or any part of the commitments under the B
Facility Agreement; (b) declare that the all or part of the
Loans together with accrued interest, and all other amounts
accrued or outstanding under the B Facility Agreement be
immediately due and payable; and/or (c) declare that all or
part of the Loans be payable on demand.

DIVIDEND RESTRICTION IN BANKING
FACILITY

The B Facility Agreement contains a financial covenant that no
more than 20% of the Company’s distributable profits in each
financial year are paid by way of dividend during the term of the
B Facility.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group, in the ordinary and usual course of
business, conducted various transactions with certain connected
persons of the Company including COFCO Corporation
(“COFCQ"), the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (for the purpose of this section, excluding
the Group, collectively the “COFCO Group”) and associates of
COFCO.

1. BEVERAGE BASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 21 November 2011, the Company and Tianjin Jin Mei
Beverage Company Limited (“Tianjin Jin Mei”), a connected
person of the Company, entered into a beverage base
purchase agreement for a term of three years commenced
from 1 January 2012 and expired on 31 December 2014
(the “Beverage Base Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Beverage Base Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from Tianjin Jin
Mei shall purchase beverage bases from Tianjin Jin Mei
at prices determined by Coca-Cola Beverages (Shanghai)
Company Limited (“Coca-Cola (Shanghai)”). Details of the
Beverage Base Purchase Agreement were disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 21 November 2011
(the “2011 Announcement”).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to Tianjin Jin Mei for the
purchase of beverage bases was approximately RMB23
million.

2. CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 21 November 2011, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai), a connected person of the Company, entered
into a concentrate purchase agreement for a term of three
years commenced from 1 January 2012 and expired on 31
December 2014 (the “Concentrate Purchase Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates from Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) at prices determined by Coca-Cola (Shanghai).
Details of the Concentrate Purchase Agreement were
disclosed in the 2011 Announcement and a circular of the
Company dated 12 December 2011 (the “2011 Circular”).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to Coca-Cola (Shanghai) for the
purchase of concentrates was approximately RMB1,144
million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3. STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE

AGREEMENT

On 21 November 2011, the Company and Coca-Cola
Bottlers Manufacturing (Dongguan) Co. Ltd. (“Coca-Cola
(Dongguan)”), a connected person of the Company, entered
into a still beverages purchase agreement for a term of
three years commenced from 1 January 2012 and expired
on 31 December 2014 (the “Still Beverages Purchase
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Still Beverages Purchase
Agreement, members of the Group with prior written
approval from The Coca-Cola Company shall purchase still
beverages from the Coca-Cola (Dongguan) and its associates
(the “Coca-Cola (Dongguan) Group”) for distribution and
resale within designated areas in the PRC. Details of the Still
Beverages Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the 2011
Announcement and the 2011 Circular.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola (Dongguan)
Group for the purchase of still beverages was approximately
RMB1,795 million.

. ZIJIANG PROVISION OF PACKAGING

MATERIALS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 21 November 2011, Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages Co.,
Ltd. (the “Tianjin Bottler”), a deemed subsidiary of the
Company, and Tianjin Shifa Zijiang Packaging Co., Ltd.
(“Zijiang™), a connected person of the Company, entered
into a provision of packaging materials and services
agreement for a term of three years commenced from 1
January 2012 and expired on 31 December 2014 (the
“Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials and Services
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Zijiang Provision of Packaging
Materials and Services Agreement, Zijiang shall supply
packaging materials and provide conversion services to
Tianjin Bottler. Details of the Zijiang Provision of Packaging
Materials and Services Agreement were disclosed in the
2011 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total amount
paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to Zijiang for the purchase
of packaging materials and conversion services was
approximately RMB39 million.
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ERgHRE
CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5. COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION OF PRODUCTS 5. HIEE m R R B4t K=

AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 21 November 2011, the Company and COFCO entered
into a mutual provision of products and services agreement
for a term of three years commenced from 1 January
2012 and expired on 31 December 2014 (the “COFCO
Mutual Provision of Products and Services Agreement”).
Pursuant to the COFCO Mutual Provision of Products and
Services Agreement, the COFCO Group and associates
of COFCO shall supply certain oil products and other
raw materials, consumer products, packaging materials
and other products owned, manufactured, or resold by
the COFCO Group and associates of COFCO and provide
property leasing and other services to the Group while
the Group shall supply certain bulk edible oils and other
raw materials and consumer products and other products
owned, manufactured, or resold by the Group and provide
information technology services and other services to the
COFCO Group and associates of COFCO. In addition, the
COFCO Group and associates of COFCO shall reimburse
the Group for the expenses (the “Promotion and Sales and
Distribution Expenses”) in connection with the promotion
or sale and distribution of certain products supplied by the
COFCO Group and associates of COFCO. The Promotion
and Sales and Distribution Expenses shall first be paid by
the Group and then reimbursed by the COFCO Group and
associates of COFCO. Details of the COFCO Mutual Provision
of Products and Services Agreement were disclosed in the
2011 Announcement and the 2011 Circular.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total amount
paid/payable by the Group to COFCO Group and associates
of COFCO for the purchase of raw materials, products,
services and others was approximately RMB6,755 million;
the total amount paid/payable by COFCO Group and
associates of COFCO to the Group for the purchase of raw
materials, products, services and others was approximately
RMB242 million; and no promotion and Sales and
Distribution Expenses were incurred.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

6. FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 5 September 2014, the Company and COFCO Finance
Corporation Limited (“COFCO Finance”), a connected
person of the Company, entered into a financial services
agreement for a term commenced from 5 September 2014
and expired on 31 December 2014 (the “Financial Services
Agreement”). Pursuant to which, COFCO Finance has
agreed to provide the Group (i) depository services; and
(i) fund transfer services. Details of the Financial Services
Agreement were disclosed in an announcement of the
Company dated 5 September 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the maximum daily
deposit amount (including accrued interests) placed by the
Group with COFCO Finance was approximately HK$267
million.

2014 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION OF
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and COFCO entered
into a mutual provision of products and services agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2015
and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the “2014 COFCO
Mutual Provision of Products and Services Agreement”).
Pursuant to the 2014 COFCO Mutual Provision of Products
and Services Agreement, the COFCO Group and COFCO’s
associates shall supply certain raw materials, consumer
products, packaging materials and other products owned,
manufactured, or resold by the COFCO Group and COFCQO’s
associates and provide property leasing and other services
to the Group while the Group shall supply certain consumer
products and other products owned, manufactured, or
resold by the Group and provide information technology
services and other services to the COFCO Group and
COFCO’s associates. The annual caps in respect of (a) the
supply of products, raw materials, packaging materials,
services and others by the COFCO Group and COFCO’s
associates to the Group for the years ending 31 December
2015, 2016 and 2017 will be RMB19,902 million,
RMB24,497 million and RMB28,620 million, respectively;
and (b) the supply of consumer products, services and
others by the Group to the COFCO Group and COFCO's
associates for the years ending 31 December 2015, 2016
and 2017 will be RMB465 million, RMB714 million and
RMB1,071 million, respectively. Details of the 2014 COFCO
Mutual Provision of Products and Services Agreement were
disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 8
December 2014 (the “2014 Announcement”) and a circular
of the Company dated 10 December 2014.
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Report of the Directors

ERgHRE
CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

8. 2014 BEVERAGE BASE PURCHASE 8. 2014F B A E W R B =&

AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Tianjin Jin Mei
entered into a beverage base purchase agreement for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2015 and
expiring on 31 December 2017 (the “2014 Beverage Base
Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014 Beverage
Base Purchase Agreement, members of the Group with
prior written approval from Tianjin Jin Mei shall purchase
beverage bases from Tianjin Jin Mei at prices determined
by Coca-Cola (Shanghai). The annual caps in respect of
the purchase of the beverage bases by the Group for the
years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 will be
RMB120 million, RMB138 million and RMB159 million,
respectively. Details of the 2014 Beverage Base Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.

. 2014 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE
AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) entered into a concentrate purchase agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the “2014
Concentrate Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014
Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members of the Group
with prior written approval from Coca-Cola (Shanghai)
shall purchase concentrates from Coca-Cola (Shanghai) at
prices determined by Coca-Cola (Shanghai). The annual
caps in respect of the purchase of the concentrates by
the Group for the years ending 31 December 2015, 2016
and 2017 will be RMB2,226 million, RMB2,560 million
and RMB2,945 million, respectively. Details of the 2014
Concentrate Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the
2014 Announcement.
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EEEHE

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

10.2014 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE

11.

AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, the Company and Coca-Cola
Bottlers Management Service (Shanghai) Limited (“Coca-
Cola Bottlers (Shanghai)”), a connected person of the
Company, entered into a still beverages purchase agreement
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the “2014 Still
Beverages Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014
Still Beverages Purchase Agreement, certain members
of the Group shall purchase still beverages from the
Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) for distribution and resale
within designated areas in the PRC. The annual caps
in respect of the purchase of the still beverages by the
Group for the years ending 31 December 2015, 2016 and
2017 will be RMB3,986 million, RMB4,783 million and
RMB5,740 million, respectively. Details of the 2014 Still
Beverages Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the 2014
Announcement.

2014 ZIJIANG PROVISION OF PACKAGING
MATERIALS AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2014, Tianjin Bottler and Zijiang entered
into a provision of packaging materials and services
agreement for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017 (the
“2014 Zijiang Provision of Packaging Materials and Services
Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2014 Zijiang Provision of
Packaging Materials and Services Agreement, Zijiang shall
supply packaging materials and provide conversion services
and other services to Tianjin Bottler. The annual caps in
respect of the packaging materials and related services
supplied by Zijiang for the years ending 31 December 2015,
2016 and 2017 will be RMB70 million, RMB80 million and
RMB100 million, respectively. Details of the 2014 Zijiang
Provision of Packaging Materials and Services Agreement
were disclosed in the 2014 Announcement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION ENTERED INTO BY THE
GROUP IN 2015 UP TO THE DATE OF
THE 2014 ANNUAL REPORT

1. NEW FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 29 January 2015, the Company and COFCO Finance
entered into a financial services agreement for a term
commencing from 29 January 2015 and expiring on 31
December 2015 (the “New Financial Services Agreement”).
Pursuant to which, COFCO Finance shall provide the Group
(i) depository services; and (i) fund transfer services. Details
of the New Financial Services Agreement were disclosed in
an announcement of the Company dated 29 January 2015.
The maximum daily deposit amount (including accrued
interests) to be placed by the Group with COFCO Finance
for the year ending 31 December 2015 shall not exceed
HK$300 million.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions numbered 1 to 6 disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 6
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the report of the
Company’s auditors, and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.
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EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in any business which is likely to compete directly
or indirectly with that of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 57 to 76 of
this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB9 million.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditors of the
Company the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 and has also discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters, including the review of
the accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young shall retire and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-appointment at the forth coming annual general meeting,
a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

YU Xubo
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2015
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To the shareholders of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Foods Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 252, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS” RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

24 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

4= =~ Y3 iﬁ %
IIVT E ﬁl * N
Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZ 2014 F 12 831 BItF/E
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M e FET TET
REVENUE 1PN 5 26,742,163 26,218,351
Cost of sales SHE PR (20,437,500) (20,934,425)
Gross profit EF 6,304,663 5,283,926
Other income and gains H b U A R Wz 5 421,495 329,970
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko iHZ i (5,664,478) (5,078,837)
Administrative expenses 1T (751,639) (884,645)
Other expenses and losses B> H &EE (83,205) (55,926)
Finance costs Bl & A A 7 (69,844) (103,103)
Share of profits of associates FE i B 2 R B A 93,816 113,916
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREELER (B1E) 6 250,808 (394,699)
Income tax expense FriS#i > H 10 (223,601) (311,798)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEHA(BE) 27,207 (706,497)
Attributable to: FEAG T
Owners of the parent BAREE A 11 (224,688) (889,634)
Non-controlling interests IR E R 251,895 183,137
27,207 (706,497)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO &/ F] & @R H#E 3%
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BEANEEESRER
THE PARENT 13
Basic HAK (HK8.03 centsi# flll) (HK31.80 cents&fll)
Diluted g (HK8.03 centsi&fll)  (HK31.80 centsi&Ill)

| 17
Op
ot
=

Al

\
1=
A
# o)



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 F 12 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEERM(BR) 27,207 (706,497)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2w
Other comprehensive income to SR AZHEEHR HEE
be reclassified to profit or loss Bms EMmEEBA :
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of & E M3 F A 2
foreign operations EH =% (51,694) 278,033
Share of other comprehensive income/ JE(E —REE AR Et2E
(loss) of an associate WA (E1E) 657 (477)
Net other comprehensive income/ BRABHEETRHEE
(loss) to be reclassified to profit or Bamz Efb
loss in subsequent periods 2EWA (EE)F5E (51,037) 277,556
Other comprehensive income not to B AR ERRAETIEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in Ems EMmEEBA :
subsequent periods:
Gain on property revaluation VI & 2 W
(note 14) (Ht7%14) 7,299 -
Income tax effect FriEti 2 (1,825) -
Net other comprehensive income not A& A% BRI EH
to be reclassified to profit or loss in DEEBmZ
subsequent periods H 2B AFRE 5,474 =
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ SEHtE@E
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, WA (E8)
NET OF TAX (SMBRBIER) (45,563) 277,556
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $E2@E
FOR THE YEAR iR (18,356) (428,941)
Attributable to: JEAE 75 :
Owners of the parent B RBHEE A (262,494) (666,640)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R fE = 244,138 237,699
(18,356) (428,941)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

rE MBI AR

31 December 2014 2014 % 12 431 H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M F#HExT FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EFRBNEE
Property, plant and equipment e S 14 4,700,272 4,881,318
Investment properties BEYE 15 98,331 90,597
Prepaid land premiums TEf tie 16 424,026 396,276
Deposits for purchase of items of BEWE BER
property, plant and equipment REBEE 2 ES 14,286 23,887
Goodwill [ 17 1,742,224 1,746,432
Other intangible assets H & E 18 27,370 40,138
Investments in associates REEE RN A 2 E 20 758,932 704,834
Available-for-sale investments AN ERE 21 214,106 214,129
Deferred tax assets EEN A& EE 29 184,521 134,770
Biological assets EYEE 22 200,806 190,798
Total non-current assets EmEBEERE 8,364,874 8,423,179
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories eSS 23 4,301,418 5,866,205
Accounts and bills receivables JE U BR A % R 24 1,771,192 1,694,757
Prepayments, deposits and other BNRIE e Rk
receivables H fth fE Y5118 1,186,912 1,547,299
Due from fellow subsidiaries EESGIENSIVSEN 37 578,278 704,968
Due from the ultimate holding company &322 &l K K 37 15,202 38,363
Due from the immediate holding E%? H“’“
company 37 171 169
Due from non-controlling shareholders WJ% TZJH % A% 3
of subsidiaries R 37 37,711 26,820
Due from associates Hﬁﬁ@—f@\ AR 20 16,273 21,753
Prepaid tax TR 41,225 44,301
Available-for-sale investments Al SR E 21 399,305 =
Equity investments at fair value through & AF(EF|AEBZ 2
profit or loss BmiEE 25 14,728 13,872
Restricted bank balances IR HISR1T 45 54 26 = 165
Pledged deposits R 17 70 26 162,947 133,655
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEMEER 26 1,356,458 2,458,011
Total current assets MBEERE 9,881,820 12,550,338
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Accounts and bills payables R ERAR R EE 27 1,372,106 1,191,702
Other payables and accruals H b pE TAIE&JEH'ﬁ% 3,368,978 3,626,343
Due to fellow subsidiaries KA %Mﬂ% /m 37 1,253,117 2,343,573
Due to the ultimate holding company — R&x4&3E /%A A1 37 27,915 67,027
Due to related companies N ZEEN /TAIE 37 88,765 799,229
Due to non-controlling shareholders of Wﬂﬁ% TZ#T AR A% 3R
subsidiaries 37 48,103 56,292
Due to associates N sfﬁ @éﬂ E ] 20 154,453 248,369
Interest-bearing bank and other Hs fEﬁ‘é“*h&
borrowings /H\ﬁﬁg 28 1,360,994 2,537,555
Tax payable FE IR 96,784 79,496
Total current liabilities mEBERE 7,771,215 10,949,586
NET CURRENT ASSETS mBEEFE 2,110,605 1,600,752
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERER
LIABILITIES mBaR 10,475,479 10,023,931
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

FEEMBMRAE ()
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fe=E F#ET FATT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT &EEER
LIABILITIES mEAasE 10,475,479 10,023,931
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EFRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHESRITEXR 28 2,100,000 1,600,000
Due to non-controlling shareholders of /& Hff B A &) 2 FE#5 A% i% 3R
subsidiaries FKIE 37 28,446 28,541
Deferred income PR FE UL A 160,613 138,134
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE A B 29 63,873 59,031
Total non-current liabilities FERBAEEEE 2,352,932 1,825,706
Net assets BEFE 8,122,547 8,198,225
EQUITY R A
Equity attributable to owners of BRABE AELEAR
the parent
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 279,722 279,722
Reserves & 32(a) 5,607,927 5,866,253
5,887,649 6,145,975
Non-controlling interests EERER 2,234,898 2,052,250
Total equity % 7N 48 (& 8,122,547 8,198,225

Jiang Guojin LH &
Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in E(_luity

RERAEEHE

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 F 12 A 31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BADHAAELR
Employee
Share  share-based Exchange Asset Non-
Issued premium  compensation Capital Reserve fluctuation revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve funds reserve reserve* profits Total interests equity
RERAEH
ERTRA  RHEER HMiE ERGE e EXRDES REIRER  REEN & FERES BAEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T 7 T T FhL -7 -7 TR TR
Notes (note 30) (note 30) (note 32(a)  (note 32(a))
ik (H&30) (H&30) (i) (M)
At 1 January 2013 201351418 279,719 37,171 36,680 3,246,709 232721 951,605 6910 2,013,620 6,805,135 1,892,851 8,697,986
Profi(loss) for the year FEER/ (B8) - - - - - - - (839,634) (839,634) 183,137 (706,497)
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) /% £ 2EMA/
for the year: (B8):
Exchange differences on BERNEBE
translation of foreign operations ERES - - - - - 23471 - - 23471 54,562 278,033
Share of other comprehensive i -FEBERT
loss of an associate b2 EEE - - - (@7 - - - - (477) - 77
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ FE2 AR/
for the year (Bl g = = = (477) - 223471 - (889,634) (666,640) 237,69 (428,941)
Exercise of share options iiEERE 30 3 19% (50) - - - - - 149 - 149
Equity-settled share option RAEEERE
arrangements ZH 3l - - 7331 - - - - - 7331 - 7331
Transfer of employee share-based  HARRRR iR M3 5 43
compensation reserve upon the BREERILE
forfeiture or expiry of share options & & - - (2,776) - - - - 2,776 - - -
Transfer from retained profits BEREERIER - - - - 16,58 - - (16,586) - - -
Dividends paic to non-controllng ~ FIFERBRE
shareholders RS - - - - - - - - - (78,300) (78,300)
At 31 December 2013 R20135128318 219,722 37,367* 41,185* 3,246,232 249,307 1,175,076* 6,910 1,110,176* 6,145,975 2,052,250 8198,225
At 1 January 2014 R04E1A1R 219,722 37,367 41,185 3,246,232 249,307 1,175,076 6910 1,110,176 6,145,975 2,052,250 8,198,225
Proft(oss) for the year FREH/ (B8 = - - - - - - [224,688) [224,688) 251,895 2,201
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) /& £ 2EMA/
for the year: (E8):
Exchange differences on BERNEBEZ
translation of foreign operations EXER - - - - - 43,937) - - 43,937) (7,757 51,694)
Share of other comprehensive B -EBREAT
income of an associate Efp2EMA - - - 657 - - - - 657 - 657
(Gain on property revaluation, NEEE NG
et of tax (BHBHE) - - - - - - 5,474 - 5,474 - 5,474
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) &2 EMA/
for the year (BR)eE = = - 657 - (43,937 5,474 224,688) 262,494) 2138 (18,356)
Equity-settled share option RAEEERE
anangements ZH 31 - - 4,168 - - - - - 4,168 - 4,168
Transfer of employee share-based MR K E 5|
compensation reserve upon the  BREBRALE
forfelture or expiry of share options ~ Z B - - 15,546) - - - - 15,546 - - -
Transfer from retained profits BREGMER - - - - 1,506 - - [1,506) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controllng ~ FFEERBRAR %
shareholders (&) - - - - - - - - - 61,490) (61,490)
At 31 December 2014 #2014512R31R 219,122 31,367 29,807 3,246,889 250,813° 1,131,139 12,384* 899,528 5,887,649 2,234,898 8,122,547
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREREBRESUVBRARTHES
HK$5,607,927,000 (2013: HK$5,866,253,000) in the consolidated %5,607,927,000/% 7T (20134 : 5,866,253,000/%
statement of financial position. JT) °
#

#  The asset revaluation reserve arose from changes in use from
owner-occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair
value during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2014.

REE2010F k20145612 A31H IEFEAN - BERAY
XEERRENEELNEEERFHERAFES
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRERER

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 F 12 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g T#xT T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATEFR, (E18) 250,808 (394,699)
Adjustments for: FLRFIIE B (B AR
Finance costs A& KA 7 69,844 103,103
Share of profits of associates B B 2 B Al (93,816) (113,916)
Interest income FIE WA 5 (28,453) (25,806)
Dividend income from available-for- AHEEREZ
sale investments A% 2 U A 5 (37,033) (35,823)
Dividend income from equity BRAFEEIABR
investments at fair value through ZIRERERE
profit or loss 2 B B 5 (499) (228)
Fair value losses/(gains) on equity BAFEINAEZRE
investments at fair value through BEnitBE 2 AYE
profit or loss &R, (W) 5,6 (856) 4,874
Fair value losses/(gains) on EYMEEATFE
biological assets EE, (Yezs) 6 (3,105) 5,899
Impairment of receivables, net JE W R IE R (B 5 R 6 31,251 14,143
Equity-settled share option expense AR 7S 45 B B AR RE R 2 6 4,168 7,331
Amortisation of other intangible HimpEeE
assets BN 6 11,487 10,604
Depreciation e 6 498,572 486,088
Fair value gains on investment KEME 2 A TFE
properties & 5 (305) (1,227)
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of S RMEEmE - WE &
property, plant and equipment XEEE 2 EE 6 4,141 4,724
Loss on disposal of biological assets EMEERBEEX 6 - 6,248
Impairment of available-for-sale AHHERE
investments ZRIE 6 - 1,866
Impairment of items of property, Y- BERRBEEE 2
plant and equipment R 6 47,813 18,709
Impairment of goodwill EEEAE 6 - 11,610
Recognition of prepaid land R IE
premiums THE 6 11,357 10,139
Provision against inventories FEEE 6 56,042 122,655
Government grants AT %8 B 5 (227,359) (123,440)
Gain on bargain purchase ELE G 5 (211) -
593,846 112,854

108 China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GERERER (8)

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 4 12 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /(M) 1,510,178 (913,845)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and ~ FEURBR X R 221
bills receivables A () (103,529) 809,768
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BRI Ze Kk
and other receivables H At [l W R IR 391,749 152,579
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due GESENGIVAES
from fellow subsidiaries A () 126,690 (116,333)
Decrease in an amount due from the — HARPEIR A &) R
ultimate holding company N 23,161 40,598
Increase in an amount due from the EES I UNGIVE
immediate holding company 3 0 (2) =
Increase in amounts due from {NEPNE
non-controlling shareholders of FEFE PR AR R
subsidiaries R N (10,891) (7,133)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due RN DS /¢
from associates B (1) 5,480 (17,342)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and  E R N ZE
bills payables g, i) 179,370 (600,104)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables — E 4 fE{ 5018 [ fE=1 & &
and accruals #hn, CR ) (255,897) 578,613
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to /R [&) ZH{ B A B ;A
fellow subsidiaries g, CRd) (1,090,456) 250,328
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due /R & 42 F52 A% /A B ;A
to the ultimate holding company g,/ Crd) (39,112) 8,816
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to /X B8 A 7l FX I8
related companies #m,/ Crd) (710,464) 29,285
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due SN
to non-controlling shareholders of FE 12 R AR 3R 5K IR
subsidiaries =, CRd) (8,284) 19,430
Decrease in amounts due to YN B
associates NRAL (93,916) (8,249)
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EXREH) &
changes, net 7 RE 10,463 40,513
Cash generated from operations KEXEEMEZRE 528,386 379,778
Interest received B U F 2 28,453 25,806
Interest paid B+ F & (69,844) (103,103)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BNEBFER - (1,900)
Chile profits tax refunded BNNSH R 948 -
Mainland China income tax paid BB RS (249,254) (203,167)
Net cash flows from operating REEBEEZ
activities HemFa 238,689 97,414
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

REHERER (B

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 4 12 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g FE T T T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFNZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease in restricted bank balances 2[R R 1T 45 &4 5 4> 165 22,034
Decrease/(increase) in pledged EIRFERORD
deposits (#50) (29,292) 3,266
Dividends received from associates B B &N B IR 49,320 45,618
Dividends received from available-for- 2 W Al fft & &
sale investments ZIRE 37,033 35,823
Dividends received from equity Bz AT EY) ABn
investments at fair value through ZRERRE
profit or loss 2B 499 228
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - KERZEIRE
property, plant and equipment Fr 5 5k8 30,579 25,508
Additional investment in associates B R E 2 BBINEE (8,945) -
Purchases of items of property, plant ~ BEE W% - &=
and equipment &L= 14 (438,285) (710,582)
Additions to other intangible assets HEHMEREE 18 - (93)
Additions to prepaid land premiums TE #2380 16 (42,597) (47,365)
Decrease in deposits for purchase HBEVE BER
of items of property, plant and HBEE 2
equipment REmL 9,601 10,994
Additions to biological assets A& EE SN 22 (12,203) (17,122)
Receipt of government grants W R B 4 B 213,211 175,694
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEHE
investments, net & FRE (399,305) (12,680)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— M B A Rl 33 1,405 =
Net cash flows used in investing KEEEFAZ
activities B e k- (588,814) (468,677)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEFBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM B RIE 30 - 149
New bank borrowings FIIBITER 1,368,050 4,673,288
New other borrowings B EMER 24,579 1,046,334
Repayments of bank borrowings BEEBITER (2,035,162) (3,444,465)
Repayments of other borrowings EEHEMER (33,225) (1,252,285)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ) B B & B FEFE AR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries SR (61,490) (78,300)
Decrease in other payables H b A< FRIER > - (86,796)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMERHELE
financing activities (TR 2B &R F5E (737,248) 857,925

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
GERERER (8)

Year ended 31 December 2014 #Z 2014 4 12 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 TET T T
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeErRFHE&EEEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS G d) B8 (1,087,373) 486,662
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRe kR
beginning of year LEIEE 2,458,011 1,901,294
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREE 2
changes, net FE (14,180) 70,055
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZBERRE
END OF YEAR ZEHEH 1,356,458 2,458,011
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HeErRHEE&EEEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERST AT
Cash and bank balances H& MIBITESR 26 1,356,458 2,457,571
Non-pledged time deposits with FARRR=EAR
original maturity of less than FI AR 2 A
three months when acquired EHFR 26 - 440
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ~ BF#A R &
in the statement of financial position REeERERME
and the statement of cash flows Be MRS EHEIER 1,356,458 2,458 011
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Statement of Financial Position

A AR 3=

31 December 2014 20144 12 A 31 H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M aE F#ExT TAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment BT 14 = 83
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZI&E 19 2,106,711 2,106,711
Total non-current assets FEREBEELAE 2,106,711 2,106,794
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments TES 3R 19,537 23,518
Due from subsidiaries M B A FIR R 19 5,737,433 5,992,454
Due from the immediate holding BREZERAA
company RFR 37 165 165
Equity investments at fair value BATEINAERE
through profit or loss DR E 25 9,213 8,932
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIReEEEE 26 47,251 42,654
Total current assets MENEERE 5,813,599 6,067,723
CURRENT LIABILITIES MENEE
Other payables and accruals HEih M FRIB R ERT A& 4,620 6,567
Due to subsidiaries R B A FIFRIE 19 150,728 389,690
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRITEX 28 306,000 982,000
Tax payable JES IR 7,154 3,363
Total current liabilities neaEeE 468,502 1,381,620
NET CURRENT ASSETS mAMEEZFE 5,345,097 4,686,103
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT B EBER R
LIABILITIES =L 7,451,808 6,792,897
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITER 28 2,100,000 1,400,000
Total non-current liabilities EREEEBRE 2,100,000 1,400,000
Net assets BESFE 5,351,808 5,392,897
EQUITY B A&
Issued capital BBEITRA 30 279,722 279,722
Reserves {1 32(b) 5,072,086 5,113,175
Total equity A& A 48 (E 5,351,808 5,392,897

Jiang Guojin {IH &
Director %
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Notes to Financial Statements

. CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

e processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling
beverage, and distribution of still beverage;

e distribution of retail packaged cooking oil and seasoning
products;

e production, sale and trading of grape wine and other
wine products;

e production and distribution of chocolate and other
related products; and

e distribution of other consumer food and beverage
products that are not categorised under the
aforementioned activities.

The immediate holding company of the Company is COFCO
(Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong, and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is COFCO Corporation (“COFCQ”), which is a state-owned
enterprise registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

D ECEE

31 December 2014 20144 12 A 31 H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M s
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
relating to the preparation of financial statements, which for
this financial year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for
Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, biological assets and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group asset and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M s
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year's
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financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to HKFRS
2 included in Annual
Improvements 2010-
2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
3 included in Annual
Improvements 2010-
2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
13 included in Annual
Improvements 2010-
2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS
1 included in Annual
Improvements 2011-
2013 Cycle

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condition*

Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business
Combination®

Short-term Receivables and
Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

L Effective from 1 July 2014
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Annual Report 2014

BAEMBREER
F105%  BBHB
FERAF12RR
BA G EF27H:
(2011%) 2 &3]

BAGHEAERR L
&1

BRI EAEIR L

&1

BRI EAENR L

&1

Bk (BRMERS
2BZ8¢g)
—2RBF2AR

W AN2010-2012% A HFJE
XEZBRNHRE
ERIE2R 2 EET

W AN2010-2012% A HFJE
XEZBRNHRE
ERIEIR BT

W AN2010-20124 A HFJE
XEZBRNHRE
ERIE13HR 2 EFT

M A2011-20135 A HFE
XEZBRNHRE
ERIELR BT

AHTHEERTHEE

HEREEZ TREIZHE
RE

FTETAMEE RIS
SEREE

i

BEAN2EE

RFAUFARRELE
i

RN NBERENFE

BUBEHBHEERZ
-1

1 H2014F7R1HBEK



2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only
relevant to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements,
the nature and the impact of each amendment and
interpretation is described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of
an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group as the Company does not qualify as an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group does not have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which is
not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the
disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets
or cash-generating units for which an impairment loss
has been recognised or reversed during the reporting
period, and expand the disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value measurement for these assets
or units if their recoverable amounts are based on fair
value less costs of disposal. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group. Disclosures about the Group’s impaired non-
financial assets are included in note 14 to the financial
statements.

2.2
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in
situations where over-the-counter derivatives designated
in hedging relationships are directly or indirectly,
novated to a central counterparty as a consequence
of laws or regulations, or the introduction of laws or
regulations. For continuance of hedge accounting under
this exception, all of the following criteria must be met:
(i) the novations must arise as a consequence of laws
or regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations;
(ii) the parties to the hedging instrument agree that one
or more clearing counterparties replace their original
counterparty to become the new counterparty to each
of the parties; and (iii) the novations do not result in
changes to the terms of the original derivative other
than changes directly attributable to the change in
counterparty to achieve clearing. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group has not
novated any derivatives during the current and prior
years.

(e) HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment,
as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers payment
occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the
relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation
clarifies that no liability should be recognised before
the specified minimum threshold is reached. The
interpretation has had no impact on the Group as the
Group applied, in prior years, the recognition principles
under HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets which for the levies incurred by
the Group are consistent with the requirements of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and service
conditions which are vesting conditions, including
(i) a performance condition must contain a service
condition; (ii) a performance target must be met while
the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a performance
target may relate to the operations or activities of an
entity, or to those of another entity in the same group;
(iv) a performance condition may be a market or non-
market condition; and (v) if the counterparty, regardless
of the reason, ceases to provide service during the
vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should be
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS
9 or HKAS 39. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rates
can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group.

2.2
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2.3NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

2318 RIELRIN 2 FT 4T BARAE AT
EBNBREENREER
AIEBIT 2 3T BB

AEEYRNEZFHHHRERTEAATER
R ARER T REETEEMBERE

these financial statements. AEH|

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BRMSREEREYE 2@ TA

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BBE R L REZHREENASE
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  between an Investor and its F107 R BB G AR EPEZEHEENE
(2011) Associate or Joint Venture? E85: (2011F) 2 85]  2)FE?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BB mEEd WiESEZBER B4

Interests in Joint Operations? E115 21835 Vb
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BRUSREERENE EFELEKE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERBBREERFISR EEAAM

Customers?
Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception?

BAMBHREERNFIN . KETE BAGAAKS
BEMBREENEIZRR  AMER?
BRGEAFBR 2 BT

BREGERFIRCER] KEAEP

BRGHRARIONRR  BEENERAHIIER
BEEHRAERR A
&1

BAGHENZIGRR

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Amendments to HKAS 16 BE:LENREYP

and HKAS 41 BB GTEREIR 2
BT
Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans: AR ERZI9R REWEHEE - S H
Employee Contributions® BT
Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate BB ERE27H BUHBRK B A
(2011) Financial Statements? (20114 ) 2 &3]
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of 2010FEZ2012F 4.2 AT ABHBEREER
2010-2012 Cycle HKFRSs! FEH# EHE
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of 2011 EZE2013F 4.2 AT ABHBEREER
2011-2013 Cycle HKFRSs! FEH# EHE
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of 2012 F2014F 5.2 AT ABHBEREER
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs? FEH# EHE

M201447 A1 S AR FR 2 FEE AR

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 201651 A1B sk AR RLE 2 F /2 B A K
3 é?fi?tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 FA2017F1 A 1B sk AR B 14 2 FE B AL
4 Eg‘i,;ive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 HR2018F1 A1 AR FA 2 FEHRM A
5 é?ficStive for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 5 @EAR2016%1 A1 H AR EINRANES

PR ELEA 2 B Z FEPBREK Bt
ENENNZN-SE]

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group
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2.3NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the impact of these
changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group expects
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. Further information about the impact will be available
nearer the implementation date of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.
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2.3NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest
in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of
an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including
the reporting entity, are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both
the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and
the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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23NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern
of economic benefits that are generated from operating
business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through the use of the
asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only
be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible
assets. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not used a
revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.

The HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendments change the
accounting requirements for biological assets that meet
the definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments,
biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants will
be within the scope of HKAS 16 instead of HKAS 41. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under
HKAS 16 at accumulated cost before maturity. After the
bearer plants mature, they will be measured either using the
cost model or revaluation model in accordance with HKAS
16. The amendments also require that produce growing
on the bearer plants will remain in the scope of HKAS 41
and is measured at fair value less costs to sell. Government
grants relating to bearer plants will now be accounted for
in accordance with HKAS 20 Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016 and
is currently assessing the impact of these changes.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs. Except for those described in note 2.2, the
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2015. None of the amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
amendment most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including
a brief description of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics used to assess
whether the segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets to total assets
is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income/(loss) of associates is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income/(loss), respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of
the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
GOODWILL (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

2AF B R E ()

(B EHEEE @)

EAEBE —THEBSE  SREA &R
RS B BB B IR IE R AR B 16 - TS A &
ENeREERABE WMEHBEANSERIE
N EREIESWIRE T A L R ARST
AT EETHEE

T A 00 B BUETT - RRTRB AR U
BEREATESEHGE  AREE ZEMIE
HRNIBEER -

B YRS 7 % T 8 R e (T S AR KB AR MR
B AFEER - DEAERTARESR
B ERFEIVRBEA-—REELBEN
i%ﬁﬁmﬁ NP ENES RN TEFE
YiERSBEIEMEERANES) - FERA
ﬁFI*ﬁAéﬁ FTERI 3957 I 15
AT EEAENEAMBHREERGFE- D
BRREMAAREBAENAE HEEH
RAEesh ARk e

Fﬁéﬁi%ﬂizzﬁﬁa+g BEERARE O
R IFIE Hx%ﬁn&$EI5‘EHUEﬁHﬁE’J%&H&ﬁ%
ﬁHxT&E’J NP EAERE - I8 SR P YRR AT R B
EFERAAERENERE - WAREREM
BB ERPEBEEFEN A TE REFHEER
HEBHN BT ERSRERE WS-



24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
GOODWILL (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, biological assets, financial
assets, and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings
Plant, machinery and equipment

Not depreciated
2% to 18%
6% to 33.3%
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction or machinery not yet put into operation,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and machinery and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

AT B HERE @)

ME - BRBERRERINE (8)

EIEYE BB RRENEBNEE TR
A P 4 HARS - BIlRZIR B B EB I AR A
BREENR BEIMODSIEEBITE - RIRE
B A ERFERMTEEE P NEEMBRF
RETEZMARE (HER) -

—BYE BEARBERVGBERZEME
REBOREERSEEFER L EMAEF A
BRIBAELBERAER B THRER -RNTH
WERZFE BERE N ERHENBDRR
RERZEMREHEBRBREEZHE
PSR FERREE I Z®R -

R TR iR A AR DB EE BRI - T
B2 ERBFT R ARIAEE 2 - KK
AEEETHEZERZEREBRKARE
MIEEEE cEENMLBERAN -ERTIER
& MARAERRERIABE 2WE
R K s sa Al o

"REWME
REMENEFBEZ I RETHER (B
RUGREVMEZERZINEREHOZHE
s UERBRESBAR HEXREE-
MmIEMELEESHEEmIREERBEHITR
A INBEEEBBEALE -ZFEWETD
NELEA (BREXZUA)GE - TR
& WEMERIRITFEIR  URBRREE
HIR 2 MEM -

BREMERFELSBMELE 2 etk B8 -
TIOIAZELEFE ZBamRA

133



134

Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M s
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of five or eight years.

Water rights

Water rights are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of forty years.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The fair value of the grape vines is estimated by reference
to independent professional valuations using the discounted
cash flows of the underlying biological assets. The expected
cash flows from the whole life cycle of the grape vines are
determined using the market price of the estimated yield of
the agricultural produce, being grapes, net of maintenance
and harvesting costs and any costs required to bring grape
vines to maturity. The estimated yield of the grape vines is
affected by the age of the grape vines, the location, soil type
and infrastructure. The market price of the grapes is largely
dependent on the prevailing market price of the processed
products after harvest, being crude grape wine.

OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement
(continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined
by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as other
income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as other expenses and losses in the statement of
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in other expenses and
losses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in other income and gains, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit
or loss in other expenses and losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively, and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments and
financial products cannot be reliably measured because (a)
the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold
the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
and losses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AXTESEHBERE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS EMEERE @

(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments AEHESREE (&)

(continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for i &7 T B HI/ER 4 H & - BT R ER IR
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria IR EEKAFHEZ BB EFTRAEE
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the [ o SAT R EZ AR SRR VIR E S5k A B H
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss RITAFEZEZRE  RMAEZIREEBRRE
measured as the difference between the amortised cost MR AR EEIRRE N RETBET E o KRR
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that FEWAREERERERDEBIFET A B
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit AstEREBERERANRKERREZIT
or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued BWHREGHE o A BWAARBIHFHRA 2 —FB
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is Mo mEFSTAZ AFEEBIEN Mz
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future XELHETEERAERNESEREEZ
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment AR BEREBEESRERRERED -

loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the subsequent
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ETHaE

Initial recognition and measurement MPERRE

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as TREBBERV P RSSO BAEAFEA
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans BB ENERARMER

and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value FiB 2B ER Y FERERA T ERR
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly BERK 1ﬁ?K5'J?D[¢E%J§EX%}X$ﬁEW°

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement HEE
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends TRBECHEBTENRBO TS HE:

on their classification as follows:
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INVENTORIES

Inventories, other than the agricultural products which are
measured in accordance with the accounting policy for
“Biological assets” above, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
PROVISIONS (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination
is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the general guidance for
provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets,
the grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary
assets and released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual
instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with
no or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction
of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the
government loans is determined using the effective interest
rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the
government loans granted with no or at a below-market
rate of interest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received, is
treated as a government grant and released to the statement
of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

AT B@THERE &)

LT 45 B

BB E R IR W ARERRTA
— I R R I TR R R E T IARERR - 20 4H B)
HEASXIAR AR SRBBABEE AR
WHIE A R G EE R RUA -

B EREERR A REAFERNELER
ABRAARR THEZEMEE AR BFH
NUBFHRESEI T ABABRmRE-

WASEWBCFEREEERR - MBI
HZIREBEENRAEEIR YREHEEE
WIEMAERFRRAREEIHEASEE
ABEH K

WAREREREEREEMERTFEX
PAMER TSN R B BT &5 - 818 BB
ERH e REERSABERMNEEE BH
TEREX S BRAMESR [REE] #
— SR - BT B ABR TSN R EE
BB EE - A% S BRI A AR E E BT
BREMEZEZR SEFRAMMER I
REBEENBRAERFHANREEDH
HASFEABEHREK-



24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, in the period in which
the services are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes-Merton
option pricing model or a binomial option pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in employee benefit expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings or
loss per share.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension scheme

Retirement benefits are provided to certain staff employed
by the Group. In accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group’s Hong
Kong employees enjoy retirement benefits under either
the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”) Scheme, or the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under which employer
contributions have to be made. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds. The Group’s contributions to both
schemes are at a maximum of 10% of the monthly salaries
of the employees. When an employee leaves employment
prior to his or her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing ORSO Scheme
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme. However, in respect of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, only the employer voluntary
contribution amounts are refundable to the Group when
the members leave employment prior to their contributions
vesting fully. The Group’s mandatory contributions vest fully
with the employees when the employees leave employment.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the relevant authorities of the
provinces or the local municipal governments in Mainland
China in which the Group’s subsidiaries are located. The
Group contributes to this scheme in respect of its employees
in Mainland China and such costs are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as incurred.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Operating lease commitments - Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment
properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the management of the Group has reviewed
the Group's investment properties and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in respect
of the changes in fair value of the investment properties
based on management’s best estimate assuming future tax
consequences through usage of such properties of rental
purpose, rather than through sale. The final tax outcome
could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements should the
investment properties are subsequently disposed of by the
Group, rather than all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties are consumed substantially by
leasing over time. In the event the investment properties
are being disposed of, the Group may be liable to higher tax
upon disposal considering the impact of corporate income
tax and land appreciation tax.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2014 was HK$1,742,224,000 (2013: HK$1,746,432,000).
More details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2014 was HK$98,331,000 (2013:
HK$90,597,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a
sensitivity analysis, are given in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses at 31 December 2014 was HK$56,200,000 (2013:
HK$23,870,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2014 was HK$2,500,771,000 (2013:
HK$1,813,799,000). Further details are contained in note
29 to the financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for
sale. When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there is an impairment that should be recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. The Group also recognises
unlisted equity investments and financial products as
available-for-sale and states them at cost less impairment.
Losses arising from the impairment of such investments
should be recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The carrying amount of available-for-sale investments was
HK$613,411,000 (2013: HK$214,129,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on an assessment
of the recoverability of accounts and other receivables
and the timing of their recovery. The identification of
impairment of receivables requires management judgement
and estimation. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact on the carrying value of the accounts
and other receivables and the amount of impairment/
write-back of impairment in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. Net impairment of
receivables of HK$31,251,000 (2013: HK$14,143,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year. The aggregate carrying amount of the
accounts and bills receivables, and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables as at 31 December 2014 was
HK$2,958,104,000 (2013: HK$3,242,056,000).

Estimation of fair value of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are stated at fair values
less point-of-sale costs. This requires an independent
valuer's assessment of the fair value of the biological
assets. Changes in conditions of the biological assets could
impact the fair value of the assets. The carrying amount
of the Group’s biological assets at 31 December 2014 was
HK$200,806,000 (2013: HK$190,798,000). More details
are given in note 22 to the financial statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on the nature of their products and
has five reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the beverage segment is engaged in the processing,
bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage products
and the distribution of still beverage products;

(b) the kitchen food segment is engaged in the distribution
of retail packaged cooking oil and seasoning products;

(c) the wine segment is engaged in the production, sale
and trading of grape wine and other wine products;

(d) the confectionery segment is engaged in the production
and distribution of chocolate and other related products;
and

(e) the “others” segment is engaged in the distribution of
other consumer food and beverage products that are
not categorised under the aforementioned segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income, dividend income, finance
costs, share of profits of associates, as well as unallocated
head office and corporate results are all excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid tax,
restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments, equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, investments
in associates and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &R &S5 ZRE R} (#)

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014 Beverage  Kitchen food Wine Confectionery Others Total
HE2014FE12A3MBLEE R BERMR EmiE RHERR Hit At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET TiEn TiET FET FiET TiEx
Segment revenue: DERE
Sales to external customers HETIRER 12,485,850 11,230,509 2,152,366 503,495 369,943 26,742,163
Other revenue Hthieas 181,942 58,032 75,225 8,414 31,041 354,654
12,667,792 11,288,541 2,227,591 511,909 400,984 27,096,817
Segment results T 616,633 29,305 (115,526) (163,383) 9,097 376,126
Reconciliation: #lk -
Interest income F S WA 28,453
Dividend income A 24 A 37,532
Finance costs B PR A (69,844)
Share of profits of associates JE (BB A A i 7 93,816
Corporate and other unallocated 22 & & 2 it A B
expenses Z i (215,275)
Profit before tax BRE AR A 250,808
Segment assets NHEE 6,023,145 3,007,841 5,238,102 395,873 392,677 15,057,638
Reconciliation: #f -
Investments in associates REE DR ZBE 758,932
Corporate and other unallocated A & R E KD ER
assets BE 2,430,124
Total assets BERE 18,246,694
Segment liabilities fHaRk 3,355,346 2,354,381 716,457 73,794 778 6,500,756
Reconciliation: #lk -
Corporate and other unallocated 2 & R E K HE
liabilities aE 3,623,391
Total liabilities aEEE 10,124,147

Other segment information: ~ H it #FE# :
Net impairment losses recognised PMERBEERLZ

in the statement of profit or loss  JilE /% E512 44,757 5,897 23,480 4,930 - 79,064
Provision against/(write-back of ~ TF &¥#E,/

provision against) inventories (B{ERE) 18,469 (15,269) 30,880 21,962 = 56,042
Fair value gains on biological EMEEZ D TEF

assets, net Yo - - 3,105 - - 3,105

Gains/(losses) on disposal/ ME- BER
write-off of items of property, REEEZ

plant and equipment E R 8
W&/ (E#8) (2,798) (1,156) 286 (638) - 4,306)
Unallocated amounts AOREE 165
(4,141)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ 47% R # 84 330,896 17,447 143,739 17,047 - 509,129
Unallocated amounts AOEHE 12,287
521,416
Fair value gains on equity BRATEFIABEZ
investment at fair value through ~ HE25H% & 7
profit or loss NFEKE
Unallocated amounts AOEEHE 856
Capital expenditure BARE 284,941 10,217 172,651 13,073 - 480,882*
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BARAYBEAEME BE R HE
and equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid land FEERBENLHE-
premiums.



Notes to Financial Statements

AT R R ML
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 B

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. #

(continued)

]S

D EFE R ()

Year ended 31 December 2013 Beverage  Kitchen food Wine  Confectionery Others Total
HZE2013F12A318 ILEE Kt BERM B RER M@ Hith G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$j000 HK$~'000 HK$'000
on AT AT FAET AT FAT
Segment revenue: ERU ES
Sales to external customers HETIREPR 11,388,623 12,276,426 1,847,490 434,933 270,879 26,218,351
Other revenue Hio s 148,405 35,776 29,064 8,001 46,785 268,031
11,537,028 12,312,202 1,876,554 442 934 317,664 26,486,382
Segment results NEEE 496,133 (152,118) (454,728) (222,674) 30,520 (302,867)
Reconciliation: Hik -
Interest income FIEMA 25,806
Dividend income fr 24 A 35,823
Finance costs B A (103,103)
Share of profits of associates JE {5 Bst 2 A ) i 7 113916
Corporate and other unallocated A & R E KD B
expenses i} (164,274)
Loss before tax BRE AR (394,699)
Segment assets NHEE 6,490,675 4,435,623 5,522,341 439,698 308,131 17,196,468
Reconciliation: HhE -
Investments in associates RBERRZEE 704,834
Corporate and other unallocated 722 &l 2 H it A 5 B
assets BE 3,072,215
Total assets BEME 20973517
Segment liabilities NEHEE 2,979,624 4,825,242 602,601 66,454 2,204 8,476,125
Reconciliation: #k -
Corporate and other unallocated A F R E A HE
liabilities af 4,299,167
Total liabilities B EEE C 12775292

Other segment information: ~ HE# A& # :
Net impairment losses recognised 78 % 3R HER

in the statement of profit or loss  Ji{EZE 1R 20,092 4,039 9,145 13,052 = 46,328
Provision against inventories FERE 11,749 94,367 10,150 6,389 - 122,655
Losses on disposal of biological ~ HE4MEEZ

assets 3 - - 6,248 - - 6,248
Fair value losses on biological ~ £¥EEZ A FEF

assets, net 8 - - 5,899 - = 5,899
Losses on disposalfwrite-off of 1% BE R

items of property, plant and RERE 2

equipment & kiR 4,543 80 66 35 = 4,724
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7% [ # i 321,058 12,454 135,218 23,242 = 491,972
Unallocated amounts AOEEHE 14,859

506,831
Fair value losses on equity BATEFIABEZ

investment at fair value through ~ Ez1% & 2

profit or loss NEEER
Unallocated amounts AOEEE 4,874
Capital expenditure BEARREY 411,720 17,901 311,184 17,219 = 758,024
Unallocated amounts AOEE 16

758,040*
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BARSTBEAEDE HELRSE HamE
and equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid land FEERTAM T HS o
premiums. ) a
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
operating in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group's
non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets, are situated in Mainland China.

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR
CUSTOMER

During the year, there was no customer which individually
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2013:
Nil).
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA~ Efb U A K Y
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WA (REE 2 EE5E) TERAFENRE
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns BERESGTHENEEHEMmERFE-
and trade discounts, during the year.

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: B ARSI T :
Group
AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
e FET TAT
Other income Hfth g A
Gross rental income e WA B 11,375 9,621
Bank interest income R1T R B U A 21,002 25,806
Interest income from financial ERIEmMZ T E
products A 7,451 =
Dividend income from available- — AJfftHERE 2
for-sale investments g 2 M 37,033 35,823
Dividend income from equity BATEINAEZRE
investments at fair value BRiEEZ
through profit or loss B UL A 499 228
Government grants* I8 438 B 227,359 123,440
Compensation income EW A 5,644 12,437
Sale of by-products and scrap 6 B E o KR EE R
items BH 24,874 22,186
Commission income AE WA 83,508 98,079
Others H A 1,378 1,123
420,123 328,743
Gains I &
Fair value gains on equity EAFEIABRZ
investments at fair value =R E 2 A TE
through profit or loss & 856 -
Fair value gains on investment KEMEZNTE
properties & 15 305 1,227
Gain on bargain purchase & E W E K= 33 211 =
1,372 1,227
421,495 329,970
*  Various government grants were granted for investments in * AEEDERZBERNMHE  BERERQT]
certain provinces in Mainland China in which the Company's MERARKEMEZRRAME TEMD - BF
subsidiaries operate. Government grants for which related AR R AR HE 2RI BEER SR
expenditure has not yet been undertaken are included in FKAERIEERA (GERBNEBD ) & E fib FE S 3k
deferred income (non-current portion) and other payables HREAE CREEMD) A - 2SI EE
and accruals (current portion) in the statement of financial ARG E 2 G B EE -

position, respectively. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BREL AR, (E518)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REEZBRBATEN, (BER) Dk, (G
charging/(crediting): A) NHI&IE :
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 52 FHT T T
Cost of inventories sold EHFEEKRA 20,384,563 20,799,623
Provision against inventories FEEE 56,042 122,655
Losses on disposal of biological HEEMEEL
assets 18 - 6,248
Fair value losses/(gains) on EMEENTFEFERS
biological assets, net (Wzs) (3,105) 5,899
Cost of sales $H & A 20,437,500 20,934,425
Auditors’ remuneration 1% £ R 57 B 3,223 331
Depreciation e 14 498,572 486,088
Amortisation of other intangible HEMEpEE
assets 2 34 18 11,487 10,604
Recognition of prepaid land TR TES
premiums TiH& 16 11,357 10,139
Minimum lease payments under ﬁfﬁiiﬁz&@?ﬂ’\]
operating leases in respect of KEHE
land and buildings 1EETE%TAIE 227,464 216,350
Employee benefit expense EERAFAZ (BEESER
(including directors’ and TTBABRE M (H5E8) ) -
chief executive's remuneration
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries TERES 1,568,694 1,441,230
Equity-settled share option PARR AS 45 & 1 B AR e
expense X2 4,168 7,331
Pension schemes contributions* R KET 214t 7 167,104 158,431
1,739,966 1,606,992
Foreign exchange differences, net [E 3 =58 - H58 20,057 26,083
Other expenses and losses B MEERE
include the followings: ATR&IR
Losses on disposal/write-off of Y BB MEEIEE 2
items of property, plant and S R i8R
equipment B8 4,141 4,724
Impairment of available-for-sale A ERE
investments ZIRE - 1,866
Impairment of items of Y BB &
property, plant and REBIEE
equipment 2 (A 47,813 18,709
Fair value losses on equity BAFEI ARG
investments at fair value 2w E
through profit or loss < ANYEEE - 4,874
Impairment of accounts FEUAR R
receivable BB 24 27,269 11,800
Impairment of other receivables HAh E W SR IE R B 3,982 2,343
Impairment of goodwill 2R E 17 - 11,610

* At 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited *
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2013: Nil).

R2014F12A31 8 » A & B £ B )8 Wt 7
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BE AR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERADHTEAT
Group
AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T
Interest on: A
Bank loans wholly repayable hFRNEHEERE
within five years ZIRTTER 65,959 79,921
Loans from a fellow subsidiary and —ERRNBAR R
a non-controlling shareholder of — 2B A A
subsidiaries (note 37) JEIE R R 2 B R (BT 5E37) 2,204 22,964
Others EHfth 1,681 218
69,844 103,103
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFRITHERMNE

EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is

RERAR REBBHMEIIMERDAES
FARRA(T ERRA) REBREED (F
622F )Mt R11E78M% WA ZE R BB R AE
Bl (FEREB)FIIGATERECEEME M
T

as follows:
Group
rE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# T FET
Fees: ok
Executive directors HITES = =
Non-executive directors EHITES - =
Independent non-executive directors BT ES 1,260 1,320
1,260 1,320
Other emoluments: E A
Salaries, allowances and E =4
benefits in kind LEYF = 3,537 4,471
Equity-settled share option expense IR EBRER Y 695 1,510
Pension scheme contributions RIRET SR 209 306
4,441 6,287
5,701 7,607
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options
of the Company, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.

(A)INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

B NATBAE RN
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& (&)

RUAREE REARRBRESS 5T
EEREEFRARBRHZBREMER T
REERE B IFER M SRR 3L - &%
ERREZ AFE (EXNFEEBHERRERRA
R IREH APEE HEBAARNFE
ISR YR B EE RITHRAEME R

Ego

(AVEBIFHATES

FAMBYIFRTEEIN 2R

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET T T

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark GV et 315 330
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells BIRFN A& 315 330
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred T AE 315 330
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis RRAMNIGEE 315 330
1,260 1,320

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2013: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFNITHAZME @
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(BJEXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON- (BIHITER  FHITEFRITH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF R
EXECUTIVE
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense contributions remuneration
e ERR BAGEE B EE
e BYRE BRERX EEN A e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x TEL TEL TET TEL

2014 20146

Executive directors: HITESE:

Mr. Jiang Guajin THS %% - 1,957 - 121 2,078
Ms. Wu Wenting * RNBL+! - 812 106 38 956
Mr. Lu Xiaohui FEETE - 768 - 50 818

- 3,537 106 209 3,852

Non-executive directors: FEHTEE

Ms. Wu Wenting ! Rxpit! - - 21 - 21
Mr. Yu Xubo TR EE - - - - -
Mr. Ning Gaoning BEgBEiL - - 157 - 157
Ms. Liu Ding T &+ - - 127 - 127
Mr. Ma Jianping BrELE - - 127 - 127
Mr. Wang Zhiying 2 IZREE? - - - - -
Mr. Chi Jingtao 2 BRELE? - - 157 - 157

- - 589 - 589

- 3,537 695 209 4,441

1 Ms. Wu Wenting was re-designated from a non-executive 1 B+ 201438108 AR FISE
director to an executive director of the Company with HITESHATAANTES -
effect from 10 March 2014.

2 Mr. Wang Zhiying was appointed as a non-executive 2 FEEAR014F1I1AIOBEZRE A
director of the Company with effect from 10 November ARARFEHITES -

2014.

3 Mr. Chi Jingtao resigned as a non-executive director of 3 EFUSSLAER2014F11AI0B BHEAR
the Company with effect from 10 November 2014 (The AIBEITEE (HESERITESHEME
remuneration in his tenure as non-executive director was £135,000% 7T ) °
HK$135,000).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(BJEXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-

8. EF RITHARZE
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31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

\

& (&)

(BIHATES FHITEERITH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF A )]
EXECUTIVE (continued)
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense  contributions  remuneration
e 2R BAEE RN E
ik BNz BRERX 3% e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx AT THET THT THT
2013 2013F
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Jiang Guojin ! TG RE! = 440 = 51 491
Mr. Lu Xiaohui 2 REEIBIL A 2 = 219 = 12 231
Mr. Ning Gaoning 3 BoEELS - - 212 - 212
Mr. Chi Jingtao EBRRRE! - 800 76 40 916
Ms. Luan Xiuju ® BERH LS = 2,468 242 203 2913
Mr. Mak Chi Wing, BEREES
William © - 544 196 - 740
- 4471 726 306 5,503
Non-executive directors: JFHTEE :
Mr. Yu Xubo 7 FkEE" = = = = =
Mr. Ning Gaoning 3 =g e = = 30 = 30
Mr. Chi Jingtao * ERBTE! - - 166 - 166
Ms. Liu Ding MT L - - 196 - 196
Mr. Ma Jianping BrELE = = 196 = 19
Ms. Wu Wenting & Rt = = 196 = 196
- - 784 - 784
- 4471 1,510 306 6,287
FEREmMBRAT
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(BJEXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE (continued)

1

Mr. Jiang Guojin was appointed as an executive director
and the chief executive of the Company with effect from
17 September 2013.

Mr. Lu Xiaohui was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 17 September 2013.

Mr. Ning Gaoning was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 11 November 2013.

Mr. Chi Jingtao was re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 26 March 2013.

Ms. Luan Xiuju resigned as an executive director and
the chief executive of the Company with effect from
17 September 2013 (The remuneration in her tenure
as executive director and the chief executive was
HK$2,048,000).

Mr. Mak Chi Wing, William resigned as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 17 September
2013 (The remuneration in his tenure as executive
director was HK$690,000).

Mr. Yu Xubo was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 26 March 2013.

Ms. Wu Wenting was re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director of the Company with
effect from 10 March 2014.

Two non-executive directors (2013: three non-executive
directors and one executive director) agreed to waive
their entitlements to directors’ fees totalling HK$40,000
(2013: HK$394,000), in aggregate, for the year. Other
than the aforementioned, there was no arrangement
under which a director or the chief executive waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2013: Nil).
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 0 ExEmE=sMEE
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNhExa W EE BE—BES (K
one director who is also the chief executive (2013: one INATTHAER,) (2013F : —ZpiE = (HIK
former director who was also the former chief executive), BRTTERAE) )  EMeFIBE R L XX
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. 8N HEAIM A (20134 : £ ) & = Fr M
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining ZHARBESHITHREBEE 2FEMWE
four (2013: four) highest paid employees who are neither a BT
director nor chief executive of the Company for the year are
as follows:
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# T T T
Salaries, allowances and e ERR
benefits in kind KEYH & 8,175 6,930
Discretionary bonuses BB e 4L 1,320 -
Equity-settled share option expense AL E RS 455 637
Pension scheme contributions RORETEI R 614 349
10,564 7,966
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest EmEEE GEES RITHES) <FHMN R
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following TR 2 AEIT

bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EE A
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7t 22,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T £2,500,0007% 7T - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t 23,000,000/ 7T 3 -
4 4
In prior years, the non-director and non-chief executive RBEFE IFESRTHBESZSTHES
highest paid employees were granted share options of the REEHAEERENRBFEE TRRFH
Company in respect of their services to the Group, further B RE  BRAFIBEN MR RMFEIL - % E
details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial ERENATEERFBHRNESREXA
statements. The fair value of these options, which has been R NI BREEARAFYBHRETE
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting ENSHEEBERERN Ll EEE RITREH &
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the S MEENMESIREA-
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.
e

| 17
Op
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10.INCOME TAX

10. Fr 5 %%

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profit arising
in Hong Kong during the year (2013: Nil). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Pursuant to the approvals issued by the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC in 2013, the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries are regarded as Chinese Resident
Enterprises (collectively the “CREs”) and relevant enterprise
income tax policies of the PRC are applicable to the CREs
commencing from 1 January 2013.

FRARNEEY EE AN EBELEMNERD S
A F SN S B BHE (20134 -
) o AR 7 R BUG N 2 IR TR IR AR
SERE ZADE R 2 RITRETH

RIF0IBFHEBERBBADE L 2
ARARRETHBARBRRRSTEERERE
(R FPEEREX]) TEEBEXRME
MBERHB2013F1IAIRBERARTEERDE
=,

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT
Group: AEE:
Current — Mainland China BIVHA — A B9 K i
Charge for the year RARFE kR 272,740 234,748
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFETREE
in prior years (EBREREE) (175) 13,342
Current — Elsewhere B EA — H fth b [&
Charge for the year RAFEHE - 2,282
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBEEE (3,895) -
Deferred (note 29) EIE (F15E29) (45,069) 61,426
Total tax charge for the year F[Z AT 223,601 311,798

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the maijority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax
rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
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10.INCOME TAX (continued) 10. }aﬁ'/f% 7@% (&)

Group - 2014 AEE - 201445
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
E# K B EipitE ED
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#T % T % T % T %
Profit/(loss) before tax Banas/ (58) (11,568) 284,564 (22,188 250,808
Tax at the satutory tax rates REERETE 2 HE (1,909) 165 141 250 (4,693) 22 64,539 517
Lower tax rate for specific provinces {8734 skit 7 B #1E K
or enacted by local authority* Ellivi e - - (2,727) (1.0) - - (2,727) (1.1
Profits atributable to associates BENAEIGRT - - (23,454) (8.2) - - (23,454) 9.4)
Income not subject o tax Y5 A UN (6,418 55.5 (630) (0.2) - - 7,048) (2.8)
Expenses not deductible for tax RAMB 2% H 8,686 (75.1) 15,702 5.5 - - 24,388 9.7
Adjustments in respect of current A7 HRI RN E3F A
tax of previous periods pa L - - (175) (0.1) 3,895) 176 4,070) (1.6)
Adjustments in respect of deferred B HIRIEEHE
tax of previous periods 2B - - 5,439) (1.9) 3,937 (17.7) 1,502) (0.6)
Tax losses utilised from previous B)F A1
periods ZHE (623) 5.4 (20,113) (7.0) - - (20,736) (8.2)
Tax losses not recognised RERDIE 264 (2.3) 189,254 66.5 4,693 (21.2) 194,211 T4
Tax charge at the Group's BREBARBEEL
effective rate BB i - - 223,559 78.6 42 (0.1) 223,601 89.1
Group — 2013 REE - 20134F
Hong Kong Mainland China Elsewhere Total
i REARE bt At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT % THL % FHT % T %
Profitf(loss) before tax Ranas/ (B8) 320 (393,801) (1218) (394,699)
Tax at the statutory tax rates REEREGEZHE 5 165 (98,450) 250 (113) 93 (98,510) 250
Lower tax rate for specific provinces B3 st B #IE
or enacted by local authority* BIRHE* - - (2,705) 07 = - (2,705) 07
Profit not subject to tax due to AHBEEMEERNL
concessions** v - - (6) - - - (6) -
Profits attributable to associates -Gyl - - (28,479) 7.2 - - (28479) 7.2
Income not subject to tax ERRBLHA (56) (174) (23811) 6.0 - - (23,867) 6.0
Expenses not deductible for tax Rafiz il 3 09 34,255 87) 438 (36.0) 34,69 88)
Adjustments in respect of current A KRB E
tax of previous periods HE - - 13,342 (34) - - 13,342 (34)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on IR EMAEI0%HK A
the dividend income, net MGk E2 38 - - (35,924) 91 - - (35.924) 91
Tax losses utilised from previous ) A1 HR
periods ZHE = = (16,952) 43 (361) 29.6 (17,313) 44
Tax losses not recognised RERDIE = = 470,528 (1194) 36 (29) 470,564 (119.2)
Tax charge at the Group's REBBUHEHEL
effective rate REX - - 311,798 (792) - - 311,798 (790)
& 5 N
TERgthe 173
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10.INCOME TAX (continued)

*

* %

Under the PRC income tax laws, enterprises are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a rate of 25%. However,
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are operating in specific
development zones in Mainland China, and the relevant
authorities have granted these subsidiaries a preferential CIT
rate of 15%.

In addition to the preferential CIT rate granted to the Group’s
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China, tax holidays were also
granted by the relevant authorities to certain of the Group's
subsidiaries, where CIT is exempted for the first two profitable
years of the subsidiaries and is levied at half of the applicable
rates for the subsequent three years.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$35,689,000 (2013: HK$42,428,000) is included in
“Share of profits of associates” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

11.LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of
HK$65,815,000 (2013: HK$62,532,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note
32(b)).

12.DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
during the year (2013: Nil).
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13.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent of HK$224,688,000 (2013: HK$889,634,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,797,223,396 (2013: 2,797,222,722) in issue during the
year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013 in respect of a dilution because the impact of the
share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share amounts presented.
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% ~ BB M &

Group Company
AEE Y. /NG|
Plant,
machinery
Freehold and  Construction Plant and
land Buildings equipment in progress Total equipment
BB B
KAEHE LI BF B4 EEIR @ RBER®
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET TiET TiET FET FERT FiET
31 December 2014 W2014512831H
At 31 December 2013 and at ~ R2013F12A318 %
1 January 2014: 2014%1A18
Cost [N 101,100 2,614,255 5,054,593 498,738 8,268,686 2,265
Accumulated depreciation and Rt E
impairment RRE - (740,679) (2,646,689) - (3,387,368) (2,182)
Net carrying amount REFE 101,100 1,873,576 2,407,904 498,738 4,881,318 83
At 1 January 2014, R2014%1R18
net of accumulated Nk 2EHTE &
depreciation and impairment BE 101,100 1,873,576 2,407,904 498,738 4,881,318 83
Additions NE - 13,735 228,074 196,476 438,285 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary - B AR
(note 33) (Bi5¥33) - - 128 - 128 -
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (4,853) (26,298) (3,569) (34,720) -
Depreciation provided FRME
during the year BB - (101,771) (396,801) - (498,572) (83)
Surplus on revaluation BhZBH - 7,299 = = 7,299 =
Impairment B - (21,174) (26,639) - (47,813) -
Transfers to an investment BRE-BREANE
property (note 15) (Bi5E15) - (7,746) - - (7,746) -
Transfers from construction BRATHE
in progress T - 174,830 102,523 (277,353) = =
Exchange realignment L% (12,782) (11,249) (12,078) (1,798) (37,907) -
At 31 December 2014, R2014F12A318
net of accumulated Nk 2EHTE X
depreciation and impairment ~ JEi{E 88,318 1,922,647 2,276,813 612,494 4,700,272 -
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A318 :
Cost (BN 88,318 2,779,733 5,119,203 412,494 8,399,748 83
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZHER
impairment I - (857,086)  (2,842,390) - (3,699,476) (83)
Net carrying amount REFE 88,318 1,922,647 2,276,813 412,494 4,700,272 -

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14912 - /5 M &% ()

(continued)

Group Company
KEE /NG
Plant,
machinery
Freehold and  Construction Plant and
land Buildings equipment in progress Total equipment
KAERELH BF B HREIR g5t BERZ
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THAT AT THET THET THET
31 December 2013 W2013512831H
At 31 December 2012 and R2012€12831H
at 1 January 2013: 2013%1A18 :
Cost (BN 104,776 2,352,708 4,377,021 608,607 7,443,112 2,799
Accumulated depreciation and Rt E
impairment RRE - (610,341)  (2,258,366) - (2,868,707) (2,469)
Net carrying amount REFE 104,776 1,742,367 2,118,655 608,607 4,574,405 330
At 1 January 2013, net of R2013F1A1H
accumulated depreciationand 1k it E
impairment KRE 104,776 1,742,367 2,118,655 608,607 4,574,405 330
Additions NE - 75,220 270,698 364,664 710,582 -
Disposals/write-off HE /s - (995) (15,461) (13,776) (30,232) -
Depreciation provided FRME
during the year B - (102,524) (383,564) - (486,088) (247)
Impairment DERED = (10,399) (8,310) = (18,709) =
Transfers i - 117,815 359,704 (477,519) - -
Exchange realignment B (3,676) 52,092 66,182 16,762 131,360 =
At 31 December 2013, R2013F12H31H
net of accumulated MR 2 ER
depreciation and impairment RE 101,100 1,873,576 2,407,904 498,738 4,881,318 83
At 31 December 2013: R2013F12A318 :
Cost A 101,100 2,614,255 5,054,593 498,738 8,268,686 2,265
Accumulated depreciation and 3t E
impairment RRfE - (740679)  (2,646,689) - (3,387,368) (2,182)
Net carrying amount REFE 101,100 1,873,576 2,407,904 498,738 4,881,318 83

An impairment of HK$47,813,000 (2013: HK$18,709,000)
was recognised for certain buildings, machinery and
equipment in the beverage segment, wine segment and
confectionery segment with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$91,180,000 (2013: HK$18,811,000) (before deducting

AXRFERKE DM EREDBRAER @
DEAETYE BERREEEREMN, K
FEE - AR EE A 7T /291,180,000 7T (2013
% 18,811,000/ 7T) (KRR EEKAT) Y
B R B &R R47,813,000/8 7T

the impairment loss) during the year because those
buildings, machinery and equipment had been dormant

and/or obsolete.

(20134F : 18,709,000/ 7T ) HI i {& °
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The recoverable amounts of certain buildings, machinery
and equipment in the beverage segment as at 31 December
2014 has been determined as nil because these buildings,
machinery and equipment will be written off within one year
with nil consideration.

The aggregate recoverable amounts of certain machinery
and equipment in the wine segment and confectionary
segment were based on fair value less costs of disposal and
were determined based on valuations performed by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$40,680,000 (2013:
HK$18,753,000), using the cost approach and/or market
approach.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s machinery and equipment for
which an impairment loss has been recognised based on fair
value less costs of disposal:

14. 9% W E MR

R2014F12A318 @ gkt S M)A TIEF - %
MEREOARREBEEEETAS RRA
é%@? < AR K SR AT S A — F A A Z (B

B a2 R IRE R G 28R B T & 3R
HE R B 40 & 58 4 S AR B D S AE R & AR AR
TE WAREIB I EESERMEEMSE — AT
g hEREEER AR A RETRIME -

Bk A 0K K/ 8t 35 5% 7 E 540,680,000
W IT (20134 : 18,753,000 7T ) ©

RTEER
TR A T (E 50 6L B K A B RIS
BNAEERARRENATETEER:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 using

R2014E12BNBRATI AR A ENATE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observahle unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

IE

ERTHEHE IEUHESY  TUHESY
($—8) ($Z8) ($=8) Mt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET FTET FTET FET

Fair value measurement using: ATEFTERA

Cost approach X A% - - 22,000 22,000
Market approach Mm% - - 18,680 18,680
- - 40,680 40,680

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

The cost approach, in particular, the depreciated
replacement cost method, considers the cost to reproduce
or replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets
including costs of transport, installation, commissioning
and consultants fees. Adjustment is then made for accrued
depreciation, which encompasses condition, utility, age,
wear and tear, functional and economic obsolescence.
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

The market approach, in particular, the direct comparison
approach, measures the fair value of assets by making
reference to comparable sale transactions as available in
the market and the consideration of due adjustments for
differences between the subject asset and the comparable
Ones.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key assumptions to the valuation of the Group's
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14 9% W E MERE

NEEER (®)
Mk (LERHEELEE) HEEENAT
EHREmS FAEEHATELEEERS
WU IENEERTAREE Y MMES
EHEE ARMRE-

AT RE AR E B RE A FER &R E
R EBEN R R RENEEMERMGE

machinery and equipment for which an impairment loss has FERFERIZOBE

been recognised base on fair value less costs of disposal:

Valuation techniques Key assumptions Description

HERE FERH s

Cost approach Replacement cost The replacement cost is determined by reference to and
indexing of historical cost information and by discussion with
original suppliers regarding current costs for comparable
assets. Allowances have also been made for freight, installation
and commissioning, finance charges, taxes, tariff, duties and
other fees.

PR AN E FEKA BEERADNELRERLKANELR WAL AIEE - W AR

Rate of newness

PR =
Market approach Market value
M5 Gikl=!

HERN AR RLREENRITRAKRERE - T
BB RRENAE MBER B HE- BEHIEM
ERELREE-

The rate of newness is determined by inspecting the site,
perusing records, conducting interviews with experts and
accounting staffs, obtaining and reviewing detailed drawings
and specifications relating to the assets.

BRIy EREMRE FHAEMLE HHERRES
AB  EERNEEEEREC FAE R KRB METE -

Market value is determined by conducting inquiries and made
contacts with suppliers, second-hand machinery dealers and
other relevant parties regarding the cost of comparable used
equipment in operative condition in the second-hand market,
and based on the assumption that the assets will continue in
their present existing use in the business of the Group.
MEDEAEMEEN —FERBZIEEEMERAALT
BN ZFHHEREERL 2 AT ELLRE S RARE K
RETEARBE WREBEEEKEENAEBEBKR
HFHBNBRARE ZBEMETE -
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1413 B E &FZEH @)

(continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) NEEER (@)
All of the Group’s buildings are situated outside Hong Kong. REEHER 2EFHMR BB MG o
At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings MR2014F12A318 AEBEREBM AT FELD
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately £182,092,0007% 7T (20134 : 189,542,000/8
HK$182,092,000 (2013: HK$189,542,000) were pledged to JC) ZEF - A K EERIEITERMmE R
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note T ER1T (MI5E28) °
28).
At 31 December 2014, certificates of ownership in respect MR2014F12H31H KK B R B KB
of certain buildings of the Group in Mainland China with an BRmEFEA $£10,913,000% T (20134 :
aggregate net carrying amount of HK$10,913,000 (2013: 143,315,000/ 7t ) B9 & T 12 =F A R ZE A5 BE
HK$143,315,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC B R B T A HERE o
authorities.
; Al
15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. 1% &Y
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET T
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1R ZEREAEE 90,597 86,637
Transfer from an owner-occupied EEE—IHETERAYE
property (note 14) (FffEL4) 7,746 =
Net gain from a fair value adjustment /A (B 82 M &= 4 55 58 305 1,227
Exchange realignment IE 5 3 & (317) 2,733
Carrying amount at 31 December MR12A31H ZREE 98,331 90,597
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. % B E (@)

The Group's investment properties are situated outside Hong INES B 2 I A Y S ALBE B S DA SN [E f LA
Kong and are held under medium term leases. A -

The Group's investment properties consist of three AREEBZREYDEDE=HEERAYE A 7
commercial properties. The directors of the Company have EERBERREME2ME  FERER - T
determined that the investment properties are commercial SREMERERYE - K2014612A31H -
properties based on the nature, characteristics and risks BUBEAERGHEME - K FRETGHE
of each property. The Group’s investment properties were REXEHERAFEAEE IR EMFEEH
revalued on 31 December 2014 based on valuations 14 {8 £98,331,000/% 7t (20134 : 90,597,000
performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services BIT) °

Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$98,331,000 (2013: HK$90,597,000).

The investment properties are leased to third parties under ZERBMFABBKERAOMMETE=T
operating leases, further summary details of which are H M 5F BBl B 7 sk B 7E35(a) ©
included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY NEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINAREEREMEN RN FEFEER:

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 using
R2014E12RNBRATH AN EN LA TE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

5 IR ITE IZ

THRE TBZ2Y TAHES2E
(%—18) ($Z8) ($=8) it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER

Recurring fair value NI B TR
measurement for: NEEHE:

Commercial properties BRI - - 98,331 98,331

Gl
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| o
Exa
A
Pl



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R M s
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. % B @)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) NEEBR (&)

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013 using

M2013%F12A31B KA T At EN AT E

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g IE IE
% ME IEZ2Y  FAUBR2Y
(F—8) (F2E) (F=E) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT AT THT
Recurring fair value BTFIEEETERME

measurement for: AFEHE:

Commercial properties ERY%E - - 90,597 90,597
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value REA AFEFECEFE —EHE_E 2B
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no TR IEEE = EETE ASE
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil). (20134 : £&) ©
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and TRFAMELIEE Y S ETHERTFEA D
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: HETENEESE:

Range or weighted average
Valuation Significant &5 [ 2 N HE Y
techniques unobservable inputs 2014 2013
E}ERzRES FETTHRESH 2014% 2013F
Commercial properties Discounted cash flow Estimated rental value HK$22 HK$60 to
method (per sg.m and per month) to HK$198 HK$226
ERYE ARBE e REE B HEEEE 2BTE 608 TLE
(BEHRARREBA) 198 T 22678 7T
Rent growth (p.a.) 0% to£5% 5% t025.5%
HERE (8F)
Long term vacancy rate 0% to £20% 0% t0220%
REZEEX
Discount rate 3% to£6% 5% t026%
BRI =

182 China Foods Limited
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including an exit
or terminal value. This method involves the projection of a
series of cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived
discount rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to
establish the present value of the income stream associated
with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by
market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of
property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross
income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses, collection
losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income is
then discounted.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation
would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair
value of the investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and the discount
rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease/
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally
similar change in the rent growth per annum and the
discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

15. % B E (@)

NEEER (@)
RREBERSRE S ATENERAREE
FHRAROFZSREEORE (AERY
BESRREE)EITE 255 R
EEXM—ERRSREMTEA - TIBATEN
BERERNEARS RE AR REE
B BE A ORI E -

BeREMNFFERHELRABMRLEN A
BEEHESRE  BOBHEKEMEHE
ERFBHSEMHRAE - BENFERHEXM
BUIR(BUMEERNFE FE - EHRSE
mEBREWSRTNGZEE TAIEKER Wik
BX HERE #RER KENFESZKA
REMEEMERERGE - % —EREHL
BN FRRAETRERRIE -

A HEBERTHESFIRRXEFAR
#in,/ CRD) BEBREMENRTENE
g/ ORd) RMZEEXRRERREFK
EE S Of ) BEEREMENRFEKR
R, (GEM) - —MmE skt HEE
BEFHOBRREPSEFHSFERERLE
RERBRIEAES MEMEEXRHE RS
o
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16.PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS

16. 78 L&

Group
K&
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1B 2BREE 405,520 356,546
Additions NE 42,597 47,365
Recognised during the year FNER (11,357) (10,139)
Exchange realignment bE 3 B (1,409) 11,748
Carrying amount at 31 December MRI12A31H ZEREE 435,351 405,520
Current portion included in BERERNFIE
prepayments, deposits and B R E M ERGRIE
other receivables B ERER {7 (11,325) (9,244)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 1 424,026 396,276

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
under medium term leases.

At 31 December 2014, certain of the Groups land use rights
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$17,434,000 (2013: HK$17,919,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note
28).

At 31 December 2014, certificates of land use rights in
respect of certain land of the Group in Mainland China with
an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$48,826,000 (2013:
HK$86,428,000) had not been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities.
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R2014F12A310 - AREBERE & 5 FEL
#17,434,0007% 7T (20134 : 17,919,000#
TC) BVE T LI AR T RTT - AERIR

FTAREENRITER (HIFE28) °

M2014F 124310 A& B R A B K kB
H ¥ B 6 /48,826,000 7T (20134 -
86,428,000/ 7T ) B9 & T 13 - 1) AR AE B
BB HE BN T ERERE -
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17.GOODWILL 17. 82
Group
AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
At 1 January: R®1A18:
Cost PR 7N 1,758,042 1,727,752
Accumulated impairment R2ERE (11,610) -
Net carrying amount BREF(E 1,746,432 1,727,752
Cost at 1 January, net of RLIALR Z AN
accumulated impairment kR 250RE 1,746,432 1,727,752
Impairment during the year FARE - (11,610)
Exchange realignment PE 7, 5 2 (4,208) 30,290
Cost at 31 December, net of M12A318 27N
accumulated impairment b RERE 1,742,224 1,746,432
At 31 December: R12H318 :
Cost PR 7N 1,753,834 1,758,042
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (11,610) (11,610)
Net carrying amount BREF(E 1,742,224 1,746,432

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are

reportable segments, for impairment testing:

e Beverage cash-generating unit
e  Wine cash-generating unit
e  Confectionery cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of each of the above cash-
generating units has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections ranged from 12% to 13% and cash flows

s HMHREELHEM

s BRmERESELEM

BREBAGMEELEHE ENEEN TR
SELBM (A T2/ E) AERERR:

s KHRBBESELHBM

beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth

rate of 3%.

PR EELEEN 2 I EIREE  TIREE
REEEE - EAEEMNKRRBRSREREL
EREDFHRMBAE TERRSRER
EHAE-ReRnEREMERCBRENTF
R12%ZE13% T RF B 2SR E R T5i%
3% 2 BERE T LAHR
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17.GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units are as follows:

PEEERCELEVZHEREENT

Group
rE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Beverage = 1,221,090 1,222,845
Wine ViR 521,134 523,587
1,742,224 1,746,432

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the cash-generating units for 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the years immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

In 2013, in view that the confectionery business has been
loss making in recent years and it was not considered
probable that profits would be available in the foreseeable
future, an impairment loss of HK$11,610,000 was
recognised for goodwill in relation to the confectionery cash-
generating unit with a carrying amount of HK$11,610,000
(before deducting the impairment loss).
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#2014F12H31H Kk2013F12A31 R " &£ &t
HRSELE 2 EREEN CRAETR
o AT RERTR SRR LA KR
2B MRBR AETEERENR

BEEHE-REEEREENXMIEEE
B2EE RERBEEFEMNE TFEIRGZ
FHENRK  WREEHTIHERM L

B E — PrE ARG IR R RET EHIEAT - X RAR
MR B AT Ko 2 5 TE LR

R2013F - EXREARMEBOLFR —HEX
SE1R - TR R AR REEER S m F #O AT BE1E
PR - st BRE{E 411,610,000/ 7T (R0
BEERE) 2 KERMREEL BUERRE
E54811,610,000% 7T



18.OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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18 EMELEE

Computer Water
Group software rights Total
rEE B S K &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET

31 December 2014 2014%12A31H
At 31 December 2013 and M2013F12A31H K

at 1 January 2014: 2014F1/818 :

Cost (%N 80,377 9,974 90,351

Accumulated amortisation SN (49,567) (646) (50,213)

Net carrying amount RmEFE 30,810 9,328 40,138
Cost at 1 January 2014, R2014F1A18 Z A A -

net of accumulated amortisation b 251 30,810 9,328 40,138
Amortisation provided during the year A s (10,914) (573) (11,487)
Exchange realignment IE 5 A% (84) (1,197) (1,281)
Cost at 31 December 2014, 2014128318 2

net of accumulated amortisation AN - HIBr 25T 5H 19,812 7,558 27,370
At 31 December 2014: R2014%12A318 :

Cost (D% 80,109 8,654 88,763

Accumulated amortisation ESE 2 (60,297) (1,096) (61,393)

Net carrying amount REFE 19,812 7,558 27,370
31 December 2013 2013%12H31H
At 31 December 2012 and 2012512 A31H &

at 1 January 2013: 2013F1A18 :

Cost AR 77,910 10,785 88,695

Accumulated amortisation ESE 2 (37,773) (540) (38,313)

Net carrying amount REFE 40,137 10,245 50,382
Cost at 1 January 2013, M2013F1 A1 2 A7 -

net of accumulated amortisation b 2512 40,137 10,245 50,382
Additions NE 93 - 93
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A 55 B (10,447) (157) (10,604)
Exchange realignment M R A 1,027 (760) 267
Cost at 31 December 2013, net of 20134128318 -

accumulated amortisation bk 25T 30,810 9,328 40,138
At 31 December 2013: 72013412 A318

Cost %N 80,377 9,974 90,351

Accumulated amortisation 2Rt (49,567) (646) (50,213)

Net carrying amount REFE 30,810 9,328 40,138
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19.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES D.RIEB AR ZIZE
Company
b /N
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T T T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ETAIRAD - B AR 2,106,711 2,106,711
The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in AR RRIRBEERRBBGE 2B AR
the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of KRR KR Y 8 A Bl 5RIB 5 Bl A5,737,433,000
HK$5,737,433,000 (2013: HK$5,992,454,000) and 70 (20134 :5,992,454,000/% 7 ) &
HK$150,728,000 (2013: HK$389,690,000), respectively, 150,728,000/ st (20134 : 389,690,000/
are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. L) AEER R ERIZEKEE-
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at RAGIEEZNBARN2014612H31H 2 7F
31 December 2014 are set out in note 38 to the financial 15 ER B S AR M FE38 o
statements.
Details of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a subsidiary AEBHABEAFERES 2B RARFIE
of the Group, which has material non-controlling interests AIO A &R B R AR 2 B85 T
are set out below:
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T
Percentage of equity interest held by TR ERFTIFA
non-controlling interests ZBRERS L 35% 35%
Profit for the year allocated to FEIEAR R (L
non-controlling interests 2R EEE N 290,482 223,745
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT FiE R O A 2451k A BR A A
interests of COFCO Coca-Cola FEFE A
Beverages Limited Z BB 61,490 78,300
Accumulated balances of FEE AR SR
non-controlling interests ===t
at the reporting dates 2 BETHEEERR 2,348,413 2,127,504
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19.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverage Limited.
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

Notes to Financial Statements
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19. B AR 2% E &)

TRIVRFIBRI AR KB AR ARNERS
IS ERBLE - A B2 AR EA A RE
HIHIAR ¢

eliminations:

2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Revenue A 12,485,850 11,388,623
Total expenses LNy (12,076,755) (11,074,715)
Profit for the year F[Zm K 626,045 553,266
Total comprehensive income FEZEBA
for the year 48 =E 607,396 685,991
Current assets MEEE 4,780,735 4,539,228
Non-current assets FEMENE E 5,844,176 5,854,541
Current liabilities mEEE (4,047,235) (4,164,942)
Non-current liabilities EmMEBE (104,933) (301,990)
Net cash flows from operating activities & & /E B EL 2 IR R /55 1,435,235 841,638
Net cash flows used in investing WEEEFAZ
activities BE&mEa (503,780) (1,202,998)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEREBEL(FTA)Z
financing activities REMFRE (761,490) 221,700
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBLSEWEM
cash equivalents (R ) F58 169,965 (139,660)
)
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20.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 0.REEZE R ZIE
Group
AEHE

2014 2013

20144 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT T T

Share of net assets PEBEFE 758,932 704,834

The amounts due from and to associates included in FFARBEERABBE B ERARIRA KL

current assets and current liabilities of HK$16,273,000
(2013: HK$21,753,000) and HK$154,453,000 (2013:
HK$248,369,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 39 to the financial
statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not
individually material:

it N B FRIE S Bl 716,273,000 7T (2013
% 121,753,000/ 7T ) &% 154,453,000/ 7T
(20134 : 248,369,000/8 7T, ) - ¥ /R EHE
RBRRREREE-

g

REEMN2014F12H31B 2 F &
FHITEN M R M RE39 -

ks

TSRIINI A E L T E AR A A
A8 5 A

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Share of profits for the year (5 F E i A 93,816 113,916
Share of the associates’ FEAG = R R
other comprehensive income/(loss) HE2mlA (Ei8) 657 (477)
Share of the associates’ FEAG = R RHY
total comprehensive income A B 94,473 113,439
Aggregate carrying amount of NEE B E R T
the Group’s investments AR
in the associates BRAEEAR 758,932 704,834
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21.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
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Q1. N ERE

Group
A&
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M Fi#&xT FATT
Non-current JE RN EA
Unlisted equity investments FELEmEREE (i) 214,106 214,129
Current BN ER
Financial products & RUE M (ii) 399,305 =
Notes: B 5T

(i)  The unlisted equity investments were outside Hong Kong. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

(i) The financial products were issued by certain banks in
Mainland China and had original maturity of less than one year
when acquired.

As at 31 December 2014, certain unlisted equity
investments and financial products with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$613,411,000 (2013:
HK$214,129,000) were stated at cost less impairment
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

In 2013, an impairment of HK$1,866,000 was recognised
for an available-for-sale investment in the wine segment with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,070,000 (before
deducting the impairment loss) because there are objective
evidences indicating that such investment was impaired.

() SEEMEBRREHNE BRI NEBE
BERMHASERE-

(i) SBMERDAETHBEAMRITET BAR
R —FAZIH -

R2014412A31H ' BRAE 4218 A613,411,000
77T (20134F : 214,129,000 7T) 2 & T IE E
MERIEE R E @ AKX A E R R ES]
BRI ERAENATEGBTSHEER B
EREBERATEEELAEE-

R2013F  EmBOBABEEES
4,070,000/ 7T (RINERBERERT) < Al
EREEAMELBS000E T RAREE
BREBREALERELBARE-
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22.BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

2. FEEE

Group
AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT
At 1 January R1A1H 190,798 184,427
Decrease due to harvest A Wi Bt (28,745) (16,411)
Additions during the year FRANE 12,203 17,122
Disposal during the year FANEE - (6,248)
Unrealised gains arising from changes HREE&ZZ#< A FE
in fair value attributable to physical MR TEA
changes 2 ARER W 31,850 10,512
Exchange realignment PE &, 582 (5,300) 1,396
At 31 December M12H31H 200,806 190,798

During the year, the Group harvested approximately
2,527,000 kilograms (2013: 1,708,000 kilograms) of
grapes, which had a fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs of HK$28,745,000 (2013: HK$16,411,000). The
fair value of grapes was determined with reference to their
market prices. The unrealised gains arising from changes
in fair value attributable to physical changes are included in
the statement of profit or loss.

The Group’s biological assets are grape vines and were
revalued on 31 December 2014 based on valuation
performed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$200,806,000 (2013: HK$190,798,000).

Significant assumptions made in determining the fair value
of the biological assets based on discounted cash flow
projections are as follows:

(i) the grape vines will continue to be competently
managed and remain free from irremediable diseases in
the remaining estimated useful lives; and

(i) the expected prices of grapes are based on the
historical average district prices.
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%$¢F§v$%ﬁ%’ﬂ&ﬁﬁziﬁz5z7000
fr (20134 : 1,708,000 fT) » H A FE R &
TS 5)3%4‘?%28,745,000/%% (20134
16,411,000/ 70) cBH 2 AFEHIETEM
Er REEE2HSATFENREHMELEY
REBRWEEBREEESRET -

R2014F12A318 AEBEEMEEZE B
BEE WABLEXEERTEME—KF
HEHAEREXERAR AR EFGE
/£200,806,000/% 7T (20134 : 190,798,000/5
JC) °
%Fﬁﬁiﬁiﬁi/;|b§/£?£E$%§§ZQ¥TE
RrFTER 2 EERBT

() BEEBEEERLER KRBT 2MbE
ARBRAT IEEE: &

(i) BE2ESEEDRZEES FHE
e o o



22.BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s biological assets:
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22. B E ()

NEERER

TRIPAREEEMEEN R FEFERBR

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2014 using

R2014E12BNBRATI AR A ENATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

b33 Tz TE

TiHRE ABZ2Y TAHES2E
(£—18) ($5Z/8) ($=®) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T

Recurring fair value 3 TFIEE SR
measurement for: AYEHE:

Grape vines BER - - 200,806 200,806

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2013 using
RH2013F12A31B KA T ARG EMATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

R TZ IZ

i mE IBER28  TUBR2H
(F—E) (F-E) (%=E) Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT THIT THT THT

Recurring fair value s TFIE B R
measurement for: NEEHE:

Grape vines B&EH - = 190,798 190,798

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil).

RER A HEAEEF - ERE_EZHL
EETRE TEEE-FETEAREH
(20134 : £&) -
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22.BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of Biological assets:

22. B E (m)

NEEER (@)

TERBAEHEYEEETEHERARAN
METERTEZH:

Range or weighted

average
& [ 5 I T 1
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs 2014 2013
(EIEWR FTEFTEESLY 20145 20134
Grape vines Discounted cash flow Estimated grape price 2.3t0%15.0 2.75t0%14.8
method (HK$ per kilogram)
aas BB emEE fEtBaEER (BAFBT)
Grape price growth per annum 1%-10% 0%-10%
BEEEHBRRE
Estimated production volume 98-961 98-988
(kilogram/mu)
s ES (DT /®)
Discount rate 8%-14% 8%-14%
RSB %
Age of vine (year) 5-40 15-45
BEGFR (F)
Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is ZRRENRIB e RE S A TEDNERAEHEEE

estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset's life. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of
the income stream associated with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as
life of vines. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property.
The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less
rental expenses, labour costs, utilities and other operating
and management expenses. The series of periodic net
operating income is then discounted.
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22.BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated grape
price, grape price growth rate per annum and the estimated
production volume in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the biological assets.
A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount rate in
isolation would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in
the fair value of the biological assets. Generally, a change
in the assumption made for the estimated grape price is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the grape
price growth per annum and the discount rate and an
opposite change in the estimated production volume.

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

22.F B E )

NEEER (@)

EHEBHER PEERFERRRIEHES
BEBAEEM, CRL) BEBEWEEND
TEKELM, CRL) - BR K BB AR
/GRS EBE B EN D TEAER
L/ (HBI) - —RW S - BB EBIEL
M RER M B B & BB A (B K 4 2 18 K B 3R
EHRFASPRETEELERAES -

23.INVENTORIES BEFE

Group

AEHE
2014 2013
2014% 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT T T
Raw materials ¥ 2,227,415 2,402,038
Work in progress T2 12,612 14,808
Finished goods BUAK 2,061,391 3,449,359
4,301,418 5,866,205
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24.ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24. FE W BR X N 4R

Group
rE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT TAT
Accounts and bills receivables FEUL BR TR I =ik 1,843,059 1,741,047
Impairment A (71,867) (46,290)
1,771,192 1,694,757

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
for one to three months. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts and bills receivable balances. Accounts
and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of provisions, is as follows:

BHEEPIN ARBEREFPZESGHIER
BERRY —RAEFTEFLBLEMNK-EE
H—RNF—=2=AH -BEREFFPHRAEE
B LR - AEE S RERBRRIED EREERE
WERSR M BB S EIEHIER - BRI EE AR
ERE-SREEEEHMERANGS -ER
bt URARESRAETRER ZEWR
B BMEERRZETREYTEE K&
] 3 4 KL R WK AR R R RIR A BRI B (R
o EAE AR - RUERHR R RS

B o
i

R R AEIR 2 BRRR R RIB ARG IZ %
ZRABANRBBEITAT

Group

AE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 3 months 3E AR 1,486,684 1,438,714
3 to 12 months EAZEI2E AR 227,432 204,526
1 to 2 years 1FZE2F R 26,930 6,857
Over 2 years Bim2F 30,146 44,660
1,771,192 1,694,757
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24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24 FE R BR 3k & 232 ()

(continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts FEWBRFORE R EE BT -
receivable are as follows:

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T T
At 1 January R1A1H 46,290 34,073
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B #ERBEEE (FiE6) 27,269 11,800
Amount written off as uncollectible P AR AR 8 2 ERE (1,495) (826)
Exchange realignment P& 5 B (197) 1,243
At 31 December R12A31H 71,867 46,290
Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts it R BR BB (B B B 4R 8 B R (B FE UK
receivable is a provision for individually impaired accounts BRAR Z B 471,867,000/ T (20134 :
receivable of HK$71,867,000 (2013: HK$46,290,000) with 46,290,000/ 7T ) ' 3% 5 & Uk BR 3K B & A
a carrying amount before provision of HK$296,026,000 Z R B #) £296,026,000/% 7T (20134 :
(2013: HK$124,695,000). 124,695,0005 7t ) °
The individually impaired accounts receivable relate to B {E BB E 2 FE Uk BR 3¢ T3 B2 BR 7 B B IR Bk
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in default HWARAE RFBZEFHR FEHZEWRER
in both interest and principal payments and only a portion of E 3B ee LU E -

the receivables is expected to be recovered.
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24, ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
that are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

24 FE AR 3k K Z2 4% ()

BB K KR RBERELZ BREHRRTEEZ
RREeDATIAT -

Group

AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TATT
Neither past due nor impaired PR e N K 1,530,857 1,389,003
Within 1 year past due B HA1F LA A 16,176 188,293

More than 1 year but less than WHIIF LA E

2 years past due BAORmE - 861
More than 2 years past due BHER2EF LA F - 38,195
1,547,033 1,616,352

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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24.ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE NOT
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Endorsed Bills”) with a carrying amount of HK$5,759,000
(2013: HK$9,092,000) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to these Endorsed Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group
does not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of
the trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills during the
year to which the suppliers had recourse was HK$5,759,000
(2013: HK$9,092,000) as at 31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China (the
“Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to these suppliers with a
carrying amount in aggregate of HK$32,697,000 (2013:
HK$171,719,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity
from one to six months at the end of the reporting period.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in
the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills are not significant.

24. FE WBR 5
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e 0D

REMIEERZEMEE

R20145F12A318 AEEREE THES
7= F B KRE R1T% 4 A AR 1 {5735, 759,000
P 7T (20134F : 9,092,000/ 7T ) 2 & T EUWE
BR(BERE]) WEBRNZSHERD
ERNESER(IEE]) EERE AKHE
EREAMORERL@E BREEZEFSE
SBREMNRORAR Rt RESEREE
SR;EBEBERNESRAHNEERE
B-BER AREUEREEASEREL
N BRERAEMNE=7HE BFELE
WEERE - N2014F12A31H  FRLANE
RENEERBEFEZRNEZRN KA
18 48 %8 /35,759,0007% 7T (2013%F : 9,092,000
BIT)

CEMEEBRIEZEMERE

M20145F12H310 - A& B R A E FHER
BEPEAERITEMANE TRKRER ([
HERER])  LAFERNZEHERDE
H%%%Q\%Eﬁ%$ﬁwewom%ﬁ
(20134 : 171,719,000/ 7T ) ° R 3R & HI K -
Hi/ﬁﬁﬁuumy%m U/ﬁﬁﬂ)l? i/\1.ﬂ *E'JF
PEERE M FHEAERTIER  BUS
BRAEEFAAUAEBRRAERE ([FE
Fh]) - BERR AEEEBEREHIUETE
REREAFRD E g K 05 o Fitt - K2 VA
ERZBOHERRE RERENE SRR
2HREE - ARBEFBES NBUHERRE
AR EEEEEREEAARTIRIB S MM E
HHssEBERERREAENARAE - EFR
R AEERESREUEERREN A TEL
-P N

I

PEREmARA T
—E-FR
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24.ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24,

(continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY

(continued)

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain
or loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills.
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

FEW BRI N 4R ()

Eé%ﬂﬂl éﬁEntL\ZﬁﬁﬂﬁE (#8)

ilﬁ AREEY EREBRIOHERRIR < B
REMERS - ARE W ERTE S LERFA
&E%uﬂﬁm BEEECRFRABIFEET

25.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 5.3 N FEIABR BRI
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =)
Group Company
r5HE Y /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013% 20145 2013%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TET FET TAT
Listed equity securities in BEBELTRE
Hong Kong, at fair value BAFE 14,728 13,872 9,213 8932

The above investments at 31 December 2014 and 2013
were classified as held for trading and were, upon initial
recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets as
at fair value through profit or loss.
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26.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Notes to Financial Statements
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260 e NIReFEEE - XEH

RITAEER M B B

Group Company
A£E Y. /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 2013F 20145 20135
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHEL TET TETL
Cash and bank balances BekRTEH 1,356,458 2,457,736 47,251 42 654
Time deposits T HER 162,947 134,095 - =
1,519,405 2,591,831 47,251 42,654
Less: Restricted bank balances # i : IR #IR1TA * - (165) - -
Pledged time deposits: EEATHER:
Pledged for short term bank pRHRTE XM ER
loans (note 28) (P zE28) (116,273) (116,273) - -
Pledged for bills payable A NES
(note 27) (HizE27) (46,674) (17,382) - =
Cash and cash equivalents BekBHeEEEA 1,356,458 2,458,011 47,251 42 654

& The amounts were restricted solely for the purpose of the
acquisition of a 100% equity interest in an entity.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$1,246,865,000 (2013: HK$2,244,422,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of within one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.
The bank balances, restricted bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

f RS RERREERBERER 2 EBE-

RIFEHR AEEAARE (TARE]) A
BAREMREEEY ZREIRITER
LA K B #3817 70 51,246,865,00058 7T (2013
F 12,244,422 0008 70) - ARBERAI B AL
BAHAME R - I - BRI A B K REIMNEE
&7 R 4508 - EERSESERT  AEBEE
EEBRETETINEXEB 2 RITHARER
R NS o

FRRRIT 2R E THIEE BRITERM R
B 2R BN RREA S - RFAEEANR 23R
EHERME CHERERDE—FALEF
Z BRI W IR 52 HATE HA T SN R R ER A
B RITHER  RRBIBITEBR R EMIFR
TFABO Y EENGCIRZFERITZRIT
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27.ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

27 FEN R R E B

REHFHBMBMR 2 BARRKEERREZE
SERMOFT

follows:

Group

AE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 3 months I EDERA 1,304,299 1,073,196
3 to 12 months MEAZEI2M@AA 50,266 92,656
1 to 2 years 1FEE2FR 10,667 18,356
Over 2 years HiE2F 6,874 7,494
1,372,106 1,191,702

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled in one to three months and one to
six months, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by
the pledge of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to
HK$46,674,000 (2013: HK$17,382,000).
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TEZH G ®
28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 85T BIRITER N EMERK
Group rEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$’000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBRHE(%) ZH A FET  BREFE%) = FAT
Current N A
Bank loans - secured RITET—HEF 0.68-6.00 2015 293,221 0.62-6.00 2014 293,817
20155 20145
Bank loans — unsecured RITEF-EER 1.09-6.72 2015 or on 1,031,353 1.25-6.00 2014 or on 2,198,535
demand demand
20154 20145
BiREH RIZAEA
Other loans — unsecured Hin 57— EE A 5.60 2015 36,420 5.60 2014 45,203
20155 20145
1,360,994 2,537,555
Non-current JEENH
Bank loans - unsecured BABR— R 0.94-2.14  2016-2017 2,100,000 090-120  2015-2016 1,600,000
20165 ZF 2015 %
20174 20165
2,100,000 1,600,000
3,460,994 4,137 555
Analysed into: AT
Bank loans repayable: FREZRITER:
Within one year or —ERE|Hk
on demand RBRNEE 1,324,574 2,492 352
In the second year E_F 1,400,000 200,000
In the third to fifth years, EZFRE
inclusive ERF(BE
BEEWF) 700,000 1,400,000
3,424,574 4,092,352
Other loans repayable: FEEZEMER:
Within one year —EREH 36,420 45,203
36,420 45203
3,460,994 4,137,555
FRHERERR A
—T—FH
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e L= 15 £
28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 85T BIRITER N EMERK

OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) (&)

Notes: B 5 -

(a) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by: (a) AEEZEBMHIRITERTIAA T ZIBIEER
(i) mortgages over certain of the Group’s buildings, which () EIFALEEERREY A182,092,000/5

had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately JC (20134 : 189,542,000/ 7T ) Z & T 1&
HK$182,092,000 (2013: HK$189,542,000) (note 14); F (MfsE14) :

(i) mortgages over certain of the Group's land use rights, (i HEIRAEEEBELTEL R17,434,000% 7T
which had an aggregate carrying amount of approximately (20134 : 17,919,000/ 7T ) 2 & T L ibfF
HK$17,434,000 (2013: HK$17,919,000) (note 16); and FA%E (PfiIeE16) « &

(i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits (i) EAAEES T AR116,273,000% 7T
amounting to HK$116,273,000 (2013: HK$116,273,000) (20134 : 116,273,0005%% j5) 2 & T & &8
(note 26). T (KI5E26) -

(b) Except for bank loans of HK$271,752,000 (2013: (b) FERI2014512A31H271,752,0007% Jt (2013
HK$349,752,000) denominated in United States dollars and 4F : 349,752,000 /& 7T ) HIERITE FHIAETTEHE
HK$239,242,000 (2013: HK$239,803,000) denominated $239,242,0007% 7T (20134 : 239,803,000/%8
in RMB as at 31 December 2014, all other borrowings were TL) AARBEHESIN BT EMERABITE
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. fBo

The other loans represented loans of HK$36,420,000 ﬁ1ﬁf§?ﬂﬂ$%WJ%;@ETZ?FT?HQ%%%@E

(2013: HK$45,203,000) from a non-controlling shareholder 2 B 36,420,000 7t (20134 : 45,203,000

of the subsidiaries of the Group. These balances are BIT) °#& %%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ " REBF5.62

unsecured and bear interest at the rate of 5.6% (2013: (20134 : 5.62 ) B F E5T B o

5.6%) per annum.

204 China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

BA T R R M =E
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 285 RRITER M EMERK

OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) ()
Company Vi /N
2014 2013
20145 2013F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$’000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRHE(%) ZH A FET  BREAE%) Z A FAT
Current I
Bank loans - unsecured RITER-—BER 1.17-1.75 2015 or on 306,000 1.40-2.09 2014 or on 982,000
demand demand
20154 20145
BIREMN S IREA
306,000 982,000
Non-current JEENH
Bank loans — unsecured RITEH-—EEA 0.94-2.14 2016-2017 2,100,000 0.90-1.09 2016 1,400,000
20165 20165
F20174
2,100,000 1,400,000
2,406,000 2,382,000
Analysed into: A
Bank loans repayable: HEEZHITER:
Within one year or on —F R E|H sk
demand REHNEE 306,000 982,000
In the second year FEF 1,400,000 =
In the third to fifth years, F=FF
inclusive ENF (B
BEMF) 700,000 1,400,000
2,406,000 2,382,000
FRHERERR A
—E-FR
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29.DEFERRED TAX 29. R T I8
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during REENELEHIEGEREEZ ST

the year are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES BEEHEERE
Group A&
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
investment
properties,
biological
assets and
acquisition of Withholding
subsidiaries taxes Total
HEME
EMEER
WM B A R
Efz
NEERAE EmH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHL FET
At 1 January 2013 M2013%F1H1H 57,904 38,202 96,106
Deferred tax credited to the statement of RARFEBIZBRRANTALZ
profit or loss during the year (note 10)  IEFEFIE (FI7E10) (88) (38,202) (38,290)
Exchange realignment b 54, A 2 1,215 = 1,215
At 31 December 2013 and M2013F12A318 &
at 1 January 2014 2014F1/1H 59,031 - 59,031
Deferred tax charged to the statement of RAGFE B HEANG 2
profit or loss during the year (note 10)  {EFEFEIE (Ff5E10) 5,310 = 5,310
Deferred tax charged to RAFEEMEZEBA
other comprehensive income kil
during the year RAEFIE 1,825 - 1,825
Exchange realignment BEE 5, R B (2,293) - (2,293)
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31H 63,873 - 63,873
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. 3R AEFRTE ()

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS BEEHREEE
Group rE&E
Losses
available for
Provision offsetting
against Impairment  against future Unrealised Deferred
inventories  of receivables taxable profits Accruals profits income Others Total
AR
FRERHR
FEERE BRFERE  AE0ER BERER  AEREN BB iy Ehi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER THT THT THT THET TAR TET
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A18 159 8124 109,582 42,650 60,995 718 7,625 229,853
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ RAFEBRHEA
the statement of profit or loss A/ (HB) 2
during the year (note 10) EIERE (MFF10) 1,068 (945) (87,769) (5,582) (33,359) 19,983 6,888 (99,716)
Exchange realignment ERAE 2 240 2,057 1,248 511 335 220 4633
At 31 December 2013 and W2013F12A318 &
at 1 January 2014 2014F1 718 1,249 7419 23370 38,316 28 147 21,036 14733 134,770
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ RAFERFEREA
the statement of profit or loss A/ (R) 2
during the year (note 10) ERERE (HzEL0) 801 (968) 32,447 21,833 (6,502) 3,406 (638) 50,379
Exchange realignment ELAR (6) (23) (117) (165) (59) (76) (182) (628)
At 31 December 2014 20144124318 2,044 6,428 56,200 59,984 21,586 24,366 13913 184,521

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$2,467,686,000 (2013: HK$1,802,903,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits to a
maximum period of five years of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
France and Chile of HK$33,085,000 in aggregate (2013:
HK$10,896,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the company in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

A ER B 2R B o B KRE 2 $ 18 732,467,686,000
75 7T (20134F : 1,802,903,000/% 7T ) A] fit 2= A=
EFERzARERREREAF ZHEARE
HARRE RPN - NEEAFE R EE MR
B & &t 2 B8 /33,085,000 7T (20134 -

10,896,000/87T) * Al E L EIR 2 R BIE A
BT AR EEARRERTEHN - R ZF
BEREEENEBERE-REEZMERQ
Al - BB RSN A] 8 B % F
B RUTELZSERERELERBREE
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29.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China or offshore incorporated enterprises
which are regarded as Chinese Resident Enterprise (“CRE”").
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China or offshore incorporated enterprises which
are regarded as CRE in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the approvals received by the Company from the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company
and most of its subsidiaries are regarded as CRE and
relevant enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to
the Company and these subsidiaries starting from 1 January
2013. As a result, the Company and these subsidiaries
are therefore no longer liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by their subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of retained earnings generated
from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2012. Accordingly,
during the year of 2013, the Group has reversed recognised
deferred tax liabilities in respect of the aforementioned
withholding tax amounting to HK$38,202,000 which was
attributed to certain of the Group subsidiaries established
in Mainland China with a plan to distribute dividends in the
foreseeable future and no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes on the unremitted earnings of the
Group's subsidiaries or associates established in Mainland
China at 31 December 2014.
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BEREEE (@)

RER BT S HE R BRRER N 2
INEESEBRIIEMAL 2 FEERDE
[FEERGE|AMREEESRERS B
RN B ZBSIN10% 2 TENFL © It 38 T R 20084F
1B 18 AR AR2007612 A31 8 2 % #
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RRTRRERED B R FHERE ST EE
RE%¥ - MB2013F1A1IREBERARAEREMN
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FhELA AR B b B L 2 P B8 /A B] 5 20084 1 A
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30.SHARE CAPITAL 30. & A
Shares 2014 2013
B 4 20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FATT
Authorised: VETE
4,000,000,000 FREEO.108 T2 T @
(2013: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (20134 : 4,000,000,0005% ) 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE:
2,797,223,396 T EA2,797,223,3960%
(2013: 2,797,223,396) (20134 :
ordinary shares 2,797,223,396% ) 279,722 279,722
A summary of the movement in the Company’s issued share RARIEBITRA SR T
capital is as follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BETRMBE BETRA B i B R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET TAET
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 2,797,191,396 279,719 37,171 316,890
Share options exercised B0 REAR 32,000 3 19 199
At 31 December 2013, 20135128318
1 January 2014 and 2014F1818 &
31 December 2014 2014127318 2,797,223,396 279,722 37,367 317,089

In 2013, the subscription rights attaching to 32,000
share options were exercised at the subscription price
of HK$4.952 per share (note 31), resulting in the
issue of 32,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total
cash consideration, before expenses of HK$9,000, of
approximately HK$158,000. An amount of HK50,000 was
transferred from the employee share-based compensation
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 31 to
the financial statements.

M 20134 + 32,0001 i A% #E AT B 2 3R S #E 4%
RIEEFTNR4.952/8 7T (MfE31) BT B
2%£1732,0008% F A& E1E0. 1078 T Z i 17 - 4838
& (B (0B 217 5 529,000 JT 2 AT ) 49 &
158,000 7T ° 50,0005 7T [ 17 18 B A% 4 M £
BERAGEETHHEEREZR D EER-

B

ARBIBREE R EREEHTHER
BN B MR E3L -

B

=
(W
A =0
| o
=3
S
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 21 November
2006, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The Scheme became effective
on 21 November 2006 (the “Effective Date”) and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
senior management personnel and key employees of
the Company, and provide eligible participants with an
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage eligible participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
issued shares of the Company at the date of the adoption
of the Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options granted to each eligible participant
pursuant to the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
relevant time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of its
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the relevant time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’'s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer. The exercise periods of the
share options granted commence subject to the applicable
vesting schedule and in any event end on a date which is
not later than seven years from the date of acceptance of
the share options, subject to early termination thereof as
provided in the Scheme.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31.EB R RERT 2] ()

The exercise price shall be determined by the board and
shall be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the date of the offer; (b) the average closing prices of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; or (c) the nominal value of a
share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

On 27 September 2007, a total of 20,619,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group in respect of their services to the
Group (the “2007 Options”). The exercise price of the 2007
Options is HK$4.952 per share. The closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$4.85 per share.

The following 2007 Options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

TEEREFSET YARUT=HZES
EF (@QRENERBTEMERXIMERRAT
(M) B RRERAEBDWHE: (b)
REZRZH AR EZXABIMEH R
EBRAERD 2 FHRHE &) Bipzm
o

BB A TR A A MCEA BE R S S X
RREREZHER -

R2007F9 278 R RABMARRETES
MAEBETREAASERERBSMZHE
+£20,619,00017 i A& # ([2007 5 FER%#E ) ©
220074F BRI 1T (B BB AR4.9528 7T °
ZEER B AE B BN R R DA T (E
BEFMRA.857 T

FA - RIFEZE 8T 512007 5 85 A AE (= AR 1T
f&

2014 2013
2014% 2013F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
I TEHITER BRESE METHIRE BREE A

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share '000
BrER T4 BT ER T4
At 1 January R1A1R 4.952 9,029 4952 9,795
Lapsed during the year FRRK 4.952 (9,029) 4952 (734)
Exercised during the year FRITE 4.952 - 4952 (32)
At 31 December R®12A318 4.952 - 4.952 9,029

The weighted average closing price of the shares at the
dates of exercise of share options in 2013 was HK$7.45.

R2013FRITERAEE B &y g F1 (7
Wi B R7.45% T

e
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 29 March 2011, a total of 30,880,000 share options
were granted to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group in respect of their services to the
Group (the “2011 Options”). The exercise price of the 2011
Options is HK$4.91. The closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.80
per share.

The following 2011 Options were outstanding under the

31.EBRREET 2 ()

M2011F3A29H KRB ARRETES
EAEEETRERNASEREREME LS
#£30,880,00017 & B4 ([20115FRE R HE | ) ©
2011 FBRENTTEER/IIET  BHER
HIERE BRI AR RRONKTERER
4808 7TT°

FA - RIFEZE ST 520115 B8 B W R 1T

Scheme during the year: fiE
2014 2013
20145 2013F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
T TER BRE®E METHIRE RS A

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share '000
BBk T3 BT EK T4
At 1 January R1A1H 4,910 26,900 4910 28,580
Lapsed during the year FRRK 4910 (1,200) 4910 (1,680)
At 31 December R®12A318 4.910 25,700 4910 26,900

The exercise price and exercise periods of the 2011 Options

TR ¥ BR (5 R 1T 2 201 15F BB A A 2 1T {2

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as BRITERMT :
follows:
Number of options granted to
RHEREHE
Exercise
Directors Employees Total Vesting period price* Exercise period
= =] At BEH fTiEE" 17 89
'000 '000 '000 HK$ per share
T3 T3 T BITER
508 4,728 5236  29-3-2011 toF 28-3-2013 4910  29-3-2013 toE 28-3-2018
508 4,728 5236  29-3-2011 toZF 28-3-2014 4910  29-3-2014 toZ 28-3-2018
508 4,568 5,076  29-3-2011 toF 28-3-2015 4910  29-3-2015 toE 28-3-2018
508 4,568 5,076  29-3-2011 toZF 28-3-2016 4910  29-3-2016 toX 28-3-2018
508 4,568 5,076  29-3-2011 toF 28-3-2017 4910  29-3-2017 toZ 28-3-2018
2,540 23,160 25,700
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment AR REITHR  BITARSKER AR E
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes AL ) - BRERRE 2 T BA TR -

in the Company’s share capital.
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair values of the 2007 Options and the 2011 Options of
the Scheme granted during the years ended 31 December
2007 and 31 December 2011 were HK$32,227,000
(approximately HK$1.563 each) and HK$47,124,000
(approximately HK$1.526 each), respectively, of which
the Company recognised a share option expense of
HK$4,168,000 (2013: HK$7,331,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2011
were estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-
Scholes-Merton option pricing model and a binomial option
pricing model, respectively, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:
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31.EB R RERT 2 ()

BiEZT 2N E 20074128318 420114
128318 [EFE R H #2007 4 BB A HE 12011
FRERRE 2 N ED R A32,227,000%8 T (&
15 #91.563% 7T ) K47,124,000/ 7T (& 15 4
1.526/87T) @+ EFRAQGREE2014F127
318 IEFE R IE IR X A4,168,000% T
(20134 : 7,331,000 ) ©

B ZE20074F 20116 12A31H LR FER
BROMBRAGE 2 BREZ AFEINET
BREERSRARA R —FRATHEEE
BAR ZEAREEEEAFLGET YEE
IR R AR 2 IRk B Mk - TRPIH R R
ZEAHE:

2011 Options

2007 Options

20115 BE PR 42 2007 F Rk 4

Date of grant & B E 29 March 2011 27 September 2007
201143A29H 200799 R 27H

Dividend yield (%) % B & (%) 2.109 0.8
Expected volatility (%) T8 HR R 18 (%) 33.716 30.570
Historical volatility (%) B R E(%) 33.716 30.570
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 [ i ) = (%) 2.40 4.102
Expected life of options (year) BREEFE (F) 7 5
Weighted average share price (HK$) MEFH RO ER (BT) 4910 4952

The expected life of the options is determined with reference
to the vesting term and original contractual term of the
Scheme and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

BREEFRL2EZE 2 BBHR R
[RA & KRN ETE - RUBERRTTIERB A
R T o TR HTR 18 [ R B 1ER 08 AT SRR R 2K 8
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31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, a total of 25,700,000
(2013: 35,929,400) share options remained outstanding
under the Scheme. The 2007 Options and the 2011
Options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had remaining
contractual lives of O years (2013: 0.74 years) and 3.25
years (2013: 4.25 years), respectively. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 25,700,000 (2013: 35,929,400) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$2,570,000 (2013: approximately
HK$3,593,000) and the share premium of approximately
HK$123,617,000 (2013: HK$173,200,000) (before issue
expenses).

32.RESERVES

(A)GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 107 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits
of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
in Mainland China has been transferred to reserve
funds which are restricted as to use.

The Group's capital reserve includes:

(1) the differences between the consideration and the
book value of the share of net assets acquired/
disposed of when there is a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control;

(2) share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of an
associate; and
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RIFEBR FTEETNERITENBERES
#25,700,0001 (20134F : 35,929,4001% ) °
20074 &20114F B B # 74201412 A31H
M ARITIERBRERG A L BR S 5 B0F
(20134 : 0.74% ) }23.254F (20134 : 4.25
F) EARRRENEREE N2EITEMN
RATIE HOBE AR A #5238 BN A B357725,700,000
A% (20134 : 35,929,4000% ) %8 Hb & 3@ A%
K 58 9N I 7R 492,570,0005 7T (20134F : 49
3,593,000/ 7t ) K& B& 17 ¥4 (& #9123,617,00075
7T (20134F : #9173,200,000 75 ) ($0BR 31T
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32.RESERVES (continued)
(A) GROUP (continued)

(3) the contributed surplus which represents:

(i)

(i)

the excess value of the shares acquired over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor under the group
reorganisation in 1991, less the goodwill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates which remains eliminated against
the capital reserve; and

the excess value of the shares acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor under the
reorganisation as completed during the year
ended 31 December 2006.

On 15 April 2008, the board of the directors passed a
resolution in relation to a share premium cancellation
pursuant to section 46 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, which was approved by shareholders on
a special resolution on 19 May 2008, and was later
approved by the registrar of companies of Bermuda
on 3 June 2008. Accordingly, the share premium
accounting for approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was
transferred to the contributed surplus during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

32 ()

(A K&EHE (@)
(3) BAZE B:

() MINIFEEZAERATIERN
ZEBEBEAATEEMETL
B EEBR BHEDAER
REFEFEP MG ZWBHB AT R
BERBIMEEZEHE &

(i) BIEH =2006512A318 IEF
EEKMEAMKERD Z(EE
BEAA R RF L mETZROE
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32.RESERVES (continued)

CYRCLAC))

(BJCOMPANY (B) &K/ &
Employee Retained
Share share-based profits/
premium compensation  Contributed (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
EERA RE#ERN/
BiEER SEFMEE BANER  (RFER) A&t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 THEL THEL THEL FHL THL
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1R 37,171 36,680 4,759,898 (2,115) 4,831,634
Total comprehensive income A& E 2 E WA
for the year faks) - - - 274,064 274,064
Exercise of share options 71 BRI 30 19 (50) = = 146
Equity-settled share option R4S B EE Rk HE
arrangements ZH 31 = 7,331 = = 7,331
Transfer of employee REERIER K
share-based compensation  Z| IS EE(E S
reserve upon the forfeiture  fRAZEE
or expiry of share options 5Bl 215 - (2,776) - 2776 =
At 31 December 2013and ~ #2013F12A318 &
1 January 2014 2014F181H 37,367 41,185 4,759,898 274,725 5,113,175
Total comprehensive loss ~ AEE2HEEE
for the year b - - - (45,257) (45,257)
Equity-settled share option XA 25 & B i
arrangements Z i 31 = 4,168 = = 4,168
Transfer of employee B R AR sk
share-based compensation ~ Z|EiRSE:2ES
reserve upon the forfeiture A&
or expiry of share options ~ ZF Bl 41 - (15,546) - 15,546 =
At 31 December 2014 2014124318 37,367 29,807 4,759,898 245,014 5,072,086
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32.RESERVES (continued)
(B) COMPANY (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i) the difference between the underlying net assets
of subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor
under a group reorganisation in 1991; and

(ii) the difference between the consideration payable
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor under the reorganisation
completed during the year ended 31 December
2006.

On 15 April 2008, the board of the directors passed a
resolution in relation to a share premium cancellation
pursuant to section 46 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, which was approved by shareholders by
a special resolution on 19 May 2008, and was later
approved by the registrar of companies of Bermuda
on 3 June 2008. Accordingly, the share premium
accounting for approximately HK$3,660,432,000 was
transferred to the contributed surplus during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.
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32.RESERVES (continued) 32. & ca)

(B)COMPANY (continued) (B) A& ] ()
In addition to the retained profits of the Company, under BRAR R ZRB R FIIN - IR B FR#E1981
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed FREDE  ANRAR)ZEBABERINA DR
surplus of the Company is also available for distribution FEBRR AT ARBETHNERL TR
to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot BERIRTRE D RBARKRF 2
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of SRIA -

its contributed surplus, if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, (i) ANRAFEENEDIRE R EEEED
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or BB & 2k

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would (i) XRREEZEBFEESHLME
thereby be less than the aggregate realisable value REBEUERERE A2 ETRA
of its liabilities and its issued share capital and M aEBR=EAT 2% -

share premium account.

33.BUSINESS COMBINATION 33.EEE GF

In August 2014, COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd., a MR2014568A  AREl 22 EWBF AR IE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100% EERBEEHRERAFEBLE=ZFUNE
interest in Changli Huaxia Chateau Travel Co., Ltd. (“Huaxia REWEERGEEHRREAR AR ([FE
Travel”) from independent third parties for nil consideration Bk#z]) 2100%# 2 ([H k) - EB R
(the “Acquisition”). The principal activities of Huaxia Travel L EBEBRRMEIKRE RE R -

are the provision of travelling and catering services.

2 18 China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014



Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

33.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) BEBEH@®
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of RUEERBEERE 2 BRI EEREE 2
Huaxia Travel as at the date of the acquisition were as NEEWT
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
NFE
HK$'000
T T
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) M R B Rk (MiEEL4) 128
Inventories FE 1,433
Accounts receivable JE W AR 3K 175
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfT /I8 - 126 R H Ath R UG IR 402
Cash and bank balances He LIRTTHE 1,405
Accounts and bills payables JERBRR R ZE (1,034)
Other payables and accruals B RIEREAE (2,298)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEGZAEANEEFEERE 211
Gain on bargain purchase recognised in RizEBERERERZ
other income and gains in the consolidated E A M Uz M RERR
statement of profit or loss (note 5) 2B E R (D) (211)
Consideration RAE =
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in fHENESFE e RB2FEEE Z2RA
respect of the Acquisition is as follows: FEEDMTWT :
HK$'000
T T
Consideration RIE =
Cash and bank balances acquired P g IR & & ERTT A5 # 1,405
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included Z| AREEEAMBEREE RIS M
in cash flows used in investing activities HeFEBAEB Z2RAFERE 1,405
Since the Acquisition, Huaxia Travel contributed BB EIENR  EEREANERE 2 L5538
HK$3,960,000 to the Group’s turnover and a profit of & [E43,960,00078 7T & [M & =20144 12 A31H
HK$784,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 LIEFE 276 % ) & Bh& F1784,0000 T ©
December 2014.
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the MEHREIET NEBRAEE 2 WA K
year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group si A% &26,750,587,0007% 7T }2.27,033,0007%

for the year would have been HK$26,750,587,000 and JT°

HK$27,033,000.
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34.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s contingent
liabilities not provided for in the financial statements were as

BE

M. HARBIE
2

SR AEEY BERMEAKAAG-

RBERR - M BRRAREHRZ AR A A
BEWT:

follows:
Company
v N
2014 2013
2014% 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Guarantees given to banks in R—HERBARERZ
connection with facilities granted BbE M MR THR A
to a subsidiary ZIER - 387,500

As at 31 December 2013, the banking facilities granted to
a subsidiary subject to guarantees given to banks by the
Company were not utilised.

35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(A)AS LESSOR

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twelve years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.
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35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(A)AS LESSOR (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due

35.
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BT AL )

(AVEEHBEAN (@)
RIBER AEERELEAST Y
AR C LA RER Y RERERS
wEmNT -

as follows:
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FATT
Within one year —F R 8,117 7,883
In the second to fifth years, F_EFRF
inclusive (BIEEEMTE) 20,204 15,826
After five years AFi& 11,584 17,796
39,905 41,505

(B)AS LESSEE

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
certain land under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for certain land and office properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to forty years.

(BIE A& A
AEBRBEEROLHERAETHAE
MERET I ZELHRBREYE
MOKHE < HPE—FEN T F-
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35.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(B)AS LESSEE (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

36. & B AL BE (#)

(BIEAXRFAAN (@)

RBERR  AKERBET A HHELEH
BN Z AR ZEHSARNAT

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET AT
Within one year —F R 75,637 129,371
In the second to fifth years, B_EERF
inclusive (BEEREME) 74,457 127,325
After five years hF& 57,844 61,930
207,938 318,626
36.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. B AR HE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B 3B E35(b) Fil 2 A AN -
in note 35(b) above, the Group had the following capital RNEERREHRE AT EAREE :
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT AT
Property, plant and equipment: L ER YN R
Authorised but not contracted BERERRITL 125,622 84 587
Contracted, but not provided for SHESEE FHgr 148,353 138,201
273,975 222,788

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant commitments (2013: Nil).
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3/.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

[A]Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
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JVBEANLTRS

(A B BEE M FTFRREY X5 kA
ERON AN AN S N ERRRE A T

the following material transactions with related parties CEARSWT:
during the year:
Group
KE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mo FHET T T
Transactions with fellow B [5] R B
subsidiaries: RAZR S :
Sales of goods* HEEm® (i) 275,047 187,299
Purchases of goods** BEE M (i) 7,473,494 8,366,573
Service fee income* AR 7% & Uz A * (i) 31,314 50,451
Rental expenses* e H* (i) 32,122 41,122
Service fee expenses* RIS E S+ (i) 35,881 7,531
Interest expenses FEZH (ii) - 21,889
Transactions with the ultimate 2 & 48 %A%
holding company: NAIZR S
Sales of goods* HEEm® (i) 805 1,752
Purchases of goods* BEEm* (i) - 88,167
Rental expenses* ez H* (i) 15,177 17,798
Service fee expenses* RiEEL H* (i) 3,022 2,915
Transactions with associates: EEZE RN A 2R 5 :
Purchases of goods** BEEm (i) 2,279,418 2,290,916
Commission income RPN (i) 77,630 34,993
Transactions with related Eelr LN
companies: ZRG":
Sales of goods* HEEm* (i) = 7,139
Purchases of goods* BEEM* (i) 1,018,045 2,073,952
Service fee income* AR 7% & WA (i) - 1,133
Service fee expenses* BR7% &R = (i) - 53

&
=
Ik
Op
2
sl

ELipal]
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3/.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(A) (continued)

These related party transactions also constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions discloseable in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

** A certain portion of these related party transactions
are connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions discloseable in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

# Related companies are companies under significant
influence by the Group’s ultimate holding company.

Notes:

(i) These transactions were carried out in accordance with
the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties
involved.

(ii) Interest expenses in 2013 arose from the loans from
COFCO Finance, which are unsecured and bear interest
at the rate of 5.04% per annum.

(BJTRANSACTIONS WITH THE ULTIMATE

HOLDING COMPANY

Pursuant to certain licensing agreements entered into
between the Group and COFCO, the Group was granted
the exclusive rights to use certain trademarks for its
kitchen food business. The licensing fees for the current
year and the prior year were waived by COFCO.

(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED

PARTIES

Pursuant to certain lease agreements entered into
between the Group and COFCO Plaza Development
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of COFCO, The Group's future
minimum lease payments amounted to approximately
HK$51,901,000 (31 December 2013: HK$60,695,000)
as at 31 December 2014.
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O BDZFEEALRSRIE ETHARAR
ERATRBEZHER IR HEMER
2 °

fORER Tﬁx$¢@ﬁ—”hﬁ”’“ RIEARY
= /N
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BRI o

(i) M2013FZHMBRELER TR B2
B ZFERAEERRIZE S5.04E2
=

R ARIETZIRS

1097 S B B 4 B 3T 3 TR
ik AEEEERERT M TR
FRQEGEAETEE MAFERS
AFERHHERAETREER

FE AL Z&KFE

BEAEEETIEEE—HHBQRF
EEE%%&E%B&QE?I%%H@%%
% MN2014412 A31 B AR E B R K &/ N
éaft B 49 551,901,000 7T (20134512
A31E : 60,695,000 7T ) °
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37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS JNEBEBALTR S ()

(continued)

(D)JOUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH (D)BAE AN+ R AE B M B/ FE
RELATED PARTIES AND NON- ERBEEZREZHEA
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE GROUP’S SUBSIDIARIES
Except for (1) the loans due to a non-controlling BROR —BAREBE B AR FEZER
shareholder of the Group’s subsidiaries of % 3R & 736,420,000/ 7T (20134 :
HK$36,420,000 (2013: HK$45,203,000) which are 45,203,000 7T ) A EEIH - R G F5.6
unsecured, bear interest at the rate of 5.6% (2013: [E (2013F :5.6[E )it ERAER—FNR
5.6%) per annum and are repayable within one year; BE: QRASE —HWEBRAREE
(2) amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of fi% % B8 FX I8 28,446,000 JT (20134 :
a subsidiary of the Group of HK$28,446,000 (2013: 28,541,000/ L) REEKT - REKTH
HK$28,541,000) which are unsecured, interest-free ER—FRNEE: QRAEEKE R A
and not repayable within one year; (3) amounts due JE 42 B% B% 3R X 7E30,371,000/% 7T (2013
to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries of the F :31,277,000/8 T ) AEEIF - £ 8 KA
Group of HK$30,371,000 (2013: HK$31,277,000) R—FREE: RA)RZEER A FK
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 1514,502,0007% 7T (20134F : 14,550,000
one year; and (4) amounts due to the ultimate holding BT RERR 2 RAER-FANEER
company of HK$14,502,000 (2013: HK$14,550,000) Gh - REBKTE AR ZIER A A -~ B RKH
which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within BARHE AR BER R RIEZERR
one year, the remaining balances with the holding ROHEBRERGEER 22 88EBTEE
companies, fellow subsidiaries, associates, related FE -
companies and non-controlling shareholders of the
Group'’s subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

(E) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT E)EAEBTEZTFEANE ZHM
PERSONNEL OF THE GROUP

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T
Short term employee benefits RHESRT 10,625 5,791
Equity-settled share option & 7S 4 & B AR A
expense 53 1,142 1,510
Pension scheme contributions RORETEI R 536 306
Total compensation paid to
key management personnel NTEEEEAE 2 BMNERE 12,303 7,607
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EERTHRERMNSNE —TFBEER
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial ISR TR M FES ©
statements.
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3/.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

JVFEEANTR S @)

(F) TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH (FIEEMBEELENR 5 REER

226

OTHER STATE-OWNED ENTERPRISES

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other organisations
(collectively “State-owned Enterprises”). During the
year, the Group entered into extensive transactions
covering, but not limited to, sales of goods, purchases of
raw materials, property, plant and equipment and other
assets, receiving of services, and making deposits and
borrowings with certain State-owned Enterprises, other
than COFCO and its affiliates, at terms comparable to
those with non-state-owned enterprises. The directors
consider that transactions with those State-owned
Enterprises were entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, and that dealings
of the Group have not been significantly or unduly
affected by the fact that the Group and those State-
owned Enterprises are ultimately controlled or owned by
the PRC government. The Group has also established
pricing policies for products and services, and such
policies do not depend on whether or not the customers
are State-owned Enterprises.
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AN/

B.EEWE AR ZFF

==
=

38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

RAABEEWBARBE2014F12A31H 2

December 2014 are as follows: BT
Percentage
Issued ordinary/ of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ CRITLER ARAEL
& ERRER BN ERREA  BAESY TEEH
China Great Wall Wine Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB180,000,000 100 Production and
RERABEEERA R R/ B A AR #180,000,0007% sale of grape wine
and beverage products
EERHEAEER
B ER
Yantai Greatwall Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Sale of grape wine
BaRBBEHERRAR" HE /AR AR 1,000,000 HEREH
Qinhuangdao Huaxia Greatwall Wines & Spirits The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
Co., Ltd. * /R B AR 1,000,000 HEEEE
RESEIRMAEARAR"
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Yantai) Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB146,900,000 100 Production and
RERREEE (EL)ABRAF" R/ A AR #146,900,0007T sale of grape wine
EERHEGED
COFCO Huaxia Greatwall Wine Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 Production and
REZEERBEAEARAA" R/ A AR #200,000,0007T sale of grape wine
EERHEGED
COFCO Huaxiahong Wines & Spirits The PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 80 Wholesale of grape wine
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ** R/ A AR #3,000,0007T HEEEE

RREBMEX (RIDERAR
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38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEIEMBERFIZ

Percentage

Issued ordinary/ of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

ML/ CRITLER ARAFEL
&% MRS E B MR A BRI TEEH
COFCO Junding Vineyard Co., Ltd. ** The PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 5B Production and
REERBHEERAR R/ B A AR #140,000,0007 sale of grape wine
HAEREEEER
COFCO & Arrive Vine Plant (Yantai) R&D Co., Ltd. *  The PRC/Mainland China EUR500,000 58.38 Plantation of vine and
RERAMSHEEEA (ER)WREB AR F8 /HEARE 500,0008% 7 production of related
products
BESEREERBER
COFCO Wines & Spirits Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB11,760,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
REEEERAR" R/ B A AE#11,760,0007T HESER
COFCO Foods Penglai Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wholesale of grape wine
FIERMERERAA" R/ B A AR 1,000,000 HEEER
Shandong COFCO Junding Wines & Spirits Co., The PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 55 Sale and distribution and
Ltd. **& /R A B AR #10,000,0007T storage of grape wine, spirits,
LWRPREREEBRAR and other related products
BEE EREMEEE
MAHE DR
COFCO Shaoxing Winery Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB68,670,000 100 Production and sale of
RIERERBEER AR R/ B A R AR #68,670,0007C Chinese yellow rice wine
HERHEEFHERE
Huailai Greatwall Vine Base Development The PRC/Mainland China RMB6,860,000 75 Plantation of vine
Co., Ltd. ** R/ B A AR #6,860,0007T BEEE

BRERBAEENAEBRRA
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38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEIEMBEAAILZ

Notes to Financial Statements
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NN/

At

EC.
B (&)

Percentage

Issued ordinary/ of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

HEMM AL BRTLER/ KAREL
&% MR E B MR A BRI TEXH
COFCO Greatwall Sungod Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Production and
(Huailai) Co., Ltd. * R/ A AR #1,000,0007T sale of grape wine
RERAETEE (BR)BRAR" EERHEGED
COFCO Greatwall Wines (Zhuolu) Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Wine processing and
RERAEEE (5E)BERAR R/ B A AR 1,000,000 bottling, sale and distribution
of wine products
BEEMIRER HEK
AHBEER
COFCO Greatwall Wine (Ningxia) Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China US$16,080,000 100 Import and export of grape
RERAEEE (ZE)ERAR R/ B A 16,080,000% 7T wine and related materials
EHOBEE AR
Shenzhen Le Conté Marketing Services Co., Ltd.**  The PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 100 Distribution of chocolate
FllmewEHEERAR R/ B A AR #15,000,0007T products
AEOR NER
COFCO Le Conté Food (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China US$24,994,370 100 Production and distribution
RiESFRE (R ERAE R/ B A 24,994,370 T of chocolate products
KERAHEOR NER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited Hong Kong HK$2,524,855,402 65 Investment holding
HRIER] O AT R BR A e 2,524,855 40275 7T REER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) The PRC/Mainland China US$30,000,000 65 Investment holding
Investment Ltd. * /R B A B 30,000,0005 75 BEER

PRI QAR (FE)REBRAF"
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38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEIEMBERRIZ

Percentage
Issued ordinary/ of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HEMA AL BRTLER/ ARAFEL
A% M REE HEMEA BRI TEEH
Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverages Co., Ltd. ** The PRC/Mainland China US$15,500,000 RZAGH Beverage bottling
KEA OB AR AR R/ A B 15,500,0003 7 production, sale and
distribution
REEMEE 358 RECX
Hainan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited * The PRC/Mainland China US$11,700,000 65 Beverage bottling
BEPRET ORISR RERAA" R/ B A 11,700,000% 7T production, sale and
distribution
FEEMEE 358 RECK
Hunan COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$8,000,000 65 Beverage bottling
Company Limited * /B A B 8,000,000% 7T production, sale and
M ER DA ERE AR AT distribution
FEEMEE 358 RECK
Zhanjiang COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited *  The PRC/Mainland China RMB23,000,000 65 Beverage bottling
EILREN O 4B ER A" A B AR #23,000,0007T production, sale and
distribution
FEEMEE 358 RECK
Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited * The PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 65 Beverage bottling
HERE D4R AR A7 /B A B 5,000,000% 7T production, sale and
distribution
FEEMEE  $HE RECX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Xinjiang) Limited **  The PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 52 Beverage bottling
PRI O LHRE (8 BRAR R/ E AR AR 60,000,007 production, sale and
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38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage

Issued ordinary/ of equity

Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities

HEMM AL BRTLER/ KARELR
A% M REE HEMEA BRI TEXH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jiangxi) Limited *  The PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 65 Beverage bottling
REAOLHE (IR)BRAR" Ll E TN AR #40,000,0007T production, sale and
distribution
FEEAEE 358 RECX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China US$12,500,000 48.75* Beverage bottling
(Shandong) Limited ** R/ A B 12,500,000 7T production, sale and
HRIER ORI ERRE (LR) BRAE distribution
A E  $HE RECX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jinan) Limited **  The PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 48.75* Beverage bottling
FigR QR &8 (BR) BRA R R/ A 5,000,000 7T production, sale and
distribution
FREEREE  $HE RECX
Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ** The PRC/Mainland China US$19,500,000 48.75* Beverage bottling
LR E A AR AR A F LN 19,500,000 7T production, sale and
distribution
FREEREE  $HE RECX
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages The PRC/Mainland China RMBA48,000,000 43 55* Beverage bottling
(Inner Mongolia) Limited ** R/ A AR #48,000,0007T production, sale and
REATOTLHE (ARE)BRAF™ distribution
FREEREE  $HE RECX
COFCO Food Sales & Distribution Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB370,000,000 100 Distribution of consumer
RERMEHBRAA" Ll E TN AR #370,000,0007 pack edible oils and other

consumer food products
DHNBERR AR EMH
ERm
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38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEIEMBERRIZ

Percentage
Issued ordinary/ of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HEMA AL BRTLER/ ARAFEL
A% M REE HEMEA BRI TEEH
COFCO Foods Management Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 100 Research and development
FERMEEARAR" R/ A B 10,000,000 7T in food, wine and beverage,
management and consulting
services
RRARFAER M ERK
® B8 AR
Vina Santa Andrea Limitada Chile CLP7,750,000,000 100 Exploitation and operation of
B 7,750,000,000% Fi| = vineyards, production and
sale of grape wine
HEBEH
COFCO Wines & Spirits (Huailai) Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Sale of grape wine, brandy
RREE (BR)HEBRAA" R/ B A AR#1,000,0007% and beverage
HEFEE - B RKE
COFCO (Ningxia) Vine Plantation Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China US$7,040,000 100 Plantation and sale of vines,
g (EB)BEEEERAR" R B A 7,040,000 75 production and sale of grape
BERHETEEA:
EERHEEE
Jinan Junding Hua Yue Hotel The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,890,000 55 Hospitality and conference
Management Co., Ltd.** /B A B AR #2,890,0007T service
BEEERENBEEEERAR BIEREHERS
Beijing Junding Hua Yue Hotel The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,890,000 55 Hospitality and conference
Management Co., Ltd.** /B A B AR #2,890,0007T service
IRERENBEERERAR BIEREHERS
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

BEIEMBEAAILZ

Notes to Financial Statements

AT R R M &

31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

NN/

At

EC.
B (&)

Percentage
Issued ordinary/ of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HEMM AL BRTLER/ KARELR
A% M REE HEMEA BRI TEXH
COFCO Coca-Cola Supply Chain (Tianjin) Limited*  The PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 63.5 Retails of bulk foods
FIER O &R (R2) ARAR" R/ A AE#10,000,0007T and relevant materials,
information consulting and
management
BERMIAERENE
& EEFARER
Top Glory Wines & Spirits Europe SAS France EUR4,150,000 100 Investment holding
EE 4,150,0008: 7T REZR
Société Du Chateau de Viaud SAS France EUR3,920,000 100 Exploitation and operation of
T 3,920,0008 7T vineyards, production and
sale of grape wine
HEBEH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Hebei) Limited **  The PRC/Mainland China RMB83,000,000 RZAGH Beverage bottling
FIEA ORI 258 (L) AR AR R/ B A AR #83,000,0007T production, sale and
distribution
FREEREE  $HE RECX
Tibet COFCO Coca-cola Commerce & The PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 65 Beverage sale and
Trade Limited* HE /B ARE AR ¥2,000,00070 distribution
mRTEOAELEERRD A" SEHHE k2 88
Jinan Junding Hua Yue Wine Co., Ltd. ** The PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 55 Wholesale and retail
BEEBEHEEERAA R/ B A AR 100,000 of packaged foods
HERTERLERM
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\ == — NN \EE .
38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL BEEMBRAIZFHIE &)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Percentage
Issued ordinary/ of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name registration and business share capital the Company Principal activities
HEMA AL BRTLER/ ARAFEL
&% MRS E B MR A BRI TEEH
Beijing Junding Chateau Wine Sales Co., Ltd. **  The PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000 55 Sales of wines
IRERAREEHEBRAR HRE /R E AR AR #800,0007T HEBEEM
COFCO Greatwall Winery (Xinjiang) Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB38,900,000 100 Production and
RERAEEE (E)BERAR R/ B A AR 38 900,0007 sale of grape wine
EERHEGER
COFCO Greatwall Huaxia Chateau The PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Production and
(Changli) Co., Ltd. * /R A B AR #1,000,0007T sale of grape wine
RIERRESER (E2)BRAE" EERHEGED
Beijing Cheng Xiang Foods Co., Ltd** The PRC/Mainland China RMB58,211,932 4875  Wholesale of packaged foods
TREARRERAR HE /R E AR AR#58,211,9327C HEBRBERD
Changli Huaxia Travel Chateau Co., Ltd. * The PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000 100 Tourism and catering
ERBEBRRREERAR" HRE /R E AR AR #300,0007T T RE R
*  Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises N HEERE
**  Sino-foreign equity joint ventures > HRINEERE

#  These are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Accordingly, they are accounted for as subsidiaries
by virtue of the Company’s control over them.

4 The company name changed from “Shangdong COFCO
Junding World Famous Chateau Club Co., Ltd.” with effect
from 31 July 2014.

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.
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38.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Except for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, Top Glory
Wines & Spirits Europe SAS, and Société Du Chateau de
Viaud SAS, the statutory audits of the above subsidiaries
were not performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the board, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the board, result in particulars of excessive
length.

39.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
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BEFEMBL R ZF

== .
B (&)

FrAIER O AT ZEER KL B BR A A~ Top Glory
Wines & Spirits Europe SASK Société Du
Chateau de Viaud SASHI -+ £ 3t B B8 A &) FE
HBEAL KM BRI LK EIRBER
HhpK B R e ETTAE T Z

ERIIRARRBZHBRR] MEFERA

ZEMNBRBANHAFEXEELBTATE
SRBRAREEEFECERHD EFER
B HDIEHB AR BRI RATE
RITE-

==
=

\ Py = o, ANy
9. FTEBRE N E]ZFF

REEFEMEATN20145F12A318 2 7

December 2014 are as follows: Bl :
Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ interest
registration registered attributable
Name and business share capital tothe Group  Principal activities
rEE
Eal A BEMLAR/ LR
218 A R s i 2 BRILAE BREA FEEH
Nanjing BC Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC/ US$19,000,000 13 Beverages processing
ARRERMERAR Mainland China 19,000,000% ¢ BT
HE /A
Hangzhou BC Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC/ US$20,000,000 13 Beverages processing
MNP ZER mERA A Mainland China 20,000,000 R MT
HE /A
CBPC Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 16.3 Procurement of raw
B 10,0007 7T materials for Coca-Cola
bottlers in Mainland China
EREAE AT QA4
FORBERE R A
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Hong Kong HK$2,169,603,029.67 13.7 Investment holding
Holdings Limited BB 2,169,603,029.67% 7T REER
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39.PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the board, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of all associates would, in
the opinion of the board, result in particulars of excessive
length.

In the opinion of the board, the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over the above companies as the
boards of these companies comprise representatives of
the Group, who participate in the policy-making processes.
Accordingly, they are accounted for as associates of the
Group.

All of the above associates are indirectly held by the
Company.

The statutory audits of the above associates were not
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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CATEGORY

40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

Notes to Financial Statements

AT R R M &

31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

0. RERSE D 2T E

R|EMR SEp R T ANKREENT

follows:
2014 Group
20145 rEE
Financial assets Financial assets
EHMEE at fair value
Available- through profit
for-sale Loans and or loss - held
financial assets receivables for trading Total
BATE
FINEEZ
AHEEZ HIEHE
SREE BRREWRE EHEE ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx TER TET T#Ex
Due from associates A= UNCI) - 16,273 - 16,273
Due from fellow subsidiaries EESH-NGUE - 578,278 - 578,278
Due from the ultimate holding RRER AR
company R - 15,202 - 15,202
Due from the immediate holding ~ EHIERA A
company R - 17 - 17
Due from non-controlling DIEUNSIE 22
shareholders of subsidiaries BEY SN - 37,711 - 37,711
Equity investments at fair value BRATEIANERZZ
through profit or loss BmEE - - 14,728 14,728
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 613,411 - - 613,411
Accounts and bills receivables G WES - 1,771,192 - 1,771,192
Financial assets included in SABNTE Ee Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hit IR 2
other receivables CRHEE - 772,251 - 772,251
Pledged deposits [EEARHIESS - 162,947 - 162,947
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeFEER - 1,356,458 - 1,356,458
613,411 4,710,483 14,728 5,338,622
T f
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY L0.ZmB\REID 22/ T E @
CATEGORY (continued)

2014 Group

20145 AEE

Financial liabilities Financial

ERERE liabilities at

amortised

cost

B

BRAIEZ

ERERE

HK$’000

FHET

Due to associates REEE N RIFRIE 154,453

Due to fellow subsidiaries UNEES =N 1,253,117

Due to the ultimate holding company REIEPER D R FRIA 27,915

Due to related companies REAE N BIFIE 88,765

Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries R M B X B FETR AR A% B SR 76,549

Accounts and bills payables EHERREE 1,372,106
Financial liabilities included in other payables and SAEMENFIERENEEZ

accruals G =N 2,131,499

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SEBRTERKEMER 3,460,994

8,565,398
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 10.ZBREI D22/ T A @
CATEGORY (continued)
2013 Group
20134 REHE
Financial assets
at fair value
Available- through profit
for-sale Loans and or loss - held
financial assets receivables for trading Total
Financial assets BRAYE
TREE IDNiF:=vd
A@EEE s Bk RBIELE
TRVEE & W3R TRIEE BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHBT FET
Due from associates gD EIRZ = 21,753 = 21,753
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEL =R = 704,968 = 704,968
Due from the ultimate R
holding company UNGIDSE | = 38,363 - 38,363
Due from the immediate BEEER
holding company UNGIDSE S = 169 - 169
Due from non-controlling BB Rl FE R AR
shareholders of subsidiaries e = 26,820 = 26,820
Equity investments at fair value X2 FEFIABZE 2
through profit or loss ERRE = = 13,872 13,872
Available-for-sale investments A { HERE 214,129 = = 214,129
Accounts and bills receivables  FEUBE Tk R Z 5 = 1,694,757 = 1,694,757
Financial assets included in STATBRRIE - ZE K
prepayments, deposits and H e IR 2
other receivables CREE = 1,015,809 = 1,015,809
Restricted bank balances X R FIR1T 4 = 165 = 165
Pledged deposits SRR - 133,655 - 133,655
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEEE = 2458011 = 2458011
214,129 6,094,470 13,872 6,322,471
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

40.¥2 %7

RlED &R ITA @

)1111

2013 Group

20134 REHE

Financial liabilities Financial

SREE liabilities at

amortised

cost

YR S R AR

FEZ

TREE

HK$000

FHExT

Due to associates R & A A I,E 248,369

Due to fellow subsidiaries R [A] ?W% 2,343,573

Due to the ultimate holding company RPN IE 67,027

Due to related companies REER TTA 799,229

Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries IR B 2 B FE R A A% BR FRIA 84,833

Accounts and bills payables EHERREE 1,191,702
Financial liabilities included in other payables and STARMENTEREGEE

accruals JERmARE 2,001,653

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SEBRTERKEMER 4,137,555

10,873,941
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY N3EMEI S22 T E

CATEGORY (continued)

2014 Company
20144 b N
Financial assets Financial
EREE assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
BATE
FINERZ
BR R EWRIE ERMEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FERT FTET
Due from subsidiaries B8 2 B R 5,737,433 - 5,737,433
Due from the immediate BERERAT
holding company REK 165 - 165
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&EEEE 47,251 - 47,251
Equity investments at fair value BATEIABRZ
through profit or loss =K E - 9,213 9,213
5,784,849 9,213 5,794,062
2014 Company
20145 b /N
Financial liabilities Financial
EHERE liabilities at
amortised
cost
128 84
BRASEZ
ERERE
HK$'000
FHET
Due to subsidiaries RSB A EIFIAE 150,728
Financial liabilities included in other T A A RER FRIE K
payables and accruals BBz EmaE 4,620
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FRETER 2,406,000
2,561,348
e
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY L0.ZmB\REID 22/ T E @
CATEGORY (continued)
2013 Company
2013F P /NG
Financial assets Financial
TREE assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
b7/ |
Exk VN -F=d
& W 3R CRVAE BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT T
Due from subsidiaries B8 2 B R K 5,992,454 = 5,992,454
Due from the immediate BERERAT
holding company Rk 165 - 165
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBeEFEER 42,654 - 42 654
Equity investments at fair value BATEIABRZ
through profit or loss EmitE - 8,932 8,932
6,035,273 8,932 6,044,205
2013 Company
20134 Vi N/NE]
Financial liabilities Financial
CREE liabilities at
amortised
cost
g X
XA E 2
TREE
HK$'000
FET
Due to subsidiaries RSB A RIFIAE 389,690
Financial liabilities included T AE AR FRIB K
in other payables and accruals EiraEse@mEE 2,532
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FRBTER 2,382,000
2,774,222
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41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, other than the available-
for-sale investments, of which the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably,
the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments approximated to their fair values largely
due to the short term maturities or long term maturities with
floating interest rates of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:
Group

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

LEMIAZATERATE
ER

RIERR  BRIHHERERAGENAFE
B EEEX EERR/E A TFETRER FEGT
BN AKERA AR EMTAZ REEEHR
RNFEREE TEHRZEFTAHMEEE
FEMBAERRER I EGFE -

EMEERABZRATFEAZTARBRR
577 (MIFRELFRHE)EMNRH T ZH
REpEBARKe

TREJAEEERTIAZATEABER:

BRTEMEZEE:
A%

Fair value measurement using

BUTHAXAEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HE IE IE
TiHHRE ABZ2H THEERSH
($5—IE) (%5ZE) ($=E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THT AT AT
As at 31 December 2014 R20145F12831H
Equity investments at fair value BLTEIANERZ
through profit or loss BaikE 14,728 - - 14,728
As at 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H
Equity investments at fair value BRRATEIAERZ
through profit or loss BERRE 13,872 - = 13,872
H
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b=ly|
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A
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41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 41.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

(continued)

ST EH 2 AFERAYE
= A (@)

BEATEREZEE (@

Company VN
Fair value measurement using
BUTAXFEZATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
i IR IE IZ
THRE TBZ2YH TAHZES2H
(8—18) ($52/8) ($=®) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THT THT
As at 31 December 2014 20145128318
Equity investments at fair value BEATESIAER
through profit or loss BaikE 9,213 - - 9,213
As at 31 December 2013 M2013€12A31R
Equity investments at fair value BOTEFIARRZ
through profit or loss ERiE 8932 = = 8932

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2013: Nil).
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and
bank balances and time deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts payable,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on minimising potential
adverse effects of these risks, with material impact, on
the Group’s financial performance. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group'’s long term and
short term interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. The effective interest rates and terms of
repayment of the long term and short term interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements

MR R M EE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H

.G 5EREEBZRBUR

AEEZIZ2eMTABEFRRITERR
H B ARRE RIRITAESR K E TR -
ZEERTATFEZRND/AREZERSE
SET AKERELTHMOEMEERA
& B R R R A R (B R EERH
mEL)

AAKEz &R TAMESZ EERER AR
Rk SNERE  EERBRIRBE SRR -
AEEEEREREEFIRTREBERNDZ
FRER (HAKE 2 MBERRBREATE)
ZEBETHNEE BESEERAIRBEEZF
B 2 BRER - B a0 o

1) 2= [ By

AREEAZNTSMNEREE 2 EBRERD R
AEEZFHNERAEZ R LB R ER
TEE-AEEZRHREHABRITEER
Z BRI R IR R G 70 B 5 ok Y FE28K

o

e

| 17
o
ot
=



Notes to Financial Statements

B R M aE
31 December 2014 2014 4 12 A 31 H
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 BF TSRS B IR B A KRR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
INTEREST RATE RISK (continued) P E kR (@)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRETEFMBEMAIZRRARGTE
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other BRTANEERFAEH, (BE) CEBF
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax BREBEZFE)HMNERA g 5B EE) 2 UK
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings): BTE:
Increase/ Debit/
(decrease) in (credit)
basis in profit/(loss)
points before tax
BATER,
BEgt# - (B#EIEBES
(k&) (BIH)
HK$'000
AT
2014 20144
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 30,306
United States dollar e 100 2,068
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (30,306)
United States dollar ET (100) (2,068)
2013 20134
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 25,943
United States dollar ETT 100 3,253
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (25,943)
United States dollar ETT (100) (3,253)
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42 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT N THEEREIREBENREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) ()

G = B
AEBTERTRERERFTELE  MAKHE
ZRAMNEBEE BEMRFAEBENE
7T AR RETTRHE - AR B &N B
DT EE an RSP BRI ¥ 2 SN Rl B

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and Hong
Kong with most of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities
and transactions principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars. The Group
has not used any derivative to hedge its exposure to foreign
currency risk.

TRINR EEMEETENBERT  ANEE
ZEBAaEF, (BiE)BEXA s AR ES
(RNEEF LR RS P RERERRR) 25
MEEE:

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit/(loss) before tax in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting

period with all other variables held constant:

Change in Debit/(credit)
exchange in profit/(loss)
rate before tax
A
wH (EB1E)
Exgs HE(BHE)
HK$'000
% TAT
2014 20144
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BEBTHARE
against Renminbi HE 5 (27,209)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens EBTLTAARE
against Renminbi ErA=] (5) 27,209
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BEABILAETT
against the United States dollar F1E 5 (12,543)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BEABILAET
against the United States dollar 1B (5) 12,543
2013 20134
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BEATLHARK
against Renminbi F1E 5 (39,781)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BEATLHARK
against Renminbi BB (5) 39,781
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BABILHIETT
against the United States dollar ARI=] 5 (14,712)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BABILHIETT
against the United States dollar BB (5) 14,712
El]
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit/(loss) before tax measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

CREDIT RISK

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
The carrying amount of the accounts receivable represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s policies are to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and to have available funding through
bank and other borrowings to meet its working capital
requirements.

China Foods Limited
Annual Report 2014

4.9 R EE B ZNRBER

(%)

oh s 2| B
FEEN AR ANS A ME SNt
EAEERER Y BAKA (BE)FZ
TSI Y @R R 25 B RS B E
RIBE A TT o

)

FERER

AEBEZEERBRIY RSP - BUIRRZRE
BNASEEHERESREECRANEE
Rk AEECHIERE  BEAEBZERE
BELCEFPER

mENE & B K
FEBZBRDRRRAZASRASEE
EE - EBRITRAMEET ABES U
NEEEESRE-



42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
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NREFERREIEBZ KB
(&)
RENEE R (@)

RBEYR - AEREERAOARFTRNRzE
BRABIHERAT:

Group AEHE
2014
20145
Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
BE 151K 1254 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT THT THT
Due to associates RE$&ARIFIE 154,453 - - 154,453
Due to fellow subsidiaries REZKBARZRE 1,253,117 = = 1,253,117
Due to the ultimate R R
holding company AAFE 13,413 14,502 - 27,915
Due to related companies REBARFIAE 88,765 - - 88,765
Due to non-controlling shareholders /R B B 2 &) 3F12 AR AR &R
of subsidiaries IE 17,732 30,371 28,446 76,549
Accounts and bills payables ERERREE 79,991 1,292,115 - 1,372,106
Financial liabilities included in other &t A f &+ 7038
payables and accruals [EitEaEsemAE 2,131,499 - - 2,131,499
Interest-bearing bank and other st EHBITEXR
borrowings REMER 506,000 892,978 2,129,891 3,528,869
4,244,970 2,229,966 2,158,337 8,633,273
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

.8 EREIE B RBR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
LIQUIDITY RISK (continued) REEEER @)
Group (continued) AEE(E)
2013
20134
Less than 1tob
On demand 1 year years Total
gl 1R =64 A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT AT AT
Due to associates REEE N A FIE 248 369 = = 248,369
Due to fellow subsidiaries REZKBARRE 2,343 573 = = 2,343,573
Due to the ultimate holding company /R & 442 i A Al 58 52,477 14,550 = 67,027
Due to related companies REBEARIFIAE 799,229 = = 799,229
Due to non-controlling shareholders /R B B 2 &) FE 1% A A &R
of subsidiaries FA 25,015 31,277 28,541 84,833
Accounts and bills payables ENERRRR 114,757 1,076,945 = 1,191,702
Financial liabilities included in other & ALt FEF XA &
payables and accruals EiaEzemER 2,001,653 = = 2,001,653
Interest-bearing bank and other st BHRITER K
borrowings HER 582,000 1,992,894 1,626,470 4,201,364
6,167,073 3,115,666 1,655,011 10,937,750

China Foods Limited
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 B rs R B B IR B A2 MR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as RIEHR RAREREGHRTBENRZE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BEEIHERNT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
Company VNN
2014
20145
Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
REM 1£n 1E5% CE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TER TER T#Ex
Due to subsidiaries RHTBA EFIA 150,728 = - 150,728
Financial liabilities included in other & ALt FEF XA &
payables and accruals EaEzemER 4,620 = = 4,620
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i B BRITER 306,000 30,131 2,129,891 2,466,022
461,348 30,131 2,129,891 2,621,370
2013
2013F
Less than l1tob
On demand 1 year years Total
RRA 1FR 1555 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THAT THT
Due to subsidiaries RETBDBIFIE 389,690 - - 389,690
Financial liabilities included in other & AELH: FEf A K
payables and accruals EitaEzemas 2,532 = = 2,532
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3t SHEITE X 582,000 417176 1,426,106 2,425,282
974,222 417,176 1,426,106 2,817,504
FEIR@BBMRAE
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42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for capital
management during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013.

.8 EREIE B RBR

(%)

BXEE
AREEREINEERBLREALEY
SEE BN REHBROESLE  UXE
HEBBRRBACREER-

AEEeNEEERRE(CEEEERRE
UHEERRE BEFARABEARE K
SENGRHEMN FRROBSFE REE
AT IR FEITHARND - B =2014F12A31
HR2013F12A31B IEFEN - EHEELRE
BEMER BREBIETETMES-

Group &

2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TAT

Interest-bearing bank and FTEERITER
other borrowings MEME R 3,460,994 4,137,555
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R eMRIREEFEIER (1,356,458) (2,458,011)
Net borrowing position EEEAMRMR 2,104,536 1,679,544

Net assets attributable to owners of ISTNEIE TSN
the parent EIFEEE 5,887,649 6,145,975
Net gearing ratio HES = 35.7% 27.3%

43.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board on 24 March 2015.

China Foods Limited
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:

hEMBHHE

AEEBENAMBRFECXEAREE ARE
FEREEMEIREAC N E KBRS ERM
BHE& WKESER BFRARTHNTX:

Year ended 31 December

HENANALEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20144 20135 20124 201145 20106
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL TET THIL TEL
REVENUE 19N 26,742,163 26,218,351 30,878,390 28,010,761 19,955,984
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM BEERH

OPERATING ACTIVITIES (B#) 226,836 (405,512) 786,944 1,179,708 862,435
Finance costs BB A (69,844) (103,103) (70,241) (37,043) (45,425)
Share of profits of assaciates JE1GH & 1 B 93,816 113,916 67,319 65,437 64,038
PROFIT/(LOSS) BB ER R,

BEFORE TAX (E#) 250,808 (394,699) 784,022 1,208,102 831,048
Income tax expense FIEREX (223,601) (311,798) (191,864) (340,811) (260,326)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  EE i #| / (E18) 27,207 (706,497) 592,158 867,291 620,722
Attributable to: R :

Owners of the parent BATEAA (224,688) (889,634) 381,931 645,609 427567

Non-controlling interests JEE R i 251,895 183,137 210,227 221,682 193,155

27,207 (706,497) 592,158 867,291 620,722
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE -BERR

NON-CONTROLLING FERES

INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS wEE 18,246,694 20,973,517 20,212,181 18,329,983 14,974,970
TOTAL LIABILITIES R (10,124,147)  (12,775,292)  (11,514,195) (9,816,186) (7,425,560)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3k fg i 25 (2,234,898) (2,052,250) (1,892,851) (1,844,174) (1,602,516)

5,887,649 6,145 975 6,305,135 6,669,623 5,946,894
BE
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DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Yu Xubo

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Managing Director)

Ms. Wu Wenting (Executive Deputy General Manager and
Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Lu Xiaohui (Assistant General Manager)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ning Gaoning
Ms. Liu Ding

Mr. Ma Jianping
Mr. Wang Zhiying

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
(Committee Chairman)
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells

Mr. Yu Xubo

Mr. Wang Zhiying

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Xubo (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Yuen Tin Fan, Francis

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Jiang Guojin (Committee Chairman)
Ms. Wu Wenting
Mr. Lu Xiaohui
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda

SOLICITORS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited,
Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

33/F, Top Glory Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Progressive Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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Financial Calendar

B4 %5 B &8

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL
RESULTS

Tuesday, 24 March 2015

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting: Monday, 1 June 2015 to Tuesday,
2 June 2015 (both days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Tuesday, 2 June 2015

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend: NIL

Final Dividend: NIL

China Foods Limited
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33rd Floor, Top Glory Tower,
262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

B REE T B2625
SR 03318

Tel B (852) 2833 0388
Fax {82 (852) 2833 0380

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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